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COuNTY Margaret Angela Franklin, Vice Chair

Victor S. Angry
Andrea O. Bailey
Kenny A. Boddye
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Yesli Vega

May 23, 2022

Madam Chair, Members of the Board of County Supervisors,
And Residents of the County of Prince William, Virginia:

We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the County of Prince William (the “County”)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The report presents fairly the financial position of the County, including its
discretely presented component units in all material respects and demonstrates compliance with applicable legal
and contractual provisions. This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
information presented in this report. A comprehensive internal control framework designed both to protect the
government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient, reliable information for the preparation of
the County's financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) is in place
to provide a reasonable basis for making these representations. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh the benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework of internal controls, by design, provides reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. As management,
we assert, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The County's financial statements are audited by Cherry Bekaert LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditors concluded there is a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the County’s financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021. The report of the independent auditor is the first component of the financial section
of this report.

The independent audit of the County's financial statements is part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit”
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on
the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of major federal award programs which will
be issued in a separate report at a later date.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal
complements the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County's MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

1 County Complex Court, Prince William, Virgin1|a 22192 + 703-792-6000 | www.pwcgov.org



Profile of the Government

Prince William County, located in Northern Virginia,
approximately 35 miles southwest of Washington, D.C,
encompasses an area of 348 square miles, of which 18.8 percent
is federally owned land. As the second most populous
jurisdiction in Virginia, the 2020 U.S. Census placed the County's
population at an estimated 482,204 persons or 158,525
households. The County comprises almost 7.6 percent of the
greater Washington-Metropolitan region's population, which
stands at close to 6.4 million persons according to the 2020 U.S.
Census.

Prince William's location in the Metropolitan Washington, D.C.
area and the availability of excellent transportation options in
the region is a catalyst for growth in the County which continues
to provide numerous economic advantages. Interstate 95 and
U.S. Highway 1 connect the County with Washington, D.C. to the
north and Richmond, Virginia to the south. Interstate 66
connects the western portion of the County with Washington,
D.C. to the east and Interstate 81 to the west. Route 234/Prince
William Parkway links Interstate 66 in the west with 7,000 acres
designated for industrial and commercial growth. Prince William
Parkway provides easy access to Interstate 95 and prime
development locations through the eastern portion of the
County. The County has several freight and passenger rail
service alternatives available to its citizens and businesses. CSX
and Norfolk Southern Railway provide freight service to the
County. Amtrak passenger trains provide inter-city service to
points up and down the eastern seaboard from stations in the
Town of Quantico and the City of Manassas. The Virginia Railway
Express provides passenger service to and from the District of
Columbia from four stations within the County. Dulles
International Airport, Reagan National Airport, and Manassas
Regional Airport provide air transportation within easy access of
the County. Within the County’s boundaries are the
independent cities of Manassas and Manassas Park and the
incorporated towns of Dumfries, Haymarket, Occoquan, and
Quantico. The cities and towns elect their own mayors and
councils but rely on the County government for some services.

Frederick
County

Montgomery
Loudoun County

County

VIRGINIA g o

Fauquier
County

Charles
County

Stafford
County

Fredericksburg

Spotsylvania
County



The County exercises local governing powers granted to it by the
Virginia General Assembly. Since 1972, the County has operated
under the County Executive form of government, as provided in
Section 15.2-500 et seq. VA Code Ann. The governing policy-
determining body of the County is an eight-member Board of
County Supervisors (Board). Residents in each of the County’s seven
magisterial districts elect one member of the Board to serve a term
of four years. The eighth member of the Board, elected at-large by
County residents, serves a four-year term as Chair. The current
board members took office in January 2020, following an election
held on November 5, 2019, and serve until December 31, 2023.

The County provides a full range of local government services including police, fire and rescue, court administration,
education, planning, development, libraries, parks, recreational and tourism services, health and social services,
publicimprovements, and general administration. The County's School Board and Adult Detention Center both have
a financial benefit/burden relationship with the County and are reported as discretely presented component units,
with the School Board issuing separately audited financial statements. A legally separate water and sewer service
authority, the Prince William County Service Authority, provides sanitation services. User charges and bond
financings are the primary funding sources for the Service Authority's operations and capital needs. The Authority is
solely responsible for its outstanding debt and is not a component unit of the County. Local and commuter
transportation services, OmnilLink, OmniRide and the Virginia Railway Express (VRE), are managed and operated by
the Potomac & Rappahannock Transportation Commission (PRTC), a joint venture between Prince William and
Stafford Counties and the Cities of Manassas, Manassas Park and Fredericksburg. Note (1A) in the notes to the
financial statements discloses additional information on discretely presented component units and all other related
organizations, joint ventures, and jointly governed entities.

The County's annual Adopted Budget for budgets of all governmental and enterprise funds serves as the
foundation for financial planning, stewardship and control and serves as an integral part of the County’'s system
for results-oriented government. The Board-adopted Principles of Sound Financial Management and the
Financial and Program Planning Ordinance outline pertinent policies governing the budgeting process.
During July through November, all agencies and departments are required to report on prior fiscal year
performance, including achievement of adopted agency/department outcomes and service levels to the Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) for review, analysis, and recommendations. Agency and department directors
meet with staff from OMB and the Office of Executive Management (OEM) to review prior year performance and
upcoming fiscal year goals, objectives, activities, outcomes, and service levels. If needed, agencies and
departments are required to submit budget requests and updates to performance targets to OMB in early
December. The County Executive presents a proposed budget to the Board on or before March 1 of each year for
the fiscal year beginning July 1. After an extensive review and deliberation process and a minimum of two public
hearings to receive resident input, the Board makes its decisions on the proposed budget and adopts a budget by
April 30. The education component of the budget must be adopted on or before May 15, and the non-
education component must be adopted before July 1 of each year in accordance with the Code of Virginia.

The County's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) is required by the Principles of Sound Financial
Management and the Code of Virginia and demonstrates accountability to both residents and bondholders. The
ACFR is prepared in accordance with accounting requirements promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), and in accordance with the Uniform Financial Reporting Manual, issued by the
Commonwealth of Virginia Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) and the guidelines established by the Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) in its Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Award
Program. The ACFR provides both detailed and summary level reports on the financial and economic state of Prince
William County.



Local Economy

The Prince William County economy is an important segment of the Washington, D.C. metropolitan area economy,
which is arguably one of the most dynamic in the world. Increasingly key to this dynamic economy is the abundance
of technology infrastructure, namely low-cost electricity, and cable fiber, propelling Northern Virginia to the forefront
of America’s largest data center market, housing the most data centers in the nation and the world. In a time of
uncertain federal budgets, this robust and rapidly growing industry is proving critical to diversifying the region’s
economy, which has historically relied on federal government spending.

The Prince William County economy continued to exhibit resilience as the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
impacted the economy in a unique, unprecedented manner. In March 2020, President Trump signed the federal
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a $2.2 trillion fiscal stimulus package. The CARES Act
stimulus payments and supplemental weekly unemployment insurance provided a steady paycheck to millions of
Americans out of work due to pandemic lockdowns. Over the course of the pandemic, Prince William County
Government persistently served the community by seeking available avenues to disburse the County's allocation of
funds issued by the U.S. Government to support COVID-19 relief efforts. On May 19, 2021, the County received the
first installment, totaling $45.7 million of federal funds issued through the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA).
The County continues to refine its plan for distribution, with a focus on providing a lifeline beyond the impacts of
COVID-19to businesses and individuals/households most in need; prioritizing basic needs and addressing disparities
that were made worse by COVID-19; continuing support for emergency response operations; and ensuring residents
can obtain the services needed. The second installment of a similar amount is expected to be disbursed by the U.S.
Treasury in May 2022.

Steady improvement of economic conditions continued to facilitate the mending of Prince William County’s labor
market, marked by a decline in the June unemployment rate to 4.2% The County's residential real estate market, like
that of the rest of the nation, faced low housing inventory levels - the most influential factor affecting average sale
prices. The average days on the market and available inventory had also significantly decreased over the prior year.
Unemployment in the County was well below the national rate. At-place employment data from the Virginia
Employment Commission's (VEC's) Labor Market Information (LMI) indicated modest growth in the number of
establishments, employment, and wages in the County, although challenged with filling open positions, and Prince
William County's vacancy rates for commercial inventory remained in line with the five-year average vacancy rate.

Prospects for global economic improvement have been called in to question as the coronavirus Delta variant has
driven infections and hospitalizations higher in the U.S. and abroad. The Conference Board forecasts that US Real
GDP growth for 2021 will come in at 5.7 percent. Looking further ahead, they forecast the US economy will grow by
3.8 percent (year-over-year) in 2022. The bond market has signaled pessimism regarding the trajectory of U.S. growth
by grinding longer term interest rates lower after reaching their 2021 peak in late March. Consumers indicated a
dramatic loss of confidence in the first half of August as the index dropped sharply in July, the lowest reading since
December 2011. Deterioration in sentiment was widespread across income, age, education subgroups, and regions.
The index’s decline was driven by losses in categories that spanned all aspects of the economy including personal
finances, and outlooks for inflation and unemployment. Minutes from the Federal Open Market Committee in July
suggest Fed officials generally expected prices to ease in the short run, but differences have begun to emerge about
the long-term path of inflation. One faction believes there is potential for more persistent upward pressure, while
others saw data and market-based measures of inflation casting doubt on progress toward the Federal Reserve's
price stability mandate.



According to data from MarketStats by Bright MLS, during June 2021, the average home in Prince William County
sold for $526,022, representing an increase of 16.13 percent year-over-year. The number of homes sold in Prince
William County in June 2021 was 1,020, an increase of 30.77 percent from the 780 homes sold one year earlier. The
ratio of homes on the market to homes sold was 0.44, compared to 0.53 one year earlier, reflecting constrained
inventory levels. Average number of “days on the market” stood at seven in June 2021 compared to 18 in June 2020.
Active County listings in June 2021 at 451 reflected a slight improvement compared to 415 in June 2020. Despite the
disruption COVID-19 has cast, supply constraints continue to benefit sellers of residential properties. With average
30-year fixed rate mortgage rates remaining below 3.0 percent. Freddie Mac forecasts mortgage rates will continue
to hover around 3.0%-3.5% due to rising economic and financial market uncertainties. As reported by Virginia
Realtors, inventory is expanding in Virginia and there is a significant pent-up demand in the market, which is a good
sign for strong economic growth, however uncertainty remains about how COVID-19 will impact the housing market
over the long-term. Lisa Sturtevant, Chief Economist, stated “as the housing market will begin to fall back into
somewhat normal seasonal cycles, it is possible that the robust sales growth that fueled many housing markets
around Virginia could continue to cool.”

Residential building permit activity is a leading indicator for housing construction. Since 2016, permit activity has
averaged about 1,720 units. Residential permit activity rose in 2018 and tallied just over 2,000 units in 2019 due to
multi-family projects. On average, single family permit activity represents approximately 42% of all activity.

Calendar Year Single Family Townhouse Condo/Apartment Total

720 498 558 1,776
2017 679 532 209 1,420
689 538 617 1,844
690 434 952 2,076
738 581 164 1,483
288 290 140 718

The Prince William County commercial inventory held steady through June 2021. According to Costar Realty Group
(Costar), the vacancy rate on June 30, 2021, was 5.4 percent. Total commercial property inventory remains in the
range of 40-48 million square feet. Most vacancies result from new inventory rather than tenant departures, with
approximately 72 percent of this growth coming from the industrial sector. Furthermore, the movement of one or
two tenants can significantly affect vacancy rates in certain types of product -- notably flex, often characterized by
single large and specific uses. The real estate industry continues to evolve as more businesses downsize office
accommodations due to the increase in the number of remote workers and the subsequent growth of shared
workspace (i.e., co-working locations), increasing competition between Prince William County and localities to the
north.

Approximately 85 percent of the County's real estate tax base (including apartments) consists of residential housing.
Another 14 percent is comprised of commercial, industrial, agricultural, and public service properties and less than
one percent is undeveloped land. As values of homes and investment in the community increased, the Board was
able to maintain a flat tax rate while sustaining the level and quality of services expected by residents. Below is a
five-year history of the real estate tax rate per $100 of assessed value:

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017
$1.125 $1.125 $1.125 $1.125 $1.122

Retail sales reflect exemplary growth in fiscal year 2021, with fiscal year-over-year sales tax revenue increasing 10.8
percent between 2020 and 2021. In March 2020, the County adjusted the revenue forecast as the coronavirus
provided a great deal of uncertainty and volatility in early Spring as storefront closures occurred nationwide.
However, the Commonwealth of Virginia proved to be insulated from sharp declines in retail sales due to the recent
passage of the Wayfair Act which provides for the collection of sales and use tax from remote sellers and the shiftin
discretionary spending to the home center/improvement industry. Locally, this has bolstered sales tax, accounting



for much of the increase in this revenue source. Despite recent growth, a conservative estimate of 3.0 percent was
forecast for fiscal year 2022, as pandemic stimulus payments ended, supply chain disruptions continue and concerns
about the delta variant remain.

According to the 2020 Census, Prince William County grew to a population of 482,204. Population growth will
continue with a strong real estate market, stable private and government jobs, and capacity for diverse residential
development. The Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments (COG) predicts the County's population to grow
by almost 20 percent between now and 2040. Additionally, the census identified Prince William County as a very
diverse county, with 25.2 percent identifying as Hispanic or Latino, and of those not identifying as Hispanic or Latino,
38.4 percent of residents are white, nearly 20 percent black, just over 10 percent Asian, and 5.4 percent reported
two or more races. Almost 27 percent of the County’s population is under the age of 18. According to the U.S. Census
American Community Survey (ACS) 2015-2019 5-Year Estimates and consistent with the County's family-oriented
tradition, just over 31 percent of the County’s households contain married-couple families with children of the
household under 18 years old. Just over 62 percent of the County’s residents work in another county or state, and
the mean travel time to work is 40 minutes. Prince William County's median household income of $107,132 is 70
percent above the national median of $62,843 and 44 percent above the statewide median of $74,222. Prince William
County had the 23" highest median household income in the United States; 3.3 percent above the Washington, D.C.
MSA. This ranking continues to highlight Prince William County's status as a “Community of Choice.”

According to data from the Bureau of Labor Statistic's Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages, at-place
employment in Prince William County (125,549 in the 15t quarter of 2021) fell by 5.0 percent year-over-year,
compared to a decrease of 5.4 percent statewide. Establishments of employment in the County grew by 3.3 percent
from 9,505 in the 15t quarter of 2020 to 9,814 in the 15t quarter of 2021. By comparison, Northern Virginia
establishments grew by 1.5 percent from the 15t quarter of 2020, and statewide establishments grew by 2.6 percent.
The largest employers in the County are the Prince William County School Board, Prince William County Government,
the U.S. Department of Defense, Walmart, and Sentara Healthcare/Potomac Hospital Corporation. The average
weekly wage in Prince William County increased between the first quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, by
4.6 percent ($980 to $1,025). By comparison, during the same period, average weekly wages in Northern Virginia
increased 3.5 percent from $1,611 to $1,668, and Virginia weekly wages increased 4.1 percent from $1,233to $1,284.

COVID-19 greatly impacted industry sectors and unemployment rates nationwide beginning in March 2020.
Employment in the retail sector fell by 17.5 percent between the 2" quarters of 2017 and 2020, while
accommodations and food services fell by almost 35 percent, and arts, entertainment, and recreation fell by just
over 50 percent. However, the economic recovery from 2020 is evident as reflected by the changes between the
second quarter of 2020 and first quarter of 2021. The accommodation and food services sector grew by nearly 3,000
employees (31.8%), retail establishment grew by 2,680 employees (14.6%), while healthcare and social assistance
and other services each grew slightly over 1,000 (8.1% and 35.2% respectively). Despite these gains, most job sectors
in Virginia have not yet fully recovered to pre-pandemic levels. Prince William County's unemployment rate was 6.8
percent in August 2020, down from a peak rate of 11.3 percent in March 2020. The County’'s July 2021 rate at 4.1
percent was below the Washington D.C. metropolitan area’s rate of 5.1 percent, the statewide rate of 4.2 percent
and the national rate of 5.4 percent.

Locally, the County and its residents also benefited from the CARES Act. The County received approximately $82.1
million in Coronavirus Relief Funds awarded to the Commonwealth of Virginia under the CARES Act. The County
Board allocated these funds to the following programs and services, all in an effort to provide relief in response to
coronavirus: community feeding; COVID-19 testing; homeless services; mortgage/rent/utility assistance; small
business microgrants; economic recovery; grants to local non-profits through the Human Services Alliance of Greater
Prince William; childcare initiatives; COVID-19 election protocols for the 2020 Presidential Election; County response
and telework initiatives; allocations to the four Towns (Dumfries, Haymarket, Occoquan and Quantico); and distance
learning support for students in the Prince William County School System.



As Prince William County enters fiscal year 2022, the local economy continues to perform well in many areas. As
reported by Virginia REALTORS®, Virginia's housing market is showing signs of falling back into typical seasonal
patterns, after a year of unprecedented growth. Fueled by pent-up market demand from the pandemic slowdown
last spring and the need for more space as adaptations to work, life, and school arrangements became necessary,
along with historically low interest rates, housing markets throughout the Commonwealth surged at a frenzied pace
over the past year. Current housing data suggests this growth is cooling off in many areas and the data is also
showing more typical seasonality. However, considering the importance of the real estate market to the overall
health of the local economy, a cautionary note is still in order, particularly as it pertains to the commercial sector.
The Virginia REALTORS® report elevated uncertainty has caused businesses to reevaluate their workforce issues and
space needs. Mounting evidence shows that there will be a long-term change in how and where people work, which
will have a pronounced impact on the office market in Virginia. The industrial market remains the hottest segment
of the commercial real estate market. Demand for industrial and warehouse space is being fueled by a surge in e-
commerce activity, as well as a shift in retail practices and a desire to move supply chains closer to end-users.

Since most of the County's general fund revenues are derived from local property taxes, the County depends heavily
on its housing stock and consumer spending to maintain its prosperity and levels of local government services. While
the County's economy has shown signs of recovery since the re-opening of businesses, economic conditions
continue to be affected by overall reduced activity resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. County leadership
continues to closely monitor economic conditions in both the nation and the Commonwealth, as well as regionally
and locally. County leadership has also evaluated the County's liquidity to meet its obligations and believes the
County has sufficient liquidity without the need to access external funding for operations. However, the effects of
the pandemic will continue to require constant re-evaluation of revenues, expenditures, and liquidity. Fortunately,
the County's strong financial policies and practices and sufficient general fund balance position the County to
comfortably manage through the uncertainty of the current and future economic conditions.

Long-term Financial Planning

The County adopted its Principles of Sound Financial Management in 1988. The most recent update to these long-
standing Principles occurred in April 2018. The Principles establish a foundation for the fiscal strength and stability
of Prince William County government and provide overarching guidance for prudent fiscal management. In 1989,
the Board also codified a Financial and Program Planning Ordinance. The purpose of this ordinance was to provide
a framework for planning government services, allocating resources to those services, and providing accountability
for achievement of budgeted service levels. Adhering to these Principles and the Ordinance has enhanced the
County's image and credibility with the public, investors, and credit rating agencies.

Credit ratings link strongly to the financial management of a local government and the economic climate. The County
seeks to consistently maintain a strong financial position as evidenced by its “AAA/Aaa” status from the three major
credit rating agencies, a distinction only 49 counties hold nationwide and a measure that less than one percent of
the roughly 18,000 local governments throughout the country have achieved. The triple-AAA/Aaa ratings are also
reflective of the County’s position as a key economic engine in the Washington-metropolitan area. The County’s
superior bond ratings and outstanding credit affirms its status as a fiscally responsible and sound local government.

A significant factor in the County’s “AAA" bond rating from Fitch Ratings, “Aaa” bond rating from Moody's Investors
Service and “"AAA” bond rating by S&P Global Ratings is the Board’s and management's consistency in implementing
and adhering to multi-year financial plans, a practice that requires regular long-term financial planning of operating
and capital requirements for general government and enterprise operations. As outlined in the Financial Planning
and Program Ordinance and the Principles of Sound Financial Management, five-year revenue and expenditure
projections are presented to the Board during the annual budget process. This projection process helps the Board
gauge the multi-year impacts of fiscal decisions and weigh the corresponding implications of tax rates and other
revenue sources. A five-year budget plan prepared by the Prince William County Schools combined with the five-
year budget plan prepared by the County give a total picture of the General Fund requirements. The Board approved
the most recent five-year budget plan in April 2021 for fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2026. Integral to establishment
of five-year plans is the County-School Revenue Sharing Agreement, originally adopted by the Board of County



Supervisors and the County School Board in 1998. The current Agreement splits the County's General Revenues,
57.23 percent to the School System and 42.77 percent to the County.

The Adopted Budget implements the Board's policy guidance and works to achieve the community's Vision and
Strategic Goals. The Board's adopted vision acknowledges that individuals, families, and businesses make a
calculated decision to locate in the County. However, the reasons they come and the expectations they bring with
them for how the County should evolve are wide-ranging. The Vision set forth in the County's Strategic Plan states:

“Prince William County is a diverse community striving to be healthy, safe, and caring with a thriving
economy and a protected natural environment.”

The Board has acknowledged that accountability, communication and engagement, equity & inclusion, innovation,
and integrity are essential and consistent factor that families, individuals and businesses rely upon when choosing
to locate in the County and are therefore guiding values used in the development of their Strategic Plan. The adopted
strategic goal areas included in the 2021-2024 Strategic Plan (adopted in July 2021) are Health, Wellbeing, & Human
Services, Safe & Secure Community, Resilient Economy, Quality Education & Workforce Development, Environmental
Conservation, Sustainable Growth, and Transportation & Mobility—with objectives, action strategies, and key
performance indicators for each goal area. The goal statements associated with each of these seven goal areas are
as follows:

e Goal 1: Health, Wellbeing & Human Services - “Promote physical, mental, emotional and social wellbeing
through timely and equitable access to services and resources to enhance the quality of life for residents.”

¢ Goal 2: Safe & Secure Community - “Provide a safe and secure community through prevention, readiness,
and service excellence.”

e Goal 3: Resilient Economy - “Diversify, support, and expand the local economy to ensure equitable economic
growth through innovative business/talent attraction, promotion, and investment.”

e Goal 4: Quality Education & Workforce Development - “Provide quality and equitable education for all
learners and develop and attract a well-trained talented workforce.”

e Goal 5: Environmental Conservation - “Promote and expand the preservation and protection of natural
resources and processes and promote environmental justice.”

e Goal 6: Sustainable Growth - “Establish Prince William County as a leader in promoting sustainable growth
that ensures the social, economic, and environmental health of the County.”

e Goal 7: Transportation & Mobility - “Provide an accessible, comprehensive, multi-modal network of
transportation infrastructure that improves local and regional mobility. Provide an accessible, comprehensive,
multi-modal network of transportation infrastructure that improves local and regional mobility.”

This Plan will be used to guide decisions about resource allocation in the FY 2022 through FY 2026 annual budgets.

For the past several decades, the County has independently conducted regular community surveys to gauge resident
satisfaction with existing services, including the overall satisfaction with the quality of life and identify areas for
improvement. More than half of residents surveyed assigned top scores to the quality of services provided by the
County and the overall quality of life within the County. Results of these surveys help the County make decisions
and achieve the strategic vision of being a healthy, safe, and caring community with a thriving economy and a
protected natural environment.



Each year, the County prepares a six-year Capital Improvements Program (CIP), adopted by the Board, and included
in the Adopted Budget. The CIP specifies the capital improvements and construction projects scheduled for funding
over the next six years to maintain or enhance the County's capital assets and delivery of services. The County's
adopted policy documents, including the Strategic Plan, the Comprehensive Plan, and the Principles of Sound
Financial Management guide the development of the CIP.

Capital improvement projects over the next six years for the County government total approximately $1.04 billion.
The major projects address transportation, community development/human services, public safety and technology
infrastructure and improvements; all key focus areas of the County’s Strategic Plan. The fiscal year 2022-2027 CIP
provides $785.5 million for transportation roadway and sidewalk improvement projects; $64.6 million for human
services projects, namely a new Juvenile Services Center and an eastern Homeless Navigation Center; $58.1 million
for public safety projects, including $40 million for the expansion of the Public Safety Training Center; $53.6 million
for parks and recreation projects, including parks, fields, trails, and greenways; $21.8 million for landfill related
capping and lining projects; $25 million for watershed management projects; $25.3 million for various building and
facility capital maintenance projects; and $12.1 million for technology improvement initiatives, including core
technology infrastructure and the replacement of the County’s human resource management system. The School
System'’s Capital Program totals almost $1.5 billion for fiscal years 2022 to 2031.

Relevant Financial Policies

As outlined in the Principles of Sound Financial Management, current expenditures are funded with current revenues
and other resources. The County does not balance the current budget at the expense of meeting future years’
expenditures, nor shall unassigned General Fund balance be used to finance current operations, except in
emergencies. Furthermore, the County is required to maintain healthy reserves, with a 2 percent of general fund
revenue “Revenue Stabilization Reserve” requirement and a 7.5 percent of general fund revenue “Unassigned Fund
Balance” requirement, both designed to position the County with sufficient working capital and a margin of safety
to withstand local and regional emergencies, economic shocks, and unexpected declines in revenues without
borrowing. In addition, the Principles require the County maintain a capital reserve with a minimum balance of two
percent of the current capital projects fund appropriations included in the Adopted Six-Year Capital Improvement
Program. This reserve is designed to provide working capital and a margin of safety to withstand unexpected, but
necessary, project cost overruns without additional borrowing. Finally, the County maintains a $3 million “Economic
Development Opportunity Fund Reserve” providing a source of working capital that can be used to incentivize
economic development in key targeted industries. This reserve supports the Board's “Resilient Economy” strategic
goal of growing the commercial tax base.

Major Initiatives

The County's major initiatives focus on achieving its Strategic Goals. Some of the highlighted initiatives of the
Strategic Goal areas are as follows:

Health, Wellbeing and Human Services - The FY 2022 Adopted Budget supports improved services for vulnerable
families and individuals, including funding to expand the mental health Co-Responder Program, designed to help
and divert clients experiencing mental health crisis from hospitalization or incarceration. Additional Social Services
staffing is included in the budget to address benefits eligibility and childcare new applications and renewals which
increased 200% during the pandemic. Funding is also included to expand homeless case management services
throughout the County. Additional local funding is included in the Community Services budget to reduce the waitlist
for developmentally disabled services. The budget expands funding to create a Child Advocacy Center for the
investigation, treatment, intervention, and prosecution of child abuse cases while minimizing child victim trauma
and vital community partner organizations are sustained with a 3% operating increase. Capital improvement
funding is provided to design the eastern Homeless Navigation Center and design a Juvenile Services Center which
includes a youth shelter.



Safe & Secure Community - The Board’s ongoing commitment to keeping the community safe and secure is evident
in the FY 2022 Budget. Fire & Rescue engine unit staffing is funded for the new 21,000 square-foot Fire & Rescue
Station 22 located on Balls Ford Road which opened in January 2021. The budget re-establishes the Police staffing
plan which includes school resource officers for the newly opened Gainesville High and Potomac Shores Middle
Schools. Police staffing also expands the aforementioned mental health Co-Responder program in partnership with
Community Services and a new staffing plan for the Office of the Commonwealth’s Attorney is funded to ensure
felony, domestic violence, and misdemeanor DUI cases are prosecuted. The FY 2022 Adopted Budget re-establishes
the Sheriff staffing plan as well as local administrative staffing for the Circuit Court, General District Court, and Circuit
Court Clerk. Funding is included for the Sheriff's body worn camera and taser program and emergency operations
services are enhanced in the adopted budget to coordinate emergency response activities based on lessons learned
during the pandemic.

Other completed or substantially completed public safety projects during FY 2021 include the expansion of the Adult
Detention Center. The expansion provides bed space to alleviate overcrowding and accommodate future inmate
population growth. Additionally, the project to replace the security system at the courthouse complex was
completed, including the installation of new cameras/surveillance equipment, digital video recorders, and call boxes
with surveillance cameras. Security improvements were also completed at other County facilities. Capital
improvement funding is provided in FY 2022 to begin the design of Fire & Rescue Station 27.

Resilient Economy - The leadership and foresight of Prince William County to support business development to bring
quality jobs to the residents and provide strategies for sustained economic growth enabled the County to become a
strategic and vital component of the Northern Virginia economy. The County's Department of Economic
Development’s mission is to improve the County's economic base by encouraging new businesses to locate in Prince
William County, retain existing businesses and encourage existing businesses to expand. The Department works
hard to create a pro-business, globally competitive environment that generates new, high-quality, and sustainable
job opportunities for our citizens and engages in a broad portfolio of services, partnerships, and strategic alliances
to benefit the business community and stimulate the economy. Since the inclusion of economic development in the
strategic goals of the County in the mid-1990s, 589 new and expanding companies have announced their intention
to invest more than $15 billion and add approximately 22,000 jobs to the Prince William County economy. Of these
announcements, 473 or 80 percent were targeted industry businesses accounting for $14.6 billion (94%) of the total
investment and 17,596 (79%) of the total jobs. Today, the County is home to over 9,800 businesses, an increase of
29 percent over the past ten years.

To further promote economic development in the region, Prince William County, along with nine other jurisdictions
from Northern Virginia formed the Northern Virginia Economic Development Alliance (NOVA EDA). The Alliance is
comprised of the Alexandria Economic Development Partnership, Arlington County, City of Fairfax, Fairfax County
Economic Development Authority, City of Falls Church, Fauquier County, Loudoun County, City of Manassas, City of
Manassas Park, and Prince William County Department of Economic Development. This ten-member body jointly
promotes Northern Virginia as a desirable place to do business.

Recognizing the strengths of Prince William County and seizing upon market demands, Prince William County targets
the following key industries and sectors: life sciences & biotechnology; information communication technology;
specialized logistics & supply chain; government contractors & corporate facilities; small businesses &
entrepreneurs; destination & tourism venues; and revitalization & redevelopment. The County's access to both
Interstates 66 and 95 make it a desirable location for shipping and transportation companies in the specialized
supplies and logistics cluster. The County's proximity to Marine Corps Base Quantico, Fort Belvoir, the National
Reconnaissance Office, and Washington, DC, along with the presence of the Federal Bureau of Investigation Northern
Virginia Resident Agency in the County, make the federal government and contractors who support the missions of
federal agencies a key industry for economic development. All these targeted industries have provided significant
capital investment and job opportunities in Prince William County. Since January 2020, seventy companies chose to
locate or expand their business in Prince William County as a result of the County’s marketing attraction and business
development services. These companies bring $4.2 billion of intended capital investment and will create 2,629 new
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jobs, 2,470 of which fall within the County's targeted industry sectors, underscoring the valuable workforce
proposition the County presents.

Technology is one of the County’s strongholds and area of core competitiveness. Unparalleled access to the nation’s
largest tech talent pipeline, along with the County’s prominent East Coast location have given rise to Prince William
County's emergence as an important data center market in the Greater Washington, DC Metropolitan area - the
largest in the world. The County's competitive tax structure, affordable power and fiber optic availability make it an
ideal location for data center clients seeking a location in the Mid-Atlantic region. Further strengthening Prince
William County's position is the availability of large land parcels and minimal natural disaster threats, which allows
clients to meet the high security standards that today's data center market demands. Since attracting its first data
center in 1999, the County is now home to over 8.3 million square feet of data center space, representing
approximately $12.0 billion in capital investment and more than 1,700 highly skilled jobs. The County continues to
be a magnet for data center projects as the region is home to one of the oldest and most important internet
exchange points on the global map of the internet, the Metropolitan Area Exchange-East. Today, nearly 10,000 acres
of land are designated as a Data Center Opportunity Zone Overlay District within the County’s boundaries, increasing
competitiveness in the marketplace.

Innovation Park, the County's premier business and technology hub, is home to a growing life sciences cluster and
several information technology companies. George Mason University's Science and Technology campus, situated at
the epicenter of Innovation Park, houses the Institute for Advanced Biomedical Research, which includes leading-
edge research laboratories. Other prominent businesses and institutes located at Innovation Park include American
Type Culture Collection, Corning Life Sciences - Mediatech, Inc., BerkleyNet, Medliminal, LLC, the Department of
Forensic Sciences, the George Mason University/National Institutes of Health (NIH) Level-3 Biosafety Research
Laboratory (BRL), Mason's Center for Applied Proteomics & Molecular Medicine and Microbiome Group. Also present
is an emerging forensic science/criminal justice cluster that includes the Federal Bureau of Investigation Northern
Virginia Resident Agency and the Virginia Department of Forensic Science’s Northern Laboratory. NCS Technologies,
Inc., a leading domestic computer manufacturer, broke ground on a new 108,000 square-foot energy-efficient
headquarters on 8.4 acres located in Innovation Park. This facility, expected to be occupied by summer of 2022,
brings an estimated $15.2 million in capital investment to the County and is expected to bring one of the largest
manufacturing lines in the region. Planet Direct, a full-service direct mail production facility, moved into their new
115,000 square-foot corporate headquarters in Innovation Park in late 2021. The company's expansion will retain
130 jobs, create 100 new jobs, and represents the company’s corporate goal to become one of the largest direct mail
manufacturers in the mid-Atlantic region.

The Prince William Science Accelerator is home to the only commercially available public-private wet lab space in
Northern Virginia and supports the growth of early-stage, start-up, and small life science companies. First established
in 2014, the Science Accelerator was designed to provide an innovative environment for entrepreneurial research
and product development. Ideally situated in Innovation Park near George Mason University, the 9,000 square foot
facility houses nine fully built-out wet laboratory spaces suited for each tenant's specific needs. The Science
Accelerator is amongst the largest and fastest-growing cluster of life and forensic sciences facilities in the region and
is currently home to 10 entrepreneurial start-up companies.

The Virginia Simulation and Game Institute (VSGI), also located at Innovation Park, is the only institute of its kind in
the world. The Institute is designed to support translational applied research in the areas of simulation, modeling
created multiple patents, copyrights, and worked on innovation, simulation, and game solutions for corporate,
government, education, and entrepreneurial projects alike. Since opening in March 2014, the VSGI has doubled in
size, incubated 29 companies of varying sizes, and provided well over 700 jobs.

Two historic barns provide a unique ambiance within Innovation Park. The historic Birkett dairy barn serves as a

premier wedding, event, and live-music venue, known as Sweeney Barn, and nicely complements the Thomasson
historic barn, occupied by The Black Sheep restaurant. The vintage barn features a dedicated arts and entertainment
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space as well as private dining rooms in the lower-level barrel-aging quarter. The property is also home to 2 Silos
Brewing Co. and Farm Brew Live, a live music venue.

Potomac Communities includes several office developments that cater to the growing demand to provide companies
greater access to the Northern Virginia labor market while maintaining proximity to Washington, D.C., and nearby
federal facilities - such as Marine Corps Base Quantico, Fort Belvoir, and the Pentagon. With infrastructure
improvements to local roadways and new commercial office space coming to market, Potomac Communities
provides several opportunities for those looking to locate or expand in the County. Within Belmont Bay, a 300-acre
mixed-use community adjacent to the Potomac River is George Mason University's Potomac Science Center, home
to the Potomac Environmental Research & Education Center. This Center contains wet lab space for teaching and
research, lecture rooms, a library/resource center, offices, and a spatial analysis laboratory further enhancing the
pool of future workforce talent here in the County. Northern Virginia Community College (NVCC) Regional Workforce
Development Center, also located in Potomac Communities, delivers high-quality workforce training with a focus on
information technology, cybersecurity, and advance manufacturing. NVCC and the United States Marine Corps
(USMC) partnered, in collaboration with Amazon Web Services (AWS), to develop a course of study in data intelligence
focused on cloud computing, data analytics, machine learning and artificial intelligence. This innovative set of
courses was developed with the help of AWS Educate, the global initiative of AWS to support cloud computing
learning and career development for educators and students. These educational offerings all support targeted
industries for Prince William County. Also, within the boundaries of Potomac Communities is Potomac Shores, a
master planned riverfront community, zoned for a dense mixed-use development including a town center, a
proposed Virginia Railway Express (VRE) station, and recreational amenities, including the completed Potomac
Heritage National Scenic Trail and a Jack Nicklaus Signature Golf Course. *

To further economic development efforts, the Prince William Board of County Supervisors initiated an update to the
County’'s Comprehensive Plan, which includes the creation of small area plans to direct growth to key locations
throughout the County. Small area plans provide greater emphasis on detailed planning, visioning, economic
development, and design to develop plans that represent each study area with its own character, vision, and
implementation strategy. Since late 2019, five of the nine planned small area plans have been adopted by the Board.
These small area plans provide a foundation to guide growth and development for the County, address Prince
William County’s Strategic Plan goals, and identify necessary improvements to the multi-modal transportation
network. As a result of these plans, the County also expects to highlight the potential for defined mixed-use town
centers, increased private sector investment, and improved transportation infrastructure.

To provide added support to small businesses, the County has partnered with the Mason SBDC of George Mason
University to deliver small business development services. Funding support from Prince William County allows for
counseling services to be available at no cost to business owners and aspiring entrepreneurs. Each business
participating in the small business program receives thorough and confidential counseling support for any stage of
its life cycle. Small business owners also benefit from regular cost-free workshop sessions in topic areas such as
government contracting, financing, and marketing. Since the launch of the program in July 2019, counselors have
completed over 2,000 one-on-one sessions resulting in over $20 million in capital formation.

Overall, businesses looking to start-up, relocate or expand will find that Prince William County's pipeline of skilled
and diverse labor, easy access to five of the Top Ten U.S. markets, the County's proactive business approach and an
array of affordable housing, retail and recreational options give Prince William County a competitive edge.

Quality Education & Workforce Development - Over the years, the Board of County Supervisors has demonstrated a
strong commitment to quality public schools in Prince William County. The School System'’s Five-Year Budget Plan
continues to focus resources on the most critical school needs, including funding for the 2,105 new students
expected during the next five years; $184.8 million in funding for repairs and renewals of older school facilities;
funding for the infrastructure needed for technology improvements and funding for $581.1 million of construction
bonds for new schools, renewals, and major maintenance projects. Also included are start-up and operating costs
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for three new elementary schools, one new middle school and one new high school as well as additions/expansions
at two current schools.

Governed by an eight-member elected School Board, Prince William County Schools is the second largest of 132
school divisions in Virginia, the fourth largest in the Washington-Metropolitan area, and one of the 35 largest school
divisions in the country, operating over 100 schools and specialty centers for students in grades pre-kindergarten
through twelve. The current School Board members were elected in November 2019 and serve a four-year term
beginning January 1, 2020. The official September 2021 student enrollment count for all Prince William County
Schools is 89,468 students, up 392 students, or 0.4% from FY 2021 to FY 2022.

The FY 2022 Adopted School Division Budget supports the cost of educating 2,057 fewer students over the FY 2021
approved budget; start-up costs for opening of “Rosemount Lewis” Elementary School, slated to open in August
2023; compensation and inflation adjustments on supplies, materials and equipment; $3.0 million in one-time
funding for an upgrade to the financial/budget/human resources Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system with
managed services; $1 million for division-wide English Language Arts textbook adoption and implementation; $1
million for future ready digital equity and $1.5 million to reduce the elementary guidance counselor ratio from 375:1
to 325:1; the addition of 11 Virginia Preschool Initiative classes, as well as funding for 16 new psychologist positions,
five administrative interns to support special education, three pandemic coordinators, one chief equity officer and
various other needed positions across the school system. Funding is included in the School Division’s FY 2022 capital
program for the construction of additions at Reagan Middle School (six rooms) and Gainesville Middle School (11
rooms), a renovation of Bennett Elementary School and fenestration improvements at Osbourn Park High and Unity
Reed High Schools. Capital construction projects completed during 2021 include Potomac Shores Middle School,
the County's 17 middle school serving primarily the eastern corridor and Gainesville High School, the County's 13t
high school serving primarily the western corridor. These two new state-of-the-art schools opened for the 2021-
2022 school year. Improvements to the auxiliary gyms were also completed at Gar-Field and Woodbridge High
Schools.

In response to the challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic, during the 2020-2021 school year the School
Division implemented a one-to-one technology initiative, providing and distributing approximately 90,000 laptops,
as well as thousands of mobile broadband devices, to provide equitable access to digital devices for students. In
addition, the School Division partnered with Comcast to provide free home broadband to families in need of support.
In addition, the School System’s School Food and Nutrition Services served 23 million meals during the 2020-2021
school year, an increase from the 10 million meals served during the 2019-2020 school year

The School System remains committed to providing a world-class education to its students and is a state leader in
producing better student achievement results at a lower taxpayer cost. As testament to the quality of education
received by students in Prince William County, all schools earned Virginia accreditation for the 2019-2020 school
year based on recent performance measures, according to Virginia Department of Education (VDOE). The 100%
success rate compares with a statewide accreditation rate of 92%. Prince William County Schools is the largest school
division in the state with all schools accredited without any conditions. Annual accreditation was waived for all
Virginia public schools for the 2020-21 school year due to the cancellation of the Spring 2020 state assessments.
Twenty-seven schools in Prince William County earned 2020 Exemplar Performance School awards from the VDOE
for high student achievement, continuous improvement, or innovative practices. Only six school divisions statewide
were recognized with these awards.

The College Board Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) score reports recently released indicate that Prince William
County Public Schools students continue to excel with an overall mean score of 1097 -- 37 points higher than
the overall global score, or performance worldwide. In addition, the percentage of PWCS students meeting all
the college readiness benchmarks established by the College Board exceeds performance globally. The School
Division's 93% on-time graduation rate for 2020 surpasses the overall State rate of 92.3% and marks the 13% year of
consecutive improvement and exceeds the Virginia average. The School System’s 2021 graduates were awarded
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more than $63.5 million in scholarships. This is an increase from the over $54 million awarded in scholarships to the
class of 2020.

Transportation & Mobility - Over the years, the County has worked to develop a transportation system that gets
people to work, improves safety, reduces congestion, reduces travel time, and enhances its economic development
efforts. As the population of the region continues to grow, the County continues to find ways to fund and/or build
the needed transportation infrastructure within the community.

Transportation initiatives completed or substantially completed during fiscal year 2021 include the Innovation
pedestrian improvement that provided sidewalk and shared-use path improvements to enhance the walkability and
recreational capabilities at Innovation Park; the Optiz Boulevard sidewalk project that added approximately 1,300
linear feet of sidewalk connecting an existing sidewalk on Potomac Center Boulevard and an existing sidewalk on
Opitz Boulevard at the Potomac library; and the Smoketown Road/Opitz Boulevard pedestrian improvement project
which enhances the walkability between Gideon Drive and Potomac Mills Road.

Prince William County is a member of the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority (NVTA), an authority created
by the General Assembly in 2002. This nine-member authority; made up of the counties of Prince William, Arlington,
Fairfax, and Loudoun as well as the cities of Alexandria, Fairfax, Falls Church, Manassas, and Manassas Park; offers
a common voice for Northern Virginia on transportation and other issues that confront the region. The NVTA is
tasked with preparing an unconstrained long-range regional transportation plan (the most recent is the TransAction
2040 Plan) for Planning District 8, including transportation improvements of regional significance. As a result of fees
and taxes imposed by legislation passed by the General Assembly in April 2013, the NVTA receives earmarked
revenue for projects dedicated to relieving congestion in Northern Virginia and participating jurisdictions are privy
to a portion of such revenues. NVTA transportation funding is split into two categories -- projects with regional
congestion relief benefits constitute 70 percent of the NVTA funds and the remaining 30 percent of NVTA funds are
transferred directly to participating localities for urban or secondary road construction, capital improvements that
reduce congestion, projects included in TransAction 2040 or its future updates and/or for public transportation
purposes. In the fiscal years 2022-2027 CIP, the County's allocated 30 percent funding, totaling $33.5 million, has
been programmed to support NVTA eligible County-managed road projects. Another $5.9 million is allocated to
support VRE commuter rail operations in fiscal year 2022. The County successfully competes for 70 percent funding
each year, with almost $316.7 million applied to active transportation projects.

Transportation remains a top priority for residents and businesses alike as more than 73 percent of voters approved
a $355 million mobility bond referendum on November 5, 2019. All approved mobility referendum projects (Devlin
Road widening, Minnieville Road/Prince William Parkway interchange, Old Bridge Road/Route 123 intersection, Route
28 corridor and Summit School Road/Telegraph Road improvements) have funding to complete design. In addition,
funding is provided in the 2022-2027 CIP for the Van Buren Road Extension environmental study. The debt service
to construct these mobility bond projects is not currently funded in the County’s Adopted Budget and Five-Year Plan.

The $785.5 million transportation CIP for fiscal years 2022-2027 aims to further advance the transportation &
mobility strategic goals by including $118.4 million for the Balls Ford interchange and widening project; $79.4 million
for the Potomac/Neabsco Mills Road commuter parking garage and road widening project; $47.6 million for the
Brentsville Road interchange; $31.9 million for the University Boulevard interchange and extension; $20.9 million for
improvements to Route 1 from Featherstone Road to Mary's Way; $302.8 million for improvements to Route 28 and
a new Route 28 Bypass; $26.3 million for improvements to Old Bridge Road; $26.5 million for the extension of
Summit School Road and widening of Telegraph Road; $48.5 million for the widening of Devlin Road; $3.0 million for
improvements to Fuller Road and Fuller Heights Road; $69.5 million for an interchange at Minnieville Road and Prince
William Parkway; $1.6 million for an environmental study for the four-lane extension of Van Buren Road between
Route 234 and Cardinal Drive; $8.1 million for planning and design for the extension of Annapolis Way; and $0.8
million for sidewalk/pedestrian improvements at Old Carolina Road.
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Important to the overall quality of life are the numerous parks, recreational and tourism amenities that exist
throughout the County. During fiscal year 2021, the County completed/substantially completed the Harbor Drive
Wellness Park, a 2.3-acre neighborhood park in Lake Ridge, featuring activities for active and passive recreation, and
the Heritage Harbor and Occoquan Refuge trail segments on the Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trail.

Voters also approved a $41 million park bond referendum on November 5, 2019, along with the mobility bond
referendum. $20 million was approved for countywide trail, open space, and accessibility projects. $6 million each
was approved for Fuller Heights Park expansion, improvements to Howison Park and the construction of a new
community park -- Neabsco. Finally, $3 million was approved for the construction of artificial turf fields at Hellwig
Park. The debt service for these planned park bond projects is currently not funded in the County’'s Adopted Budget
and Five-Year Plan.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Prince William County for its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This was the 40™ consecutive year that the County has
received this prestigious award. To earn a Certificate of Achievement, the County must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report consistent with GFOA's reporting guidelines. This
report satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Prince William County received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual budget for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020. This was the 35% consecutive year that the County has received this prestigious
award. To receive this award, the governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria
as a policy document, as a financial plan, as an operations guide and as a communications device.

The County also received for the 15% time the GFOA Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial
Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This award program is designed to encourage local governments
to extract information from their annual comprehensive financial report to produce high quality popular annual
financial reports specifically designed to be readily accessible and easily understandable to the public and other
interested parties without a background in public finance.

Many professional staff members in the Finance Department’s Financial Reporting and Control Division prepared
this report. Their hard work, professional dedication, and continuing efforts to improve the quality of this report are
a direct benefit to all that read and use it. We would also like to acknowledge the cooperation and assistance of the
County's departments and agencies throughout the year in the efficient administration of the County’s financial
operations. This Annual Comprehensive Financial Report reflects the County’s commitment to the residents of
Prince William County, the Board of County Supervisors, and the financial community to provide information in
conformance with the highest standards of financial accountability.

Respectfully,

;o

Elijah T. Johnson Michelle L. Attreed
Acting County Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Organization of Prince William County Government

Since 1972, the County has operated under the County Executive form of government, as provided in
Section 15.2-500 et seq. VA Code Ann. The policy-determining body of the County is an eight-member
Board of County Supervisors. Residents in each of the County's seven magisterial districts elect one
member of the Board to serve a term of four years. The eighth member of the Board, elected at-large by
County residents, serves a four-year term as Chair.

On November 5, 2019, an election was held in the County to elect members to fill the seven magisterial
district seats and the one at-large seat. The following members took office in January 2020 and serve a
four-year term expiring December 31, 2023:

Chair, At-Large Woodbridge District
Ann B. Wheeler Margaret Angela Franklin, Vice Chair
Neabsco District Potomac District
Victor S. Angry Andrea O. Bailey
Occoquan District Gainesville District
Kenny A. Boddye Pete Candland
Brentsville District Coles District
Jeanine M. Lawson Yesli Vega

The Board appoints a County Executive to act as the County government’s chief administrative officer.
The County Executive serves at the pleasure of the Board, implements its policies, provides
organizational leadership for addressing major issues, directs business and administrative procedures,
and recommends department heads for appointment by the Board. The Board also appoints a County
Attorney to provide legal guidance to the government.

An eight-member School Board is responsible for the operation of public schools in the County. The
members are elected and serve a term of four years. The Board appropriates funds from the County's
General Fund for the local share of the cost of operating the public schools. Operations of the School
Board, however, are independent of the Board and the County administration as prescribed by Virginia
law. A Superintendent, appointed by the School Board, administers the operations of the County's public
schools.

The Board also appoints the members of several separate boards and authorities to administer the
operations of certain services.

Along with the Board, County residents elect three constitutional officers -- the Clerk of the Circuit Court
for a term of eight years, and the Sheriff and Commonwealth's Attorney each for terms of four years.
The Virginia General Assembly appoints the Judges of the Circuit Court, the General District Court, and
the Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court. Unlike most other Virginia counties, County residents
do not elect a Treasurer and a Commissioner of the Revenue. The Chief Financial Officer, appointed by
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the Board based on a recommendation of the County Executive, carries out the responsibilities of these
officers.

The administrative offices of the County are located at the McCoart Administrative Building, One County
Complex Court, Prince William, Virginia, 22192. The County’s central telephone number is (703) 792-6000.

TTY users may call (703) 792-4733 or the Virginia Relay Center at (800) 828-1120. The County's official
home page is located at www.pwcgov.org.
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=™ Cherry Bekaert"

Report of Independent Auditor

To the Board of County Supervisors
County of Prince William, Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Prince William, Virginia (the “County”), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of
Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards and specifications require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of June 30,
2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matters

Restatement

As described in Note 1.R. to the basic financial statements, the County adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective July 1, 2020. As a result, related
net position and fund balances have been restated. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, changes in net pension and net other
postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) liabilities and related ratios, and schedule of contributions for the pension
and OPEB plans, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information section
(which includes combining and individual nonmajor and component unit fund financial statements, individual
nonmajor fund and component unit budgetary comparison schedules, and debt obligation schedules) and
statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information section, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management
and was derived from, and relate directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary
information section is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 23, 2022, on our
consideration of the County’s internal controls over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

(e Fekoert L2

Tysons Corner, Virginia
May 23, 2022
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Prince William County’s 2021 fiscal performance continues to demon-
strate the successful implementation of its Strategic Plan. This report
provides accountability to the County’s goals and objectives defined
with its residents and adopted by the Board of County Supervisors. This
section of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents our
discussion and analysis of the County’s financial performance during the
fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2021. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the County’s
financial statements, which follow this section. All amounts in the dis-
cussion and analysis, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in mil-
lions of dollars. Throughout this section of the report, the primary gov-
ernment is referred to as the “County”, and the “Total Reporting Entity”
is the County and component units combined. Due to the material rela-
tionship between the County and its component units (School Board and
Adult Detention Center), the Total Reporting Entity information more
accurately reflects the comprehensive financial operations of Prince
William County.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of this annual report consists of four parts — Man-
agement’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the Basic Financial State-
ments, other Required Supplementary Information, and an optional
section that presents combining statements for nonmajor governmental
funds, internal service funds, fiduciary funds, discretely presented com-
ponent units; budget and actual schedules for the nonmajor govern-
mental funds; and debt obligation schedules. The basic financial state-
ments present different views of the County:

®  The first two statements are government-wide financial statements
that provide both long-term and short-term information about the
County’s overall financial status.

® The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus
on individual operations of the County government, reporting in
more detail than the government-wide statements.

— The governmental funds statements reflect how general
government services, like public safety, are financed in
the short-term as well as what remains for future spend-
ing.

— Proprietary fund statements offer short-term and long-
term financial information about the activities the gov-
ernment operates like businesses, such as the landfill.

—  Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the
financial relationships in which the County acts solely as a
trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the
resources belong, such as the County’s pension and other
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The total reporting entity, which includes
component units, has positive net position of
$1,164 at June 30, 2021, which represents an
increase of $185 or 18.9 percent from the prior
year.

The total cost of the County’s governmental
programs increased 12.8 percent to $1,641 during
fiscal year 2021, while the County’s total revenues
increased by 10.9 percent to $1,633.

Net position of governmental activities decreased
3.2 percent from negative ($274) the prior year. The
County’s total costs in governmental activities
increased $184 or 12.8 percent from prior year,
while program revenues increased by 43.5 percent,
and general revenues grew by 4.6 percent.

At June 30, 2021, the County had $1,135 of debt
outstanding, including $927 related to assets
recorded by its component units and other entities.
Accordingly, liabilities and deferred inflows of the
County’s governmental activities at June 30, 2021
exceeded its assets and deferred outflows by $283
(net deficit).

Total net position of the County’s business-type
activities increased by 3.0 percent to $70.2 as
revenues exceeded expenses during the vyear,
bolstered by landfill charges that exceeded costs
(after transfers) by $2.

At the end of the current year, the unassigned fund
balance of $95 in the general fund was maintained
at 7.5 percent of the total general fund revenues.
The unassigned fund balance increased 4.4 percent
from the prior year. The increase is primarily
attributable to revenue growth during the fiscal
year that outpaced the growth in expenditures.

General fund revenues exceeded the budget by $12;
alternatively, expenditure savings of $31 under the
budget helped to provide additional available
resources to fund the County’s reserves available
for future appropriation.

As of January 1, 2020, (the assessment date pertinent
to real estate taxes supporting fiscal year 2021) the
total assessed values of taxable property increased by
5.9 percent compared to the prior year, with
residential values accounting for 75.8 percent of the
total assessed values. Real estate taxes contributed
48.2 percent of the total revenues for the primary
government of the County during fiscal year 2021.




post-employment benefit plans; the special
welfare program; and the community ser-

vices board,

and housing federal

self-

sufficiency payee programs for certain recip-

ients of welfare, mental health and housing

services.

The financial statements also include note disclosures that
explain some of the information in the financial statements

Figure A-1

Required Components of Prince William County’s

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

and provide more detailed data. The statements are fol-

lowed by a section of required supplementary information
that further explains and supports the information in the
financial statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required
parts of this financial section are arranged and related to
one another. In addition to these required elements, the
financial statements include a section with combining
statements that provide details about the County’s nonma-
jor governmental funds, internal service funds, fiduciary
funds and discretely presented component units, each of

Management’s - - Required
. ) Basic Financial
Discussion and Supplementary
. Statements .
Analysis Information
Government-Wide . X Notes to the
. R Fund Financial X .
Financial S Financial
Statements tatements Statements
Summary <« »  Detail

which are combined and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements.

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the County’s financial statements, including the scope and the types of financial information pre-
sented. The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the state-

ments.

Required
Financial
Statements

Type of Deferred
Outflow/Inflow,
Asset/Liability
Information

Government-Wide
Statements

Fund Statements

* Statement of net position

Governmental Funds

* Balance sheet

Proprietary Funds

* Statement of net position

* Statement of activities

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant funds—not the County as a whole. Funds
are accounting tools the County establishes to control and manage money for specified purposes (e.g., Streets & Roads capital projects fund) or to
show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants (e.g., Transportation Districts or Housing special revenue funds).

* Statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changesin fund
balances

Only assets expected to be used up
and liabilities that come due during
the year or soon thereafter, no
capital assets included

The County’s funds are organized into three broad categories:
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* Statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position

Fiduciary Funds

* Statement of fiduciary net
position

* Statement of cash flows

All assets and liabilities, both
financial and capital, and short-

term and long-term

» Statement of changes in fiduciary
net position

All assets and liabilities, both short-
term and long-term; the County’s
funds do not currently contain
capital assets although they could



®  Governmental Funds—Most of the County’s basic services are included in various governmental funds, which focus on:

1) How cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out; and
2) The balances left at year-end that are available for spending.

Consequently, the financial statements of the governmental funds provide a detailed view that focuses on fiscal accountability and the
financial resources currently available to support the County’s programs in the near future. Because this information does not encompass
the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, a detailed reconciliation provides additional information that explains
the relationship (or differences) between the statements.

The County’s governmental fund balances are categorized into five classifications based upon constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources — non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

®  Proprietary Funds—Services for which the County charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds.

— The County’s enterprise funds are the same as its business-type activities; but provide more detail and additional information.

— The County uses internal service funds to report activities that provide supplies and services for the County’s other programs and
activities—such as the County’s Intra-County Services Fund.

®  Fiduciary Funds—The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employee’s pension plans. The County is also responsible for other assets
through a trust arrangement that can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported
in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary
net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. These activities are excluded from the County’s government-wide financial
statements, because the County cannot use these assets to finance its own operations.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements are derived from the fund financial statements, and report information about the County as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the government’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources, as well as its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. All of the revenues and expenses related to the current
fiscal year are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the change in the County’s net position. Net position — the difference between the County’s assets,
deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows — is one way to measure the County’s financial health. Over time, significant increases or
decreases in the County’s net position are an indicator of improving or deteriorating financial health, respectively. To assess the overall health of
the County, one must consider additional factors, such as changes in the County’s property tax base.

The government-wide financial statements of the County are divided into three distinct categories:

® Governmental Activities—Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as police, fire, public works, transportation,

community development, and general government administration. Property and other taxes and state and federal grants are the primary
funding source of these activities. Additionally, the County’s internal service funds, such as Fleet Management, are predominantly used to
provide goods and services to the funds and departments of the County and are included in governmental activities.

® Business-Type Activities—The County’s Landfill, Innovation Technology Park, and Parks and Recreation enterprise operations. The County

charges fees to customers to cover the costs of these operations.

® Component Units—The County includes two other entities in its report—the Prince William County School Board and the Adult Detention
Center. Although legally separate, these entities are considered to be “discretely presented component units” because the County is
financially accountable for their operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The Board
adopted its Principles of Sound Financial Management in 1988 and amended its Principles in April 2018. Following these Principles has enhanced
the County’s image and credibility with the public, credit rating agencies, and investors. Section 1.02 of the Principles requires a General Fund
unassigned fund balance of 7.5 percent of the current year’s General Fund revenues, a level that has been maintained since 2006. The purpose of
the unassigned fund balance is to provide the County with sufficient working capital, and to maintain a margin of safety to address emergency
needs or unexpected declines in revenue. The County has done an excellent job achieving and maintaining its minimum fund balance

26



requirement since establishment. Figure A-3 shows the County’s unassigned General Fund balance as compared to the policy requirement.
Additions to the unassigned fund balance come from a combination of revenues over projections and current year expenditure savings.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As the County completed the year, its governmental funds
reported a combined fund balance of $453, an increase of $46 or 11 percent from the prior year’s $407 combined fund balance.

Figure A-3 ® The County’s General Fund balance

increased $36 or 15.8 percent; while

Unassigned General Fund Balance ,
revenues increased $54 or 4.4 percent,

$120,000 fueled mainly by increases in general
property taxes which resulted from increases
$100,000 in assessed values of residential real estate

from the prior year, expenditure increases

$80,000 were impactful at $64 or 5.4 percent.

® The Capital Projects funds balances,
$60,000 . .
which can tend to increase and decrease

from one year to the next due to the

000 . .
540, accumulation and subsequent expenditure of

funds for major capital improvement
$20,000 projects, decreased by $3 during the current

year due to the expenditure of funds on

S0 numerous projects.
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° .
= Unassigned Fund Balance =g Policy Requirement Fund balance for the Fire & Rescue Levy

Fund increased 3.3 percent or $1 during fiscal
year 2021. Total revenues were down slightly over the prior year by S1 or 2.4 percent, fueled primarily by decreases in use of money &
property and a slight increase of general property taxes, while expenditures of $25 were slightly higher than the $23 expended in the prior
year. Fund balances for Other Governmental Funds increased $12 or 27.1 percent compared with $7.9 or 21.2 percent during the prior year,
fueled by revenue growth of $75 or 88.6 percent being slightly outpaced by expenditures increases of $71.2 or 100 percent.

®  Fund balance for the COVID-19 Relief fund remained relatively flat. Total revenues and expenditures increased by $70 or 1368%. The stark
increase was due to additional federal funding received to manage COVID-19 relief efforts.

® The financial results as detailed in the governmental funds demonstrate the County’s accountability to its five strategic goal areas of robust
economy, safe and secure community, well-being, quality education, workforce development; and mobility aligned to address the impact of
population growth and increased needs of the community.

¢ Debt service costs increased $5 during fiscal year 2021 to $146. The County increased its investment in health and welfare, adding
$9 over the prior year expenditures, or 9.1 percent. Additionally, general fund support for public safety increased $11 or 4.1% from
the prior year.

¢ The County continued its mobility goal of alleviating congestion by investing $80 on the construction of various streets and roads
during fiscal year 2021. Upon completion, these road projects will be transferred to and become assets of the Commonwealth of
Virginia.

¢ The County’s general fund support to the School Board was $539 compared with $507 in the prior year. This represents a 6.4
percent increase as the County dedicated funding to reduce class sizes.

Proprietary Funds

Unrestricted net position of the Landfill increased by less than $1 in fiscal year 2021. Innovation Technology Park’s unrestricted net position
increased by $2, fueled primarily by charges for services. Net position of the Parks and Recreation enterprise fund increased by $1 or 51 percent,
fueled primarily by decreases in personnel expenses.

The Statement of Cash Flow, for the proprietary funds provides more detailed information.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the Board of County Supervisors revised the County’s budget several times. These budget amendments
predominantly fall into two categories:

®  Amendments to appropriations approved shortly after the beginning of the year to reflect budget re-appropriations from the prior year.

® Increases in appropriations based on supplemental funding sources.

After these adjustments, budgetary expenditures were $31 lower than the final budget amounts and budgetary revenues exceeded the final
budget by more than $22. These two factors, combined with the effect of transfers to other funds, resulted in an increase in the total fund
balance of the General Fund, of $36 during the fiscal year. The most significant revenue variances were related to other local taxes ($30 higher
than final budget) and general property taxes (510 higher than final budget) resulting from increases in assessed values. Actual expenditures were
lower in all categories, most notably public safety; health and welfare; parks, recreation and cultural and community development, as the County
reacted to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic and sought immediate spending reductions to prepare for the potential impacts, including
possible economic downturn.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

Net Position
The total reporting entity net position increased from the prior year balance of $979 (after the restatement) by 18.9 percent to $1,165.
Governmental Activities

Net position of the County’s governmental activities decreased by 3.2 percent to ($283) during the year. The $(213) deficit net position of the
primary government results largely from the County issuing debt to finance capital Figure A-4

projects, which are donated to other entities. Therefore, while the debt is reflected as an X :
Total Reporting Entity Net

obligation of the primary government of the County, the related assets are recorded by P ttion: as Restata
’

the entities to which the capital projects are donated. These donations are planned as | 51,400
part of the County’s capital improvement program to further its quality education and

$1,200
workforce development, mobility, safe and secure communities and robust economy

$185

strategic goals, and thereby increase services and improve the quality of life in Prince |s1,000

William County.
$800
As of June 30, 2021, the County has $1,135 of outstanding debt (compared with $1,085 as

of June 30, 2020) of which $1,060 is related to assets donated to other entities as follows: $600

®  $879; Prince William County School Board $400

®  5133; Commonwealth of Virginia $200

®  548; Prince William County Adult Detention Center 0
This represents 93.0 percent of the County’s total general obligation, capital leases and iz Az
other long-term debt. Because the County does not retain ownership of the related = Beginning Net Position Increase

assets which, therefore, are not presented on the County’s Statement of Net Position,
this debt liability (less any unspent proceeds) reduces the County’s total net position and represents a less favorable picture as compared to
governments that do not extensively fund the capital assets of other entities.

Consequently, the debt used to finance the purchase or construction of assets recorded by other entities results in a deficit in net position of
governmental activities of the County. Additionally, as discussed in the analysis of the County’s governmental funds, revenues of the County’s
governmental activities increased by 10.9 percent compared to those of the prior year, and expenses increased by 12.8 percent during fiscal year
2021.

Business-Type Activities

The net position of the County’s business-type activities increased 6.3 percent to $72 in fiscal year 2021 compared to $68 in the prior year. The
results of the County’s business-type activities are attributable to the activities discussed in the analysis of the County’s proprietary funds. The
$72 net position of the County’s business-type activities will not be used to offset the net position deficit in governmental activities. The County
generally uses the positive net position to finance the continuing operations of the Landill, Innovation Technology Park and Parks and Recreation.

28



Table A-1
Net Position

Total Reporting

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Entity (Including
Activities Activities Government Component Units)
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current assets and other 5 983 1,018 53 51 1,036 1,069 1,743 1,578
Capital assets 639 620 49 44 688 664 2,550 2,475
Total assets 1,622 1,638 102 95 1,724 1,733 4,293 4,053
Deferred outflows of resources 167 118 2 1 169 119 493 358
Other liabilities 413 375 7 6 420 381 620 563
Long-term liabilities* 1,515 1,385 25 22 1,540 1,407 2,754 2,503
Total liabilities 1,928 1,760 32 28 1,960 1,788 3,373 3,066
Deferred inflows of resources 145 270 - - 145 270 247 376

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 541 547 45 39 586 586 2,512 1,566
Restricted 126 110 - - 126 110 204 143
Unrestricted* (951) (931) 27 29 (924) (902)  (1,551) (740)
Total net position* $ (284) (274) 72 68 (212) (206) 1,165 969

The aforementioned factors contributing to changes in the governmental net position and the business-type net position of the County combined
to create an overall decrease in net position of the primary government of $6 during fiscal year 2021. The assets and deferred outflows of
resources of the primary government are less than the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $212.

The component units (the Prince William County School Board and the Adult Detention Center) are a significant portion of the total reporting
entity, the assets of which represent 59.86 percent of the total reporting entity. Component unit net position increased 17.0 percent to $1,377
during 2021, with an increase in funding of $52 from the County as well as increased funding from the state of $20. The net position of the
primary government of negative ($214) combined with the net position of the component units of $1,377 resulted in total net position for the
total reporting entity of $1,164, after considering the effect of restatement of beginning net position.

Changes in Net Position

Table A-2 and the narrative that follows consider the operations of governmental and business-type activities separately. See Figures A-5, A-6 and
A-7 for the revenue percentages and net costs for governmental activities.

Revenues for the County’s governmental activities increased 11 percent to $1,603, and total expenses increased 12.8 percent to $1,616, which,
after considering the effect of transfers, resulted in a S9 decrease in net position during the current year, compared to $14 increase in the prior
year.

71 percent of revenues related to governmental activities are derived from taxes (see Figure A-5). Tax revenues increased by $67 or 6.2 percent,
driven mainly to an increase in real estate tax revenues from $755 in fiscal year 2020 to $787 in fiscal year 2021. Despite no change in the total
direct tax rate, a 5.9 percent increase in the total taxable assessed value of real estate in the County pushed real estate tax revenues higher
during fiscal year 2021, and increased levels of support received from both the state and federal government coupled with falling investment
earnings; the overall revenue increases mitigated the impact of the rising cost of vital services provided by the County. These outcomes are
attributable to a more positive real estate market than the County has experienced over the past few fiscal years, with residential real estate
values, which make up 75.8 percent of total assessments, increasing 5.2 percent. Commercial and industrial values increased 9.7 percent and
apartment real estate values increased 8.7 percent.

29



Table A-2
Changes in Met Position
Total Repaorting Entity
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary (Including Component
Activities Activities Government Units)
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Program revenues:
Charges for services 5 45 g1 29 26 74 77 20 85
Cperating grants and contributions 185 111 - - 135 111 430 297
Capital grants and contributions 110 7B - - 110 7B 110 7B
General revenues:
Taxes:
Real property 787 755 - - 787 755 787 755
Personal property 175 163 - - 175 163 175 163
Other taxes 176 153 - - 177 153 177 153
Payment from primary government - - - - - - 227 775
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs 72 21 - - 72 21 570 Eg2
Unrestricted investment earnings 16 38 - 1 16 35 16 4
Gain [loss) on disposal of capital assets - - - - - - - -
Mizcellaneous 29 17 1 1 31 18 a1 23
Total revenues 1,603 1,445 30 28 1,633 1,473 3,263 2,935
Expenses:
General government administration 85 g1 - - 895 g1 =1 g1
Judicial administration 29 27 - - 29 27 29 27
Public safety 376 324 - - 376 324 376 324
Public works g4 102 - - g4 102 94 102
Health and welfare 137 111 - - 137 111 137 111
Education 94 G534 - - B9 34 G594 E34
Parks, recreational, and cultural 51 57 - - 51 57 51 57
Community development 91 76 - - 91 76 91 76
Interest on long-term debt 45 =Th] - - 45 =Th] 45 50
Enterprize® - - 23 22 23 22 23 22
Component units - - - - - - 1,438 1,245
Total expenses 1,616 1,432 23 22 1,635 1,454 3,077 2,303
Excess/[deficiency)in net position
before transfers [13) 12 7 & [B) 19 186 122
Transfers 3 1 (3} (1} - - - -
Increaze/[decrease) in net position [10) 14 4 5 &) 19 186 132
MNet position, beginning of year® [274) [288) 3 63 [208) [225) 979 237
Net position, end of year [284) [274) 72 =23 [212) [206) 1,185 959

* - g5 restated; see Note 1.R for further information

The total reporting entity net position increased by $196 in fiscal year 2021 (includes restatement). Factors impacting the change in net position
include total revenues of $3,263 (11.1 percent higher than fiscal year 2020) which exceeded total expenses of $3,077, (9.7 percent higher than
expenses of the prior year).

The County’s Primary Government total revenues increased 10.9 percent to $1,633 (see Table A-2). Over 60.0 percent of the County’s revenue
comes from ad valorem taxes. The County’s total revenue is divided into three major sources: 71.1 percent of every dollar raised comes from
some type of tax; over 18.0 percent of revenues come from local, state and federal aid; charges for services comprise 2.9 percent and the
remaining 2.9 percent is from other sources.

The total cost of all County programs and services increased by $185 or 12.8 percent to $1,639. The County’s expenses cover a range of services,
with 65.2 percent related to public safety and education (see Table A-2). Quality education, workforce development, and safe and
secure community are significant goal areas in the Strategic Plan.
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Figure A-5

m Property taxes, 60.1%

M Charges for services, 2.8%
m Unrestricted investment earnings, 1.0%
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m Other taxes, 11.0%

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs, 4.9%
B Capital grants and contributions, 6.9%

Miscellaneous, 1.7%

Local sales tax revenues produced a 11.1 percent increase from $72 in fiscal year 2020 to $80 in fiscal year 2021, and accounted for nearly all of
the increase in ‘Other taxes’ as shown in Table A-2. Operating grants and contributions increased by 67.2 percent, while capital grants and contri-
butions increased by 45.3 percent. Investment earnings in fiscal year 2021 were down $31 from $46 in fiscal year 2020 to $15 in fiscal year 2021.

Education remains the biggest expense Figure A-6

for governmental activities. The School Net Expenses - Governmental Activities
Board receives 57.23 percent of general

revenues per the revenue-sharing agree- ${100) & $100  S200  S300  S400  S500  S600  S700
ment with the County. The Board of General Govemnment

County Supervisors created a grant fund- Rl Adninktration

ing opportunity intended to help the

School Board address the issue that LA Sarety

Prince William County School class sizes Public Works

are at a maximum permitted under Vir- Health and Welfare

ginia law. This Class Size Reduction Grant Education

of up to one million dollars is in addition | parks Recreational, and Cultural

to the revenue sharing agreement with R REy Devekpment I

the County. Student enrollment as of

September 2021, as reported to the Vir- s one Tejm Debx ‘

ginia Department of Education, for all a FY2021 = FY2020

Prince William County Schools is 89,076

students, decreasing 2,448 students or
2.7 percent from fiscal year 2020.

Net expenses for Public Works decreased by $24 compared to fiscal year 2020, with an increase in operating grants and contributions during fiscal

year 2021. In fiscal year 2021, the Police Department and Fire and Rescue added 7 and 14 FTE positions, respectively.

experienced a minimal increase of $1. Health and Welfare was up $9, with the addition of over 36 FTEs, mostly in Social Services.
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Figure A-7
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contributions of $296.

Business-Type Activities

Additionally, other functions and programs re-
mained relatively consistent with prior year lev-
els. Figures A-6 and A-7 present the net cost
(total cost less fees generated by the activities
and intergovernmental aid) of each of the Coun-
ty’s nine functions/programs. The net cost re-
flects the financial burden that was placed on
the County’s taxpayers by each of these func-
tions.

The cost of all governmental activities this year
was $1,616. Some of the costs were paid by:

® Those who directly benefited from the pro-
grams by paying charges for services $46;

® Other governments and organizations that
subsidized certain programs with grants and

Revenues of the County’s business-type activities increased by $3 to $29 and expenses of $25, increased by $3 as compared to the prior year

(refer to Table A-2). Factors contributing to these results include:

Charges for services of $29, increased for Innovation Technology Park , while Parks and Recreation and Landfill remained relatively flat.

Expenses were relatively stable, up only marginally from $22 in fiscal year 2020 to $25 in fiscal year 2021.

These conditions contributed to a net income before transfers of $1, $5 decrease from during the prior year. The County’s business-type

activi- ties had miscellaneous revenue of $1 as well as transfers to the General Fund of $3 and transfers out to the Capital Projects Fund of

$3, re-sulting in a negative change in net position of $2 during the year.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2021, the total reporting entity had invested $2,550 in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings, improve-

ments, machinery and equipment, library collections, infrastructure, and construction in progress (see Table A-3). This amount represents a net

increase (including additions and deductions) of $75 or 3.0 percent, over fiscal year 2020. The Primary Government had invested $688 in capital

assets, net of accumulated depreciation. Accumulated depreciation remained stable between fiscal year 2021 and 2020. More detailed infor-

mation about the Coun-

ty’s capital assets is pre-
sented in Note Disclosure
9 to the financial state-
ments.

Major Capital Asset Addi-
tions

This year’s major County
additions
included the following:

capital asset

Table A-3
County's Capital Assets

Total Primary Government Total Reporting Entity

2021 2020 2021 2020

Land and Contruction in Progress 5 208 190 349 4583
Buildings and other capital

assets, net of depreciation 482 a7a 2,201 1,992

Total Capital Assets 5 688 664 2,550 2,475

® the County’s capital project activities for fiscal year 2021 included $10 expended on technology infrastructure and other technology im-

provements, and $8 on the animal shelter expansion.

® The School Board reported capital asset increases of $56, which includes increases to buildings and improvements to sites of $194. Major

capital asset additions in fiscal year 2021 include completed construction of two new schools.

® The Adult Detention Center (ADC) component unit’s assets increased $12 as a result of continued construction in progress on the ADC expan-
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sion Phase Il project.
Long-Term Debt And Other Obligations

At year-end the County’s governmental activities had total debt and other obligations of $1,642, of which, bonded debt outstanding represented
$1,059, all of which is backed by the full faith and credit of the government. Of the County’s bonded debt, $62 represents bonds secured solely by
specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

The County’s total debt and obligations increased to $1,667 during the current fiscal year. The key components of the current year activities were
the issuance and sale of school-related debt as well as the issuance of $49 for county projects. More detailed information about the County’s
long-term debt is presented in Note Disclosure 10 to the financial statements.

Bond Ratings

The County maintains ratings of AAA from Fitch Ratings, Aaa from Moody’s Investors Services and AAA from Standard and Poor’s. These ratings
are the highest ratings awarded to a local government and is an achievement held by less than one percent of local governments nationwide. All
three ratings were reconfirmed during fiscal year 2021.

Table A-4
County's Long-Term Debt and Other Obligations

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

General obligation bonds:
Tax-exempt bonds S 890 821 B - 890 821
Taxable bonds 107 156 - - 107 156
Revenue tax-exempt bonds 62 19 5 5 67 24
Total bonded debt 1,059 996 5 5 1,064 1,001
Loans payable 21 21 - . 21 21
Capital lease obligations 55 68 - - 55 68
Unpaid losses and related liabilities 22 22 - B 22 22
Net pension and OPEB obligation 321 246 4 3 325 249
Surplus distribution payable 2 4 B - 2 4
Compensated absences 47 43 1 1 47 a4
Unamortized premiums 114 112 - - 114 112
Accrued closure liability* . - 16 13 16 13
Total long-term debt and other obligations $ 1,642 1,512 25 22 1,667 1,534

More detailed information about the County’s long-term debt is presented in Note Disclosure 10 to the financial statements.

Limitations on Debt

The County has no legal limitations on the amount of debt it can issue. The Board, however, has adopted certain financial policies limiting the
amount of tax-supported debt to no more than three percent of the assessed value of taxable property; and annual debt service payments to no
more than 10 percent of County revenues. As of June 30, 2021, the amount of tax-supported debt outstanding represented 1.5 percent of the
total assessed valuation of taxable real and personal property of $74 billion at January 1, 2020, which is the valuation date to determine fiscal
year 2021 tax revenues. Annual debt service payments during fiscal year 2021 represented 6.3 percent of revenues in compliance with the
County’s Principles of Sound Financial Management (as depicted in Figure A-8, below). See Table 14 in the Statistical Section for further
explanation of the calculations.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The key economic factors affecting the County include the following:

During 2021, (COVID-19) continued to have an economic impact globally. As a result of the spread of COVID-19, economic uncertainties
have arisen that could negatively impact the County’s anticipated future revenues and operations for an indeterminable period of time.
Other financial impacts could occur, but are unknown as of the date of publication of this financial report.

In response to the COVID-19 global pandemic, the federal government has made funding available via the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (“CARES”) Act and the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) to aid localities in their response to the health crisis.
Expenditures of this federal funding are subject to audit by the grantor under the Uniform Guidance, and the County is contingently
liable to refund amounts received in excess of allowable expenditures. In the opinion of the County’s management, no material refunds
will be required as a result of expenditures disallowed by the grantor. See the results of the Single Audit in the County’s Single Audit
Report for further information; both reports will be issued at a later date.

The Board of County Supervisors has kept the real estate tax rate flat at $1.125 per $100 of assessed value in fiscal year 2021.

The real estate tax base has increased from $63.6 billion supporting fiscal year 2020, to $67.7 billion for fiscal year 2021, which is an
increase of 5.9 percent.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the County’s

finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the money received. Questions about this report or inquiries for additional

information may be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, 1 County Complex Court, Prince William, Virginia, 22192-9201 or

financedirectorsoffice@pwcgov.org.
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he Basic Financial Statements include all funds, discretely presented component units and
notes to provide an overview of the financial position and results of operation for the County
as a whole. They also serve as an introduction to the more detailed statements and schedules
that follow.



COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

Exhibit 1

Statement of Net Position Page 1 of 2
June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component Total
Activities Activities Total Units Reporting Entity
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments 817,668 31,259 848,927 570,695 1,419,622
Cash held by other fiscal agents - - - 2,347 2,347
Investments 18,051 - 18,051 - 18,051
Property taxes receivable, net 13,252 - 13,252 - 13,252
Accounts receivable, net 15,079 329 15,408 4,639 20,047
Investment in direct financing leases 5,661 - 5,661 - 5,661
Notes receivable, current - 199 199 - 199
Due from other governmental units 68,465 173 68,638 37,973 106,611
Due from primary government - - - 13,146 13,146
Internal balances 306 (306) - - -
Inventory 627 4,454 5,081 7,623 12,704
Prepaid items 2,652 20 2,672 4 2,676
Notes receivable, noncurrent - 172 172 - 172
Net OPEB assets 4,070 - 4,070 3,786 7,856
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Restricted cash and temporary investments 24,843 16,816 41,659 65,825 107,484
Restricted investments 1,250 - 1,250 - 1,250
Water and sewer availability credit 11,119 - 11,119 - 11,119
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 171,887 34,025 205,912 143,517 349,429
Buildings and other capital assets, net of
depreciation 467,000 15,431 482,431 1,719,152 2,201,583
Total assets 1,621,930 102,572 1,724,502 2,568,707 4,293,209
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Loss on refunding deferred 27,960 8 27,968 - 27,968
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 12,321 143 12,464 30,584 43,048
Deferred outflows related to pensions 126,629 1,506 128,135 294,055 422,190
Total deferred outflows of resources 166,910 1,657 168,567 324,639 493,206
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 65,349 3,284 68,633 18,864 87,497
Wages and benefits payable 17,605 333 17,938 134,502 152,440
Deposits and escrows 37,757 28 37,785 - 37,785
Accrued interest 15,733 52 15,785 - 15,785
Due to other governmental units 1,718 - 1,718 - 1,718
Due to component units 13,146 - 13,146 - 13,146
Retainage 2,478 70 2,548 7,517 10,065
Unearned revenue 131,772 2,853 134,625 14,265 148,890
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 127,795 768 128,563 24,287 152,850
Due in more than one year 1,514,558 24,693 1,539,251 1,214,323 2,753,574
Total liabilities 1,927,911 32,081 1,959,992 1,413,758 3,373,750
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid taxes 124,159 - 124,159 - 124,159
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 17,556 178 17,734 37,443 55,177
Deferred inflows related to pensions 3,077 22 3,099 64,282 67,381
Total deferred inflows of resources 144,792 200 144,992 101,725 246,717

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

Exhibit 1

Statement of Net Position Page 2 of 2
June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component Total
Activities Activities Total Units Reporting Entity
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 541,191 44,730 585,921 1,862,670 2,512,932 A
Restricted for:
Capital projects - - - 57,857 (6,484) A
Net OPEB assets 4,070 - 4,070 3,786 7,856
Special levy districts 49,012 - 49,012 - 49,012
Development fee services 10,545 - 10,545 - 10,545
Housing 4,692 - 4,692 - 4,692
Transient occupancy tax 4,171 - 4,171 - 4,171
Grantor's / deed tax 25,538 - 25,538 - 25,538
Internal service fund 3,255 - 3,255 - 3,255
Public safety 4,495 - 4,495 - 4,495
Grants 8,843 - 8,843 - 8,843
Donations 658 - 658 - 658
Water and sewer availability credit 11,119 - 11,119 - 11,119
Education - - - 80,468 80,468
Unrestricted (951,452) 27,218 (924,234) (626,918) (1,551,152) A
Total net position / (deficit) (283,863) 71,948 (211,915) 1,377,863 1,165,948

The sum of the columns does not equal the Total Reporting Entity column by a difference of $957,429 because the debt related to the School Board ($879,359) and the

debt related to the Adult Detention Center ($48,070) is reflected in the primary government's general governmental activities row reducing the unrestricted row as Net
A Investment in Capital Assets. The Total Reporting Entity column matches the asset with the debt and reports the net amount in the component unit on the Net

Investment in Capital Assets. The Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by School Board's unspent bond proceeds of $64,341 with a corresponding decrease in the
Restricted Capital Projects row.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA Exhibit 2
Statement of Activities Page 1 of 2
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue
Operating Capital Primary
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Functions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government administration S 95,112 1,643 5,924 - (87,545) -
Judicial administration 29,253 2,133 6,227 - (20,893) -
Public safety 375,682 11,937 27,800 10,661 (325,284) -
Public works 93,970 8,983 223 90,239 5,475 -
Health and welfare 136,895 1,082 69,025 - (66,788) -
Education 694,445 - 28,228 - (666,217) -
Parks, recreational and cultural 51,025 2,716 428 19 (47,862) -
Community development 90,729 16,801 47,649 9,309 (16,970) -
Interest on long-term debt 49,053 - - - (49,053) -
Total governmental activities 1,616,164 45,295 185,504 110,228 (1,275,137) -
Business-type activities:
Landfill 17,889 20,094 - - - 2,205
Innovation Technology Park 746 5,660 - - - 4,914
Parks and recreation 4,293 3,290 - - - (1,003)
Total business-type activities 22,928 29,044 - - - 6,116
Total primary government S 1,639,092 74,339 185,504 110,228 (1,275,137) 6,116
Component Units:
School Board S 1,380,099 5,562 282,763 127 - -
Adult Detention Center 56,297 223 12,427 - - -
Total component units S 1,436,396 5,785 295,190 127 - -
General revenues:
Taxes:
Real property S 787,059 -
Personal property 175,182 -
Local sales 80,140 -
Consumer's utility 13,266 -
Business, professional and occupational licenses (BPOL) 29,882 -
Recordation 20,067 -
Motor vehicle licenses 12,550 -
Other local taxes 14,499 -
Short term rental, bank stock, public utility gross receipts 5,213 -

Payments from primary government - -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs:

Federal revenues 68 -
State revenues 70,286 -
Local revenues 7,227 -
Investment earnings 15,825 104
Insurance claims and recoveries 18 -
Miscellaneous 30,526 990
Transfers 3,205 (3,205)
Total general revenues and transfers 1,265,013 (2,111)
Change in net position (10,124) 4,005
NET POSITION, beginning of year, prior to restament (274,333) 67,943
Restatement of beginning net position (Footnote 1R) 594 -
NET POSITION, end of year $ (283,863) 71,948

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 2
Page 2 of 2

and Changes in Net Position

Government

Total Reporting

Government Total Component Unit Entity Functions / Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
(87,545) - (87,545) General government administration
(20,893) - (20,893) Judicial administration
(325,284) - (325,284) Public safety
5,475 - 5,475 Public works
(66,788) - (66,788) Health and welfare
(666,217) - (666,217) Education
(47,862) - (47,862) Parks, recreational and cultural
(16,970) - (16,970) Community development
(49,053) - (49,053) Interest on long-term debt
(1,275,137) - (1,275,137) Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
2,205 - 2,205 Landfill
4,914 - 4,914 Innovation Technology Park
(1,003) - (1,003) Parks and recreation
6,116 - 6,116 Total business-type activities
(1,269,021) - (1,269,021) Total primary government
Component Units:
- (1,091,647) (1,091,647) School Board
- (43,647) (43,647) Adult Detention Center
- (1,135,294) (1,135,294) Total component units
General revenues:
Taxes:
787,059 - 787,059 Real property
175,182 - 175,182 Personal property
80,140 - 80,140 Local sales
13,266 - 13,266 Consumer's utility
29,882 - 29,882 Business, professional and occupational licenses (BPOL)
20,067 - 20,067 Recordation
12,550 - 12,550 Motor vehicle licenses
14,499 - 14,499 Other local taxes
5,213 - 5,213 Short term rental, bank stock, public utility gross receipts
- 826,798 826,798 Payments from primary government
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs:
68 692 760 Federal revenues
70,286 485,651 555,937 State revenues
7,227 4,691 11,918 Local revenues
15,929 3,162 19,091 Investment earnings
18 - 18 Insurance claims and recoveries
31,516 6,451 37,967 Miscellaneous
- - - Transfers
1,262,902 1,327,445 2,590,347 Total general revenues and transfers
(6,119) 192,151 186,032 Change in net position
(206,390) 1,175,327 968,937  NET POSITION, beginning of year, prior to restament
594 10,385 10,979 Restatement of beginning net position (Footnote 1R)
(211,915) 1,377,863 1,165,948 NET POSITION, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 3

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and temporary investments

Property taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net

Due from other funds

Due from other governmental units
Investments in direct financing leases
Inventory

Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Wages and benefits payable
Deposits and escrows

Due to other governmental units
Retainage

Unearned revenues

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid taxes
Unavailable transportation revenues
Unavailable taxes
Unavailable lease revenues

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Non-spendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Capital Projects

Other Total

Streets & Other Capital Fire & Rescue COVID-19 Governmental Governmental
General Fund Roads Projects Education Levy Response Funds Funds

$ 511,804 41,240 51,689 - 50,579 50,398 58,132 763,842
6 806 6,161 - - - - 6,973

12,970 - - - 257 - 25 13,252

8,402 309 - - 161 164 1,169 10,205

306 - - - - - - 306

25,022 42,732 583 - - - 122 68,459

5,661 - - - - - - 5,661

297 - - - - - 24 321

- - - - - 9 2,163 2,172

S 564,468 85,087 58,433 - 50,997 50,571 61,635 871,191
$ 38,441 18,477 4,420 - 1,411 190 39 62,978
15,909 - - - - 21 1,008 16,938

37,714 - - - 1 - 42 37,757

410 1,280 - - - - 28 1,718

- 806 1,672 - - - - 2,478

79,230 - - - - 50,244 2,299 131,773

171,704 20,563 6,092 - 1,412 50,455 3,416 253,642
114,932 - - - 8,238 - 989 124,159

- 27,214 - - - - - 27,214

8,371 - - - 165 - 5 8,541

4,995 - - - - - - 4,995

128,298 27,214 - - 8,403 - 994 164,909

297 - - - - 9 2,187 2,493

9,505 - - - 41,182 107 55,038 105,832

142,265 37,310 52,341 - - - - 231,916

16,940 - - - - - - 16,940

95,459 - - - - - - 95,459

264,466 37,310 52,341 - 41,182 116 57,225 452,640

S 564,468 85,087 58,433 - 50,997 50,571 61,635 871,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

Exhibit 4
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Government Funds to the Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Fund balances--total governmental funds (Exhibit 3) S 452,640
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit 1) are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds (excludes $4,108, related to Internal Service Fund assets,
which is included in Internal Service Fund net position below). 634,779
Deferred outflows of resources are not financial resources and, therefore are not
reported in the funds:
Deferred loss on bond refundings 27,960
Deferred outflows of resources from OPEB (excludes $458 related to Internal Service Fund) 11,863
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions (excludes $5,098 related to Internal Service Fund) 121,531
Deferred inflows of resources are not available to pay for current-period expenditures:
Deferred inflows of resources - Unavailable transportation revenues 27,214
Deferred inflows of resources - Unavailable taxes 8,541
Deferred inflows of resources - Unavailable lease revenues 4,995
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEBs (excludes $438 related to Internal Services Fund) (17,118)
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions (excludes $75 related to Internal Services Fund) (3,002)
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of certain activities such as
insurance, fleet operations, and data processing to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position. 62,746
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather, is recognized
as an expenditure when due. (15,733)
Sewer and water availability credits were not recognized in the governmental funds, but rather,
are recognized as an expenditure when used. 11,119
Assets are not due in the current period, and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Net OPEB assets 4,070
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds (Note Disclosure 10):
Other long-term obligations (excludes $13,063 related to Internal Service Fund) S (307,912)
Loans payable (21,153)
Bonds payable (180,211)
School bonds payable (879,359)
Capital lease obligations (54,915)
Compensated absences (excludes $2,110 related to Internal Service Fund) (44,686)
Operating settlement - School Board (13,146)
Premiums on bonds issued (114,086)
Total long-term liabilities (1,615,468)
Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 1) S (283,863)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
41



COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA Exhibit 5
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Capital Projects
Other Fire & Other Total
Streets & Capital Rescue COVID-19 Governmental Governmental
General Fund Roads Projects Education Levy Response Funds Funds
REVENUES:
General property taxes S 903,036 52,448 5,678 961,162
Other local taxes 164,044 11,573 175,617
Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses 1,760 19,128 20,888
Fines and forfeitures 1,788 - - - - - 1,788
From use of money and property 15 12 12 (124) 146 8 69
Charges for services 7,157 27 - 15,435 22,619
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal 24,660 9,328 - 75,111 32,400 141,499
State 133,453 25,728 36 484 159,701
Local 7,228 43,533 49 - - 50,810
Miscellaneous 29,115 1,528 - 227 - 20 30,890
Total revenues 1,272,256 80,129 124 52,551 75,257 84,726 1,565,043
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government administration 74,746 3,463 78,209
Judicial administration 27,290 - - - - 27,290
Public safety 284,552 20,802 25,478 18,058 18,620 367,510
Public works 6,991 - 381 7,372
Health and welfare 120,088 10,641 130,729
Education 538,926 28,240 567,166
Parks, recreational and cultural 50,385 150 - 50,535
Community development 13,026 14,591 48,210 75,827
Debt service:
Principal retirement 101,010 101,010
Interest and other debt costs 45,426 - - - 45,426
Capital outlays - 87,368 44,292 116,528 - - 248,188
Total expenditures 1,262,440 87,368 65,094 116,528 25,478 75,143 67,211 1,699,262
Excess / (deficiency) of revenues over /
(under) expenditures 9,816 (7,239) (64,970) (116,528) 27,073 114 17,515 (134,219)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):
Transfers in 53,234 20,295 10,095 - 5,425 89,049
Transfers out (28,475) (13,641) (119) (27,438) (10,854) (80,527)
Issuance of debt - - 44,770 106,510 - 151,280
Premium on debt - 7,450 10,018 17,468
Insurance claims and recoveries 18 - - 18
Sale of surplus property 247 - - 1,648 20 1,915
Total other financing sources / (uses) 25,024 6,654 62,196 116,528 (25,790) - (5,409) 179,203
Net change in fund balances 34,840 (585) (2,774) 1,283 114 12,106 44,984
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 229,032 37,895 55,115 39,899 2 45,119 407,062
Restatement of fund balance (Footnote 1R) 594 - - - - - 594
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 264,466 37,310 52,341 41,182 116 57,225 452,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA Exhibit 6
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds (Exhibit 5) S 44,984

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2)
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:

Add capital acquisitions (exlcudes $1,612 for Internal Service Funds) S 51,226
Add donated infrastucture for community development 9,309
Add donated land for parks, recreation and cultural 19
Subtract depreciation (excludes $1,521 related to Internal Service Fund assets included
in Internal Service Fund net position below) (36,965) 23,589

In the Statement of Activities, only the gain / (loss) on capital assets is reported, while in the
governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the
change in net position differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the
capital assets sold. (5,019)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds:

Add revenues recognized for the water and sewer availability credits refunded (113)
Add amortized premiums 15,650
Add current year's deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable transportation

revenue 27,214
Subtract prior year's deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable

transportation revenue (15,492) 11,722
Add current year's deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable lease

revenue (Note Disclosure 5) 4,995
Subtract prior year's deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable lease

revenue (6,125) (1,130)
Add current year's deferred inflows of resources related to financing activities and

uncollectible tax billings (Note Disclosure 4) 8,541
Subtract prior year's deferred inflows of resources related to financing activities and

uncollectible tax billings (7,463) 1,078

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayments reduce long-term liabilities
in the Statement of Net Position (Note Disclosure 10).

Add debt principal repayment 101,010
Subtract premium (17,468)
Subtract issuance of debt (151,280) (67,738)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Amortized bond refunding losses (3,512)
Add prior year operating settlement - School Board 2,398
Subtract current year operating settlement - School Board (13,147) (10,749)
Add prior year's compensated absences liability (excludes $2,003 for Internal Service

Fund) 40,773
Subtract current year's compensated absences liability (excludes $2,110 for Internal

Service Fund) (44,685) (3,912)
Add prior year's net OPEB accrual (excludes $2,067 for Internal Service Fund) 45,560
Subtract current year's net OPEB accrual (excludes $1,751 for Internal Service Fund) (41,825) 3,735
Add prior year's net pension accruals (excludes $6,308 for Internal Service Fund) 131,369
Subtract current year's net pension accruals (excludes $6,269 for Internal Service Fund) (148,743) (17,374)
Add prior year's accrued interest liability 15,619
Subtract current year's accrued interest liability (15,733) (114)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain services to
individual funds. The net revenue / (expense) of the internal service funds are reported
with governmental activities:
Add internal service funds' change in net position (1,221)

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 2) S (10,124)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 7

ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Restricted cash and temporary investments
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable
Due from other governmental units
Inventory
Prepaid items
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Restricted investments
Notes receivable
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress

Buildings and other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Wages and benefits payable
Deposits and escrows
Retainage
Accrued interest
Unpaid losses, related liabilities and IBNR
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues
Current portion of surplus distributions payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion of bond premiums
Current portion of compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued closure liability
Unpaid losses, related liabilities and IBNR
Surplus distributions payable
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Bond premiums, net of current portion
Net OPEB liabilities
Net pension liabilities
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to OPEB
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investments in capital assets
Restricted for self-insurance funds
Unrestricted

Total net position / (deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Innovation Activities -

Technology Parks & Internal Service

Landfill Park Recreation Totals Funds
20,314 10,944 1 31,259 53,826
16,325 - 491 16,816 17,870
- - - - 18,051

283 32 14 329 4,875
199 - - 199 -
173 - - 173 6

12 4,394 48 4,454 306

- - 20 20 480
37,306 15,370 574 53,250 95,414
- - - - 1,250

172 - - 172 -
30,376 1,083 2,566 34,025 155
14,263 - 1,168 15,431 3,953
44,811 1,083 3,734 49,628 5,358
82,117 16,453 4,308 102,878 100,772
- - 8 8 -

143 - - 143 458
1,506 - - 1,506 5,098
1,649 - 8 1,657 5,556
2,961 155 168 3,284 2,370
191 - 142 333 667

- 19 9 28 -

70 - - 70 -

- - 52 52 -

- - - - 7,431

- - 306 306 -

2,625 - 228 2,853 -
- - - - 836

- - 630 630 -

- - 97 97 -

38 - 3 41 150
5,885 174 1,635 7,694 11,454
16,206 - - 16,206 -
- - - - 15,062

- - - - 1,530

- - 3,525 3,525 -

- - 483 483 -

603 - - 603 1,771
3,338 - - 3,338 11,292
497 - 41 538 1,960
20,644 - 4,049 24,693 31,615
26,529 174 5,684 32,387 43,069
178 - - 178 438

22 - - 22 75

200 - - 200 513
44,639 1,084 (993) 44,730 4,108
- - - - 3,255
12,398 15,195 (375) 27,218 55,383
57,037 16,279 (1,368) 71,948 62,746
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes to Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 8

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel expenses
Contractual services
Materials / supplies
Depreciation
Closure expenses
Costs of sale of land
Other
Claims and premiums
OPEB costs
Losses and loss adjustment expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income / (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES / (EXPENSES):
Interest income
Interest and other debt costs
Loss on sale of capital assets
Total non-operating revenues / (expenses)

Income / (loss) before transfers

TRANSFERS:

Transfers in from:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Fire & rescue levy fund
Capital projects funds

Transfers out to:
General fund
Capital projects funds

Total transfers

Change in net position
NET POSITION, beginning of the year

NET POSITION, end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Innovation Activities -
Technology Parks & Internal Service
Landfill Park Recreation Totals Funds
20,094 5,660 3,290 29,044 118,745
781 - 209 990 5,703
20,875 5,660 3,499 30,034 124,448
5,565 - 426 5,991 17,787
4,688 260 2,844 7,792 28,045
3,580 9 285 3,874 6,606
1,131 - 234 1,365 1,521
2,603 - - 2,603 -
- 385 - 385 -
133 92 5 230 792
- - - - 56,249
- - - - 4,835
- - - - 4,519
17,700 746 3,794 22,240 120,354
3,175 4,914 (295) 7,794 4,094
(15) (2) 121 104 107
- - (470) (470) -
(189) - (29) (218) (105)
(204) (2) (378) (584) 2
2,971 4,912 (673) 7,210 4,096
- 35 1,682 1,717 80
- - - - 401
- - - - 98
- 71 - 71 4
(2,302) - - (2,302) (2,000)
- (2,691) - (2,691) (3,900)
(2,302) (2,585) 1,682 (3,205) (5,317)
669 2,327 1,009 4,005 (1,221)
56,368 13,952 (2,377) 67,943 63,967
57,037 16,279 (1,368) 71,948 62,746
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

Exhibit 9

PROPRIETARY FUNDS Page 1 of 2
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Innovation Activities -
Technology Parks & Internal
Landfill Park Recreation Totals  Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers S 18,891 5,660 3,583 28,134 117,574
Cash received / (paid) from / (to) other entities 452 - (29) 423 6,174
Payments for claims and premiums - - - - (65,047)
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (5,736) (2,286) (3,566) (11,588) (37,979)
Payments to employees for services (5,394) - (460) (5,854) (16,901)
Net cash provided / (used) by operating activities 8,213 3,374 (472) 11,115 3,821
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Surplus distributions paid - - - - (271)
Proceeds from notes receivable 198 - - 198 -
Transfers in - 106 1,682 1,788 583
Transfers out (2,302) (2,691) - (4,993) (5,900)
Net cash provided / (used) by non-capital financing
activities (2,104) (2,585) 1,682 (3,007) (5,588)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets (6,696) - (88) (6,784) (1,611)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 122 - - 122 3
Principal paid on bonds, leases, and other debt - - (1,255) (1,255) -
Interest paid on bonds, leases, and other debt costs - - 71 71 -
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities (6,574) - (1,272) (7,846) (1,608)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from maturities of investments - - - - 15,240
Purchases of investments - - - - (14,597)
Interest and dividends received on investments (13) 4 374 365 316
Net cash provided by investing activities (13) 4 374 365 959
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (478) 793 312 627 (2,416)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 37,117 10,151 180 47,448 74,112
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year S 36,639 10,944 492 48,075 71,696

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

Exhibit 9

PROPRIETARY FUNDS Page 2 of 2
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Innovation Activities -
Technology Parks & Internal
Landfill Park Recreation Totals  Service Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED / (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income / (loss) 3,175 4,914 (295) 7,794 4,094
Adjustments to reconcile operating income / (loss) to
net cash provided / (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,131 - 234 1,365 1,521
Dividends applied to premiums - - - - (1,300)
Change in assets:
(Increase) / decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net of accrued interest (92) - 31 (61) 746
Due from other governmental units (140) - - (140) (6)
Due from component units - - - - 103
Due to related party - - - - (170)
Inventory (5) (1,714) 15 (1,704) 226
Prepaid items - - - - (35)
Change in deferred outflows of resources:
Increase in:
Deferred outflows related to OPEB (14) - 10 (4) (47)
Deferred outflows related to pensions (646) - 61 (585) (2,166)
Change in liabilities:
Increase / (decrease) in:
accrued interest
interest 2,389 155 157 2,701 (2,869)
Retainage 70 - - 70 -
Unpaid losses and related liabilities - - - - 914
Accrued closure liability 2,602 - - 2,602 -
Due from other funds - - (496) (496) -
Unearned revenues (1,1112) - 52 (1,059) -
Deposits and escrows - 19 - 19 -
Other long term liabilities 926 - (220) 706 3,141
Change in deferred inflows of resources:
Increase / (decrease) in:
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 71 - (9) 62 157
Deferred inflows related to pensions (143) - (12) (155) (488)
Total adjustments 5,038 (1,540) (177) 3,321 (273)
Net cash provided / (used) by operating activities 8,213 3,374 (472) 11,115 3,821

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 10

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Cash held by other fiscal agents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of
interest and dividends
Restricted investments:
Money market mutual funds
Equity investments
Real estate investments
Fixed return investments
Life insurance annuity
Total investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Escrow and deposits

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net position restricted for pensions
Net position restricted for OPEB
Net position restricted for other purposes

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Other
Post-Employment
Benefits
(OPEB) and Pension Custodial
Trust Funds Funds
- 1,055
- 101
513 -
146 96
1,112 -
120,962 -
6,664 -
55,030 -
19,529 -
203,297 -
203,956 1,252
4,376 531
- 527
4,376 1,058
75,247 -
124,333 -
- 194
199,580 194




COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 11

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Member
Employer

Total contributions

Collections on behalf of individuals for programs
Sales taxes collected for other governments
Other income

Investment income:
Interest and dividends
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Total investment income
Less: investment expenses
Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Pension and OPEB payments
Refund of members' contributions
Payments on behalf of individuals for programs
Payments of sales taxes to other governments
Administrative expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

Total deductions
Change in net position

NET POSITION, beginning of year
Restatement of net position (Footnote 1R)

NET POSITION, end of year

Other
Post-Employment
Benefits
(OPEB) and Pension Custodial
Trust Funds Funds
2,030 -
10,853 -
12,883 -
- 967
- 712
12 -
3,874 (3)
33,884 -
37,758 (3)
(338) -
37,420 (3)
50,315 1,676
7,133 -
222 -
- 904
- 712
352 -
- 80
7,707 1,696
42,608 (20)
156,972 -
- 214
199,580 194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA Exhibit 12
COMPONENT UNITS
Combining Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Adult
School Detention
Board Center Totals
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments 557,193 13,502 570,695
Cash held by other fiscal agents - 2,347 2,347
Accounts receivable, net 4,637 2 4,639
Due from other governmental units 36,016 1,957 37,973
Due from primary government 13,146 - 13,146
Inventory 7,623 - 7,623
Prepaid items 4 - 4
Net OPEB assets 3,002 784 3,786
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and temporary investments 65,818 7 65,825
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 143,466 51 143,517
Buildings and other capital assets, net of depreciation 1,616,840 102,312 1,719,152
Total assets 2,447,745 120,962 2,568,707
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 29,230 1,354 30,584
Deferred outflows related to pensions 281,406 12,649 294,055
Total deferred outflows of resources 310,636 14,003 324,639
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 18,182 682 18,864
Wages and benefits payable 133,014 1,488 134,502
Retainage 7,510 7 7,517
Unearned revenues 14,265 - 14,265
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 24,012 275 24,287
Due in more than one year 1,179,532 34,791 1,214,323
Total liabilities 1,376,515 37,243 1,413,758
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 35,051 2,392 37,443
Deferred inflows related to pensions 63,884 398 64,282
Total deferred inflows of resources 98,935 2,790 101,725
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,760,307 102,363 1,862,670
Restricted for:
Capital projects 57,857 - 57,857
Net OPEB asset 3,002 784 3,786
Food and nutrition services 64,284 - 64,284
Other purposes 16,184 - 16,184
Unrestricted (618,703) (8,215) (626,918)
Total net position 1,282,931 94,932 1,377,863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
COMPONENT UNITS

Combining Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 13
Page 1 of 2

Program Revenues

Operating Grants

Charges for and Capital Grants and
Functions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
School Board
Instruction $ 903,136 2,043 209,917 127
Support services 472,117 2,833 70,259 -
Business-type activities 1,632 686 - -
Education foundation 3,214 - 2,587 -
Adult Detention Center 56,297 223 12,427 -
Total component units S 1,436,396 5,785 295,190 127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 13
Page 2 of 2

Net (Expense) / Revenue and Changes in Net Position

School Adult Detention
Board Center Totals Functions / Programs
School Board
(691,049) - (691,049) Instruction
(399,025) - (399,025) Support services
(946) - (946) Business-type activities
(627) - (627) Education foundation
- (43,647) (43,647) Adult Detention Center
(1,091,647) (43,647) (1,135,294) Total component units
General revenues:
774,260 52,538 826,798 Payment from primary government
692 - 692 Federal revenues
485,651 - 485,651 State revenues
- 4,691 4,691 Local revenues
3,288 (126) 3,162 Investment earnings
5,575 876 6,451 Miscellaneous
1,269,466 57,979 1,327,445 Total general revenues
177,819 14,332 192,151 Change in net position
1,096,906 78,421 1,175,327 NET POSITION, beginning of year
8,206 2,179 10,385 Restatement of net position (Footnote 1R)
1,282,931 94,932 1,377,863 NET POSITION - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands, except percentages, ratios and years)

The County of Prince William, Virginia (the County) prepares its financial statements, commonly known as the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing governmental accounting and financial reporting
standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (statements and interpretations), constitutes GAAP for
governmental units. The accounting and reporting framework and significant accounting principles and practices utilized by the
County are discussed in subsequent sections of this note. The remaining notes are organized to provide explanations, including
required disclosures, of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

A. Principles Used to Determine the Reporting Entity

The County is organized under the County Executive form of government, as provided for by Commonwealth of Virginia (the
Commonwealth) law. Under this form of government, the policies concerning the financial and business affairs of the County are
determined by the Board of County Supervisors (the Board). The Board is composed of eight elected members who serve four-year
terms. The Board appoints a County Executive who is the government’s chief administrative officer and executes the Board’s policies
and programs. The accompanying financial statements include the County’s primary government and component units over which
the County exercises significant influence. Significant influence or accountability is based primarily on operational or financial
benefit/burden relationships with the County (as distinct from legal relationships).

Due to restrictions of the State Constitution relating to the issuance of municipal debt, the County created public trusts to finance
County services with revenue bonds or other non-general obligation financing. Financing services provided by these public trusts
are solely for the benefit of the County. Public trusts created to provide financing services are blended into the County’s primary
government although retaining separate legal identity. Component units that do not meet the criteria for blending are reported
discretely.

Illustration 1-1 illustrates potential component units and the reporting method in the County’s ACFR.

Illustration 1-1
Potential Component Units

The following are blended component units included due to a financial benefit / burden relationship where the two Boards
are substantially the same:

Prince William Parkway Exercise the powers and duties enumerated in the Code of Virginia related to the
District transportation improvement district.

Authorized by the Code of Virginia and established by Board resolution. Set the appropriate
Route 234 Bypass District tax rate to fund improvements within the district and act on transportation matters within
the district.

The following are blended component units included due to a financial benefit / burden relationship where majority of the
Board is appointed by the County:

Self-Insurance Group Authorized by the Code of Virginia and licensed by the State Corporation Commission. Make
Workers’ Compensation available a long-term, stable source of cost-effective workers’ compensation insurance
Association protection for participating members.

Authorized by the Code of Virginia and licensed by the State Corporation Commission. Make
available a long-term, stable source of cost-effective casualty insurance protection for
participating members.

Self-Insurance Group
Casualty Pool
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Illustration 1-1 (cont’d)
Potential Component Units

The following are discretely presented component units where the County can impose its will through the appointment of a
voting majority of the Board and a financial benefit / burden relationship exists:

Adult Detention Center (ADC)

Authorized by the Code of Virginia. Establish policy for operation of Prince William County-
Manassas regional adult detention center, providing care and confinement for County and
adjoining city prisoners.

The following are discretely presented component units where fiscal dependency exists, but the two Boards are separate and
independent, and the component unit provides services to the County:

School Board

Authorized by the Code of Virginia and established by Board resolution to provide
educational services to the County. The School board cannot issue bonded debt and receives
a large portion of its operating funds from the County. The County make policies governing
school division.

The following are jointly governed organizations where none of the inclusion criteria have been met:

District Home Board

Northern Virginia Health
Center Commission

Northern Virginia Special
Education Regional Program

Governor’s School
@Innovation Park

Manassas Regional Airport

Agreement between the five northern Virginia jurisdictions (Prince William County, Fairfax
County, Loudoun County, Fauquier County and City of Alexandria) pursuant to the Code of
Virginia. Establishes policy for operations of two district homes.

Board resolution created a commission for the operation of a nursing home pursuant to the
Code of Virginia. Develops and establishes policies for the operation of a nursing home.
Service agreement between five northern Virginia jurisdictions (Prince William County,
Fairfax County, Loudoun County, Fauquier County and City of Alexandria).

Agreement between Prince William County School Division and the Cities of Manassas and
Manassas Park to foster cooperation in the development and delivery of special education
programs and other appropriate educational services.

Agreement between Prince William County School Division and the Cities of Manassas and
Manassas Park to deliver an advanced and intensive program in science, technology,
engineering, and mathematics (STEM) for selected high school juniors and seniors.

Agreement between Prince William County and the City of Manassas for the establishment
and operation of a regional airport

The following are related organizations where none of the inclusion criteria have been met (see Note 17):

Industrial Development
Authority (IDA)

Service Authority

Northern Virginia Criminal
Justice Training Academy
(NVCITA)

Authorized by the Code of Virginia and established by Board resolution. Promotes industry
and economic development by inducing businesses to locate or remain in the State and
County.

Authorized by the Code of Virginia and established by Board resolution. Provide water and
sewer utilities to County residents.

Established by Board resolution. Construct an Emergency Vehicle Operations Center in
which the County has a 30% interest.
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lllustration 1-1 (cont’d)
Potential Component Units

Northern Virginia
Transportation Authority
(NVTA)

Authorized by the Code of Virginia. Focused on delivering real transportation solutions and
value for Northern Virginia's transportation

The following are joint ventures where there is an ongoing financial responsibility, but no ongoing financial interest and no
explicit and measurable equity interest is deemed to exist (see Note 18):

Joint venture between Prince William County and Stafford County, the Cities of Manassas,
Manassas Park and Fredericksburg. Manages and operates OmniRide (regional) and
OmniLink (County-wide) bus system as well as the Virginia Railway Express (VRE), the
regional train system. Operations are funded by the State 2% Motor Fuel Tax. Each
jurisdiction has a representative on the PRTC Board. The County also funds PRTC's lease
payments.

Potomac & Rappahannock
Transportation Commission
(PRTC)

Prince William Self-Insurance Group Workers’ Compensation Association (the Association) and the Prince William Self-Insurance
Group Casualty Pool (the Pool), blended component units of the County, issue separately audited financial statements. Copies of
these financial statements may be obtained by writing to the Prince William County Finance Department, Office of Risk & Wellness
Services, 4379 Ridgewood Center Drive, Prince William, Virginia 22192.

The School Board, a discretely presented component unit of the County, issues separately audited financial statements. Copies of
these financial statements may be obtained by writing to the School Board’s Finance Division, P.O. Box 389, Manassas, Virginia
20118.

The Adult Detention Center, a discretely presented component unit of the County, does not issue separately audited financial
statements.

All accounts of the County and its component units are reported as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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B. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements include both fund financial statements which are based on major individual funds, and government-
wide financial statements, which are based on the County as a whole (see lllustration 1-2, below).

lllustration 1-2
Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

Modified Accrual Basis . .
of unting Accrual Basis of Accounting

£
v Pension / OPEB Trust
£ General Fund Internal Service Funds® Enterprise Funds /
o Funds
a
2 Capital Projects Funds Custodial Funds
T
£ . .
5 Special Revenue Funds Not included in
£ government-wide
o ’ financial statements

Entries to Reconcile to
Accrual Basis of
Accounting

\ 4

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Government-Wide

Financial Statements of
Component Units

Government-Wide Financial Statements of the Primary Government

Government-Wide Financial Statements of the Total Reporting Entity

* - The County’s Internal Service Funds predominantly serve funds of the County Government.

Fund Financial Statements:

At the most basic level, the financial transactions of the County are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is a separate accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprise the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, fund equity (including reserves), revenues and expenditures / expenses related to a specific group of activities of the
government. Emphasis is on major funds in the governmental or business-type categories. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth
minimum criteria for the determination of major funds. Certain funds that do not meet the criteria specified in GASB Statement No.
34 to be treated as major funds are nonetheless presented as major due to the specific community focus on the activities of the
fund. The non-major funds in each category are combined in a column in the fund financial statements and detailed in the combining
and individual fund statements and schedules section.

The following major funds are used by the County:

Governmental Funds:

The focus of governmental fund measurement in the fund financial statements is based on the determination of financial position
and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is

a description of the major governmental funds of the County:

. General Fund — The General Fund accounts for numerous primary services of the County (Police, Fire, Public Works,
Community Development, Debt Service, etc.) and is the primary operating unit of the County. It accounts for all financial
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resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for by another fund.

. Streets and Roads Capital Projects Fund — The Streets and Roads Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the resources
and expenditures related to the construction of sidewalks and roads within the County.

. Other Capital Projects Fund — The Other Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the resources and expenditures related
to construction projects such as libraries and parks, facilities to be used by police, detention and fire and rescue agencies, and
storm water management ponds and channels.

. Educational Capital Projects Fund — Education Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the resources obtained exclusively
for the construction of school buildings and other school projects (proceeds from bonds). Such resources are immediately
provided to the School Board Component Unit in support of those projects.

. Fire & Rescue Levy Special Revenue Fund — The Fire & Rescue Levy Special Revenue fund is used to account for fire and rescue
services. Revenues are principally derived from tax levy and interest earnings. Expenditures consist of the cost of delivering
fire and rescue services.

. COVID-19 Response Fund — The COVID-19 Response Special Revenue Fund is used to account for federal grant funds received
under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act of 2020 and the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of
2021 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented using a current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner which GAAP has prescribed as the most appropriate to (a) demonstrate legal and
covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate the source and use of liquid financial resources, and (c) demonstrate how the County’s actual
experience conforms to the legally adopted budget. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the governmental activities column on the government-wide financial statements,
reconciliations are presented which briefly explain the adjustments necessary to reconcile the governmental fund financial
statements to the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary Funds:
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is based on the determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial

position, and cash flows, which is similar to a business enterprise. The following is a description of the major proprietary funds of
the County:

. Landfill Fund — The Prince William County Landfill provides refuse disposal services.
. Innovation Technology Park Fund — Innovation Technology Park provides land for economic development purposes.
. Parks & Recreation Fund — The Prince William County Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism provides recreation

services to County residents at the golf courses, Waterworks and Splashdown Water Park.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Landfill Fund, the Innovation Technology Park Fund and the internal
service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses of the enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the costs of providing services, such as personnel, contracting and supplies, as well as depreciation. Additionally, landfill
closure costs are included in operating expenses of the Landfill Fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The County’s enterprise funds, presented in the proprietary fund financial statements, are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The County’s enterprise funds use the services of the internal service funds,
and these transactions are not eliminated when producing the government-wide statements.
In addition to the major funds discussed above, the County reports on the following internal service fund types:

e  The County operates a construction crew, an information technology center, and a fleet maintenance facility. In addition, the

County operates four self-insurance funds — three for risk management services that provide insurance for workers’
compensation, general liability, and other insurance needs of the County and the Adult Detention Center, and one that
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provides health insurance for eligible participating County employees. The effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated
from the government-wide financial statements. The excess revenues or expenses for the fund are allocated to the
appropriate functional activity. The internal service funds are included in governmental activities column for government-
wide reporting purposes. Inter-fund services that are provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

The County’s internal service funds (which typically provide services to other funds of the government) are presented in a consolidated
column in the proprietary fund financial statements. Since the principal users of these services are the County’s governmental
activities, the financial statements of the internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental activities’ column in the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the costs of these services are allocated in the appropriate functional
category of the Government-Wide Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the government acting as a trustee or custodian for entities external to the
governmental unit. Trust funds and custodial funds are the two types of fiduciary funds. The measurement focus for trust fiduciary
funds is economic resources and the basis of accounting is accrual basis for fiduciary funds, reporting resources held in a custodial
capacity.

. Supplemental Pension Plan (SSP) Trust Fund — The County accounts for a defined benefit trust to provide Supplemental
Pension Plan benefits to sworn and uniformed police officers, fire fighters and Sheriff and Adult Detention Center personnel.

. LOSAP Trust Fund — The County accounts for a length of service award program that provides benefits for certified volunteer
fire department and rescue squad members.

. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund — The County uses this fund to account for post-employment
benefits other than pensions for eligible employees of the County and to account for post-employment benefits that provide
death, disability, and healthcare benefits for public safety employees and volunteer fire department and rescue squad
members.

. Custodial Funds — The County accounts for receipts and disbursements of monies for certain County welfare, mental health
services and federal self-sufficiency program recipients as well as shares a portion of the sales taxes collected to the Towns of
Dumfries, Quantico, Occoquan, and Haymarket.

The County’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type (supplemental pension trust fund, length of
service award pension trust fund, other post-employment benefits master trust fund, and custodial funds). Since by definition,
assets of these funds are held for the benefit of a third party (pension participants, other post-employment benefit participants,
private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to satisfy obligations of the County, these funds are not incorporated into the government-
wide financial statements. Separate financial statements are not issued for SSP Trust Fund, LOSAP Trust Fund and OPEB Master
Trust Fund.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) report information on all the
non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. The focus of the government-wide financial statements
is more on sustainability of the County as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from activities of the
fiscal period. As a rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from these statements. Governmental activities, which
are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely,
to a significant extent, on fees and other charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the
County’s discretely presented component units.

In the government-wide statement of net position, the governmental and business-type activities columns are presented on a
consolidated basis by column and are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, which incorporates long-term assets as well as long-term debt and obligations. Inter-fund balances between
governmental funds and inter-fund balances between enterprise funds are included in the government-wide statement of net
position.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given functional category
(public safety, public works, etc.) or business-type activity (landfill, etc.) are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
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that are clearly identifiable with a specific functional category or business-type activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given functional
category or business-type activity and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital requirements
of a particular functional category or business-type activity. Taxes and other items that are not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

C. Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures / expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied. The government-wide financial statements, the proprietary fund financial statements, the fiduciary fund financial
statements, and the component unit financial statements are presented on an accrual basis of accounting. The governmental fund
financial statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting.

Accrual Basis of Accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual, meaning that to be considered revenue of the reporting period, the amount must be both measurable and available.
“Available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the County considers the availability period for all significant revenue sources to be 60 days after the end of the
current fiscal period. Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables when billed, net of
allowances for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes due, but not collected within 60 days after year-end, are reflected as deferred
inflows of resources. Derived tax revenues such as sales and utility taxes that are collected by the Commonwealth or utility
companies, and subsequently remitted to the County, are recognized as revenues and receivables when the underlying exchange
transaction occurs, which is generally two months preceding receipt by the County. Licenses, permits and fines are recorded as
revenues when received. Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of Federal, State, and other grants for the purpose of
funding specific expenditures, are recognized when earned or at the time of the specific expenditure, except for Streets and Roads
Capital Projects Fund that considers the availability period for all significant revenue sources to be 60 days after the end of the
current fiscal period. Revenues from general-purpose grants are recognized in the period to which the grant applies. Interest
earnings are recorded as earned.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt is recognized when due.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. Budgets for all governmental funds of
the Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Units of the County are adopted by the Board annually on a non-
GAAP basis which excludes the effects of fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of investments required by GASB Statement
No. 31 and GASB Statement No. 72 (see Note Disclosure 1.G). Reconciliations between the non-GAAP basis amounts presented for
budgetary comparisons and the GAAP basis amounts presented elsewhere in the ACFR are shown on the face of the budgetary
comparison schedules (Schedules 1, 2, 3, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23).

Project length financial plans are adopted for all capital projects funds. However, the County’s Capital Improvement Plan is a five
year plan identifying which projects the County is planning on initiating and the Board budgets and appropriates project length
budgets for new capital projects for the first year of the Plan. In mid-February, the County Executive submits to the Board, a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

The Board holds work sessions to review the proposed budget and conducts two public hearings to obtain taxpayer comments. The
budget is legally adopted by the Board within the timelines stipulated by the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended (Code of Virginia).

The Board appropriates the budget on an annual basis. During the year, several supplemental appropriations are necessary. The

Board adopts resolutions for supplemental appropriations that increase or decrease the adopted budget. Departmental
expenditures may not exceed Board approved appropriations, which lapse at the end of the year.
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The Board appropriates available balances from one fiscal year to the next resulting from projected surplus revenues and budget
savings generated during the year through departmental spending control efforts. The Board also authorizes the Director of Finance
to administratively reduce the amount of available balances approved should the actual funds to support the appropriation be
insufficient after completion of the County’s year end closing cycle.

The budget is controlled at certain legal as well as administrative levels. The Code of Virginia requires the County to annually adopt
a balanced budget. The Board’s Annual Adopted Budget resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the department level
(i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations). Management approves budget transfers of any amount
between major expenditure categories within departments and in certain limited cases these are reviewed by the Board. Budget
transfers of twenty thousand dollars or more between departments are approved by the Board. The Board approves resolutions for
supplemental appropriations that increase or decrease (amend) the original budget. Only the Board can amend the budget. All
budgets and appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Annual transfers out are appropriated in the General and Special revenue Fuds for the component units of the County. Expenditures
in all governmental funds of the County were within authorized budget limitations.

Annual transfers out are appropriated in the General and Special Revenue Funds for the component units of the County.
Expenditures in all governmental funds of the County were within authorized budget limitations, except for:

e  On schedule 1, the sheriff and transportation costs exceeded the amount budgeted for fiscal year 2021. The sheriff and
transportation incurred additional costs due to overtime and salary costs.

Where required, the governmental fund financial statements provide budgetary comparison schedules that demonstrate
compliance at the legal level of budgetary control.

E. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, the recording of purchase orders, contracts, and other mandatory commitments for the expenditure of
monies to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in all
governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as restricted, committed, or assigned fund balance,
depending on the source of funding and/or the specific constraints on the funds encumbered, since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities. Encumbrances are normally re-appropriated each year by Board resolution. For more detailed
information, see Note Disclosure 11, Fund Balances / Net Position.

F. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash on hand, deposits, and highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, as well as the County’s cash management pool, are grouped into equity in pooled cash and investments. These
pooled cash and investments, as well as restricted cash and temporary investments are cash and cash equivalents.

The County invests in an externally managed investment pool, the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP),
which is not SEC-registered. The Treasury Board of the Commonwealth of Virginia has regulatory oversight of the LGIP, which is
managed as a “2a-7 like pool”. The portfolio securities are valued by the amortized cost method with maturities of thirteen months
or less. The fair value of the County’s position in the LGIP is the same as the value of the pool shares. The LGIP does not have any
limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals.

The County maintains a single cash and investment pool for use by all funds and component units, except for the Supplemental
Pension Plan Trust Fund, certain enterprise and internal service funds, the School Board Student Activity Fund, the School Education
Foundation, and the Community Services Board Payee Accounts. Each fund participates on a dollar equivalent and daily transaction
basis. Interest is distributed monthly based on average daily cash balances. A “zero balance account” mechanism provides for daily
sweeps of deposits made to the County’s checking accounts, resulting in an instantaneous transfer to the investment account.
Hence, the majority of the County’s funds are always invested.

Bond proceeds are maintained to comply with the provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986 or as required by various bond
indentures.

Investments are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices. Interest earnings are allocated monthly to the respective funds
based on the percentage of each fund’s average daily balance of cash investments in the total pool.
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G. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value was estimated for each class of financial instrument for which it was practical to estimate fair value. Fair value is defined
as the price in the principal market that would be received for an asset to facilitate an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Market participants are assumed to be independent, knowledgeable, able, and willing to
transact an exchange and not acting under duress. Fair value hierarchy disclosures are based on the quality of inputs used to
measure fair value.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). Adjustments to transaction prices or quoted market prices may be
required in illiquid or disorderly markets to estimate fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities traded in active
markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, significant other observable inputs, inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology are significant unobservable for the asset or liability and are significant to the fair
value measurement.

H. Inventories and Prepaid items

Inventory is valued at cost for all governmental funds and at lower of cost or market for all other funds using the first-in, first-out
method. Inventory in the General Fund as well as certain Enterprise and Internal Service Funds consists of expendable supplies held
for consumption and land held for resale. The cost is recorded as an expenditure / expense at the time individual inventory items
are consumed. Reported inventories for governmental funds are offset equally by a non-spendable fund balance which indicates
they do not constitute available expendable resources, even though they are a component of assets.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. Items are expended / expensed in the period they are used.

I.  Due from Other Funds, Component Units and Governmental Units

Noncurrent portions of long-term inter-fund loans receivable (reported in due from accounts in the asset section) and amounts due
from other governments are equally offset by a committed fund balance account which indicates that they do not constitute
available expendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation.

J.  Compensated Absences

In governmental fund types, the cost of vacation and sick pay benefits (compensated absences) is recognized when payments are
made to employees. A liability for all governmental fund type vested accrued vacation and sick pay benefits is recorded as
noncurrent liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position. Proprietary fund types accrue vacation and sick leave
benefits in the period they are earned.

K. Self-Insurance and Health Insurance Long-Term Liabilities

The County, and the Adult Detention Center component unit participate in the Prince William Self-Insurance Group Casualty Pool
and Workers' Compensation Association, which provide casualty insurance and workers' compensation protection for the members.
Under GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, the Pool and
the Association are classified as “entities other than pools” because the County and its component units are the only participants.
The County provides three self-insured health insurance program options to its employees. Estimated liability for claims payable
includes estimates of losses on claims reported and actuarial determinations of claims incurred but not reported.

L. Capital Assets

The cost of capital assets acquired for general government purposes is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental funds and
as an asset in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the County’s capitalization threshold has been met. Capital
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assets acquired by proprietary funds are recorded as assets in both the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary
fund financial statements to the extent the County’s capitalization threshold has been met. The County capitalizes assets (non-
software) costing at least ten thousand dollars and having an estimated useful life longer than one year. The County capitalizes
software costing at least one hundred thousand dollars and having an estimated useful life longer than one year. The School Board
component unit’s capitalization thresholds differ from the County’s. Details of their capitalization thresholds are discussed in their
separately issued financial statements.

All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no
historical records exist. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value as of the date of donation per GASB Statement
No.72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.

Maintenance, repairs, and minor renovations are charged to operations when incurred. Expenditures that materially increase
values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation is eliminated from the respective accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the determination of change in
net position for the period.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis -- for State and
Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, the County’s
infrastructure and commercial “off-the-shelf” software has been capitalized retroactively, to 1980. Of the $241 million in capitalized
infrastructure as of June 30, 2021, approximately $190 million was valued using actual historical cost records and approximately
$51 million was estimated.

Using current replacement cost for a similar asset and deflating this cost using price indices to the acquisition year. $63 million of
intangible software capitalized on June 30, 2021, was valued using project costing models. The County does not capitalize streets
and roads as these are transferred to and become property of the Commonwealth of Virginia upon completion.

Capital assets of the primary government and the Adult Detention Center component unit are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of purchased, donated, and leased assets as follows:

Public domain (infrastructure) 40-50 years
Buildings 20-40 years
Improvements to sites 2-50 years
Equipment 2-20 years
Vehicles 3-10 years
Library collections 5 years
Intangible assets 5-15 years

Depreciation on the County’s solid waste landfill liner system is calculated based on the percentage of the landfill liner’s capacity
used each year.

Details of the School Board component unit’s depreciation methods and estimated useful lives are discussed in their separately
issued financial statements.

Impaired capital assets that are no longer used are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value. An asset is considered
impaired if both (a) the decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and (b) the event or change in circumstance
is outside the normal life of the capital asset.

M. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are reported in a separate section, immediately following assets, on the Statements of Net Position
and Balance Sheets. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of resources that benefit future period(s) and will be
recognized in future periods as an expenditure/expense when they are used. Prince William County has the following deferred
outflows of resources: deferred loss on refunding and deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB.

Deferred inflows of resources are reported in a separate section, immediately following liabilities, on the Statements of Net Position
and Balance Sheets. Deferred inflows represent an acquisition of resources that will be used in future reporting periods and will be
recognized as revenues in future periods. Prince William County has the following deferred inflows of resources: prepaid and
unavailable taxes, transportation revenues, lease revenues and deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB.
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N. Pensions and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Prince William County’s defined benefit pension
plans and the additions to/deductions from the County’s defined benefit pension plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined
on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), Prince William County Supplemental Plan for
Police Officers and Uniformed Fire and Rescue Personnel Plan and Prince William County Volunteer Fire and Rescue Personnel
Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB,
and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County’s Virginia Retirement System (VRS) OPEB Plans and
the additions to/deductions from the Prince William County’s OPEB Master Trust Fund net fiduciary position have been determined
on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), Prince William County Premium Plan, Prince
William County Retiree Health Insurance Credit Plan (RHICP) and Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Plan. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

0. Fund Balance

Non-spendable fund balances represent amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form. Restricted fund
balances represent those portions of fund balance which have constraints placed upon their use by either external sources or
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed and assigned fund balances represent the
County's managerial plans for future use of financial resources. Unassigned, fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund. For more detail information, see Note Disclosure 11, Fund Balances / Net Position.

The County’s highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of County Supervisors. The formal action required to establish,
modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a resolution of the Board of County Supervisors. Department directors have the
authority to approve the assignment of fund balance through encumbrance of funds, and the County Executive has the authority to
modify or rescind any fund balance assignment per §100.12(D)2.a of the County’s Purchasing Regulations.

P. Leases

For capital leases in the governmental fund types, acquisition costs are recorded as expenditures with an offsetting entry to other
financing sources.

Q. Deferred Gain (Loss) on Debt Refundings
Losses resulting from advance or current refundings of debt in government-wide and proprietary statements are deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the old debt. The amount is deferred and reported as
an unamortized gain (loss) on refunding and is amortized and reported as a component of interest expense.
R. Restatements due to the Implementation of GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities
GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities issued January 2017, is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The County implemented the
requirements of this standard.
i. Impact on Prince William County’s ACFR:
The County and Prince William County Schools (Schools) implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in fiscal
year 2021, which established clarifying guidance regarding the classification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial

reporting purposes.

The County reviewed existing fiduciary activity as well as other activity that might classify as fiduciary activity under the new
guidance and determined the following:

e Confirmed that the County’s Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans (OPEB) will remain classified as a
fiduciary activity in the County’s financial statements and is considered a component unit under GASB 84.

e Reclassify the Innovation Owners’ Association fund, Historic Preservation Foundation fund, Library Donations fund,
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Police Donations fund, Animal Donations fund, and Liberty Donations fund from fiduciary activity funds to the General

Fund.

e Reclassify the Special Welfare fund, Community Services Board Payees fund, and Housing FSS Recipients fund to an

updated fiduciary activity classification known as Custodial Funds.

e Reclassify Sales Taxes Collected on Behalf of the Towns from the General Fund to a Fiduciary Activity — Custodial Fund.

The implementation of GASB 84 had the following effect on beginning fund balance and net position of the County as reported

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021:

Illustration 1-3
Restated County Net Position

Previously Reported GASB 84 Restated Beginning
Beginning Net Position Reclassification Net Position

Government-Wide:
Governmental Activities S (274,330) 594 (273,736)

Illustration 1-4
Restated County Fund Balance

Previously Reported GASB 84 Restated Beginning
Beginning Net Position Reclassification Net Position

Governmental Funds:
General Fund S 229,032 594 229,626
Total Governmental Funds 407,065 594 407,659

ii. Impact on Prince William County’s Adult Detention Center (ADC) ACFR:

The County reviewed other activity not previously identified as fiduciary activity that might classify as fiduciary activity under

the new guidance and determined the following:

e The County reviewed ADC’s commissary account and determined that its activity should be classified as activity under

ADC’s General Operating Fund. See lllustrations 1-5 and 1-6.

e The County reviewed ADC’s Inmate Accounts and determined that they comply with the definition of Fiduciary Activity
— Custodial Fund with a net position of $118, which is immaterial to the County. Therefore, we will pass on presenting

Statements for Fiduciary Activities.

The implementation of GASB 84 had the following effect on beginning fund balance and net position of the ADC as reported for

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021:
lllustration 1-5
Restated ADC Net Position

Previously Reported
Beginning Fund Balance

GASB 84
Reclassification

Restated Beginning
Fund Balance

Government-Wide:

Governmental Activities S 48,421
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lllustration 1-6
Restated ADC Fund Balance

Previously Reported GASB 84 Restated Beginning
Beginning Fund Balance Reclassification Fund Balance
Governmental Funds:
General Fund S 8,294 2,179 10,473
Total Governmental Funds (5,670) 2,179 (3,491)
iiil. Impact on Prince William County Schools’ ACFR:

Prince William County Schools (PWCS) adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in FY 2021. GASB 84 establishes
specific criteria for identifying fiduciary activities and the requirements for financial statement reporting. The PWCS reviewed
its funds for proper classification and decided to reclassify the Student Activity Fund (SAF) from Fiduciary fund to Special Revenue
fund as part of Governmental Funds. The Governor’s School @Innovation Park fund and the Regional School Fund met the new
custodial fund criteria and remain as Fiduciary Funds.

The SAF restricted accounts and balances were reclassified from PWCS’ Fiduciary Net Position to the Governmental Restricted
Fund Balance. The reclassification prompted PWCS to restate the following statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020:
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet; Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances; Fiduciary Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position; and Custodial Fund Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities.

The implementation of GASB 84 had the following effect on beginning fund balance and net position of the Schools as reported
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021:

lllustration 1-7
Restated Schools Net Position

Previously Reported GASB 84 Fund  Restated Beginning
Beginning Fund Balance Reclassification Fund Balance

Government-Wide:
Governmental Activities S 1,096,906 8,206 1,105,112

Illustration 1-8
Restated Schools Fund Balance

Previously Reported GASB 84 Fund  Restated Beginning
Beginning Fund Balance Reclassification Fund Balance
Governmental Funds:
Other Non-Major Governmental $ 3688 8,207 11,894
Funds
Total Governmental Funds 293,536 8,207 301,743

A. Cash Deposits

All cash of the County is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the
Act), §2.2-4400 through 2.2-4411 of the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, qualified public depositories shall elect to secure deposits
by either the pooled method or the dedicated method. Every qualified public depository shall deposit with a qualified escrow agent
eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral. If any qualified public depository fails, the collateral pool becomes
available to satisfy the claims of governmental entities. The Commonwealth Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring
compliance with the collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act. Funds deposited in accordance with the requirements
of the Act are considered fully secured and are not subject to custodial credit risk.
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B. Investments

County Investments

Code of Virginia §2.2-4501 through 2.2-4600 authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof;
obligations of the Commonwealth or political subdivisions thereof; obligations of other states not in default; obligations of the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank); the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank;
“prime quality” commercial paper; negotiable certificates of deposits and negotiable bank notes; corporate notes; banker's
acceptances; overnight, term and open repurchase agreements; money market mutual funds; the State Treasurer's Local
Government Investment Pool (LGIP); non-negotiable certificates of deposit and deposits with federally insured banks and savings
institutions that are qualified to accept public deposits. However, in some instances, the County’s own investment policy is more
stringent as to authorized investments as discussed below.

Bond proceeds shall be invested in accordance with the requirements and restrictions outlined in bond documents. Bond proceeds
shall be invested in the Virginia State Non-Arbitrage Program (SNAP) (or its equivalent) or in individual portfolios that aid local
governments in the investment of bond proceeds and the preparation of rebate calculations in compliance with treasury arbitrage
rebate regulations in accordance with the Code of Virginia requirements and the County’s own investment policy.

In accordance with State Corporation Commission of Virginia (SCC) regulations for the licensing of the Prince William County Self-
Insurance Group (PWSIG) Workers' Compensation Association and Casualty Pool, the Association and the Pool are required to
deposit securities with the State Treasurer. As of June 30, 2021, the Self-Insurance Workers’ Compensation Association had $1,001
in U.S. Government Agency Securities deposited with the State Treasurer to comply with the $750 requirement, including $250
serving as a security deposit in lieu of a surety bond. The remainder serves as additional collateral because the Association does not
maintain aggregate excess insurance. As of June 30, 2021, the Casualty Pool had $799 in U.S. Government Agency Securities
deposited with the State Treasurer to comply with the $500 requirement since the Pool does not maintain aggregate excess
insurance. While these securities are held by the State Treasurer, they are in the name of the Association and the Pool and are
included in the investments of those funds.

The County and its discretely presented component units’ investments are subject to interest rate, credit, custodial and
concentration of credit risks as described below:

Interest Rate Risk — As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, the County’s
investment policy states that at the time of purchase, the weighted average maturity of the portfolio as a whole may not exceed five
(5) years. Further, the County may not directly invest in securities maturing in more than ten (10) years from the date of purchase
(unless the investment is maturity matched to long term cash flow requirements).

The weighted average maturity for the PWSIG Workers’ Compensation Association and Casualty Pool portfolios may not exceed three
(3) years except where to the extent that assets are purchased specifically for collateral deposits with the Commonwealth of Virginia
as required by the SCC. The final maturity of any individual security may not exceed five (5) years from the time of purchase, except
where an asset is matched to a specific obligation of the PWSIG.
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Illustration 2-1 reflects the fair value and the weighted average maturity (WAM) of the County’s investments as of June 30, 2021.

Illustration 2-1
Fair Value and Weighted Average Maturity of Investments
June 30, 2021

Weighted Average
Fair Value Maturity (Years)
Primary Government, School Board, and ADC
Money Markets and Money Market Mutual Funds:
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) S 261,442 0.003
State Non-Arbitrage Program (SNAP) 68,829 0.003
PFM Money Market 10,1398 0.003
Other Money Market 22,346 0.003
NOW Accounts 73,032 0.003
Certificate of Deposits 25,000 0.044
U.S. Treasury Notes 5,289 3.877
U.5. Government Agency Securities 696,256 6.411
Corporate Bonds 173,852 2.041
Municipal Bonds 205,274 5.896
Total Primary Government, School Board, and ADC 1,541,459
Total Reporting Entity Investments S 1,54i,459 3.926

WAM expresses investment time horizons, the time when investments become due and payable, in years, weighted to reflect the
dollar size of the individual investments within an investment type. The portfolio’s WAM is derived by dollar-weighting the WAM
for each investment type. For purposes of the WAM calculation, the County assumes that all its investments will be held to maturity.

Credit Risk — State statutes authorize the County to invest in various instruments as described above. The County’s Investment Policy
provides for investment in obligations of other states and political subdivisions outside of the Commonwealth of Virginia rated at
least AA by two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSROs). It is also County policy to invest in negotiable
certificates of deposits from banks with a rating of at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s and P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service for
maturities of one year or less. The County may also invest in corporate notes that have a rating of at least Aa by Moody’s Investors
Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s. Furthermore, the County will only invest in money market or mutual funds with a rating of
AAA by at least one NRSRO; “prime quality” commercial paper rated by at least two of the following: Moody’s Investors Service
within its NRSRO/Moody’s rating of Prime 1; Standard & Poor’s within its rating of A-1; Fitch Ratings Inc. within its rating of F-1; or
by their corporate successors, provided that at the time of any such investment the issuing corporation has a net worth of at least
$50 million and the net income of the issuing corporation has averaged $3 million per year for the previous five years and all existing
senior bonded indebtedness of the issuer is rated A or its equivalent by at least two of the following: Moody’s Investors Service,
Standard & Poor’s or Fitch Ratings Inc.; and banker’s acceptances with U.S. banks or domestic offices of international banks provided
that the bank’s assets exceed $500 million or $1 billion respectively.

Bond proceeds must be invested in accordance with the requirements and restrictions outlined in bond documents. As such, bond
proceeds, per County policy, are exempt from portfolio composition, individual issuers, and maturity limitations set forth in the
Investment Policy.

It is the PWSIG's policy to invest in obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, an agency thereof, or U.S. Government
Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs); repurchase agreements collateralized by obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government,
an agency thereof, or GSEs; non-negotiable certificates of deposit and time deposits of Virginia banks and savings institutions
federally insured to the maximum extent possible and collateralized under the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act; municipal
debt with a rating of at least AA by one NRSRO, negotiable certificates of deposit and negotiable bank deposit notes of domestic
banks and domestic offices of foreign banks with a rating of at least P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service, and A-1 by Standard and
Poor’s; bankers’ acceptances with major U.S. banks and domestic offices of international banks provided that the bank’s assets
exceed $500 million or $1 billion respectively; “prime quality” commercial paper rated by at least two of the following: P-1 by
Moody’s Investors Service, A-1 by Standard & Poor’s or F-1 by Fitch Ratings Inc. ; corporate notes with at least two of the following
ratings: Aa by Moody’s Investor’s Services and AA by Standard & Poor’s; money market, mutual funds or the LGIP with a minimum
credit rating of AAA by at least one NRSRO.
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During the year, the County made investments in money market mutual funds, LGIP, SNAP, PFM Asset Management, U.S.
Government Agency Securities, U.S. Treasury Notes, NOW Accounts, Certificates of Deposit, Corporate Bonds, Commercial Paper
and Municipal Bonds.

The County’s investment ratings as of June 30, 2021, are presented in lllustration 2-2.

lllustration 2-2
Primary Government, School Board, and ADC Investment Credit Risk

June 30, 2021
Credit Exposure as a % of
Investment Type Credit Quality (Rating) Total Investments

Money Markets and Money Market Mutual Funds:

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) AAA 16.96%

State Non-Arbitrage Program (SNAP) AAA 4.47%

PFM Money Market AAA 0.66%

Other Money Market AAA 1.45%
NOW Accounts Not applicable 4.74%
Certificate of Deposits Not applicable 1.62%
U.S. Treasury Notes AA 0.34%
U.S. Government Agency Securities Aa+ or Higher 45.16%
Corporate Bonds AA- or Higher 11.28%
Municipal Bonds A- or Higher 13.32%

100.00%

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counter party, the County will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. However, the County’s
investment policy requires that all securities purchased by the County be properly and clearly labeled as an asset of Prince William
County and held in safekeeping by a third-party custodial bank or institution in compliance with §2.2-4515 of the Code of Virginia.
Therefore, the County has no custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk — To minimize credit risk, the County’s Investment Policy seeks to diversify its portfolio by limiting the
percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in any one type of instrument at the time of purchase as follows: 100% for U.S.
Agency Obligations (not to exceed 40% for any one agency); 35% for any municipal issuance outside of the Commonwealth of
Virginia (not to exceed 5% in any one issuer); 35% for “prime quality” commercial paper (not to exceed 5% in any one issuer); 40%
for negotiable certificates of deposit (not to exceed 5% for any one issuer); 40% for bankers’ acceptances (not to exceed 5% for any
one issuer); 10% for U.S. Treasury Certificates; 30% for repurchase agreements (not to exceed 30% with the County’s primary bank
and 10% with any other institution/dealer); 60% for money market funds (not to exceed 20% in any one money market fund); 35%
for corporate notes (not to exceed 5% for any one issuer); 40% for non-negotiable certificates of deposit (not to exceed 15% for any
one issuer); and no more than 50% in Local Government Investment Pools (LGIP).

The PWSIG Investment Policy seeks to diversify its portfolio by security type and by issuer by limiting the percentage of the portfolio
that may be invested at the time of purchase in any one type of instrument as follows: 100% for U.S. Treasury and Agency securities;
50% municipal debt (not to exceed 10% per issuer); 50% for repurchase agreements (not to exceed 20% per issuer); 30% for bankers’
acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit and / or negotiable bank deposit notes (not to exceed 5% per issuer); 35% for
commercial paper (not to exceed 5% per issuer); 40% for non-negotiable certificates of deposit (not to exceed 10% per issuer); 25%
for corporate notes (not to exceed 10% per issuer) and 80% for money market funds/investment pools (not to exceed 40% per
issuer).

Supplemental Pension Plan Investments

§51.1-803 of the Code of Virginia authorizes the County’s Supplemental Pension Plan to invest its funds with the care, skill, prudence
and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with the same aims. Such investments are not subject to custodial
credit risk.
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The County’s Supplemental Pension Plan’s investments are subject to interest rate, credit and concentration of credit risk as
described below:

Interest Rate Risk — In accordance with state statute and the policy of the Supplemental Pension Plan, investments of the Plan are
diversified to minimize the risk of large losses unless under the circumstances it is clearly not prudent to do so. The Supplemental
Pension Plan contains primarily mutual fund type assets of varying characteristics. The specific content of each fund can change
daily and is managed by the director / manager of each fund. Consequently, the ability to quantify interest rate risk at the
Supplemental Pension Plan level is not possible.

Illustration 2-3 reflects the fair value and the duration of the County’s Supplemental Pension Plan fixed income investments as of
June 30, 2021. Weighted-average maturity expresses investment time horizons, the time when investments become due and
payable, in years, weighted to reflect the dollar size of the individual investments within an investment type. Duration is a measure
of a fixed income’s cash flows using present values, weighted for cash flows as a percentage of the investment’s full price. Modified
duration estimates the sensitivity of a bond’s price to interest rate changes.

lllustration 2-3
Supplemental Pension Plan Fair Value and Weighted Average Maturity/Duration of Investments

June 30, 2021
Weighted-Average
Maturity(a)/ Modified
Fair Value Duration (b) (Years)
Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund:
Money Market Mutual Funds S 832 0.101 (a)
U.S. Treasury Notes 9,039 0.73 (b)
US Government Agency Securities 4,756 0.73 (b)
Corporate Bonds 1,782 2.78 (b)
Equity Mutual Funds 35,999 Not applicable
Real Assets 2,730 Not applicable
Total Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund Investments S 55,138

Credit Risk — The Supplemental Pension Plan investment policy is silent as to credit risk. The Board of Trustees is ultimately
responsible for making the decisions that affect the Supplemental Pension Plan’s Investments. An independent investment
consulting firm assists with the attainment of the Plan’s objectives and monitors the Plan’s compliance with its stated investment
policies. During the year, the Plan invested in money market, fixed income bond funds and equity mutual funds.

The Supplemental Pension Plan’s investment rating as of June 30, 2021, is presented in lllustration 2-4.

lllustration 2-4
Supplemental Pension Plan Credit Risk

June 30, 2021
Credit Exposure as a %
Investment Type Credit Quality (Rating) of Total Investments
Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund Investments:
Money Market Mutual Funds AAA 1.51%
U.S. Treasury Notes AAA 16.39%
US Government Agency Securities AAA 8.63%
Corporate Bonds BBB or higher 3.23%
Equity Mutual Funds Not rated 65.29%
Real Assets Not rated 4.95%

100.00%

70



Concentration of Credit Risk — The long-term objective of the Supplemental Pension Plan is to achieve a total return equivalent to
or greater than the Plan’s long-term benefit obligation over the time horizon. The Board of Trustees has selected an asset allocation
policy designed to achieve a return equal to or greater than the long-term objective. The excess return over the long- term objective
is designed both to reduce the probability of missing the target return over the long-term and to provide for any future growth or
benefit enhancements desired.

The Board of Trustees will seek to limit the overall level of risk, as defined by tracking error or the standard deviation of excess
return, relative to the comparison benchmark and volatility, as measured by standard deviation, consistent with the chosen asset
allocation policy.

Illustration 2-5 shows permissible asset classes, with target investment percentages.

lllustration 2-5
Statement of Investment Policy
Supplemental Pension Plan Concentrations
June 30, 2021

Policy Target Actual
Asset Class Percent Range Percent Percentage
Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund Investments:

Tactical 0% 0% - 0% 0.00%
Equity 64% 54% - 74% 65.29%
Real Assets 6% 0% - 12% 4.95%
Fixed Income 30% 25% -35% 28.25%
Cash Equivalents 0% 0% - 0% 1.51%
100% 100.00%

For Domestic Equity, International Equity and REITs, the maximum weighting, on a fair value basis, in any one company for active
Investment Managers is 5% of the portfolio value. For domestic fixed income, international fixed income, hedge funds and cash
equivalents the maximum weighting, on a fair value basis, in any one security for active Investment Managers is 2% of the portfolio
value. This does not apply to U.S. government and agency issues. It is desirable to rebalance the portfolio periodically to minimize
deviations from the Asset Allocation mix. The Plan shall be rebalanced in the event any individual asset class allocation differs from
the permissible range described in the Asset Allocation.

Concentrations. As of June 30, 2021, the Supplemental Pension Plan’s investments were in money market, bond and equity mutual
funds and therefore not subject to concentration of credit risk.

Prince William County Volunteer Fire and Rescue Personnel Length of Service Award Program (LoSAP) Investments

The County has appointed a Board of Trustees to oversee certain policies and procedures related to the operation and
administration of the Prince William County Volunteer Fire and Rescue Personnel Length of Service Award Program. The Board of
Trustees has the authority to invest the funds in the best interest of the Trust to satisfy the purpose of the Trust.

Illustration 2-6 reflects the fair value of the County’s LoSAP Trust investments as of June 30, 2021.

lllustration 2-6
LoSAP Fair Value and Weighted Average Maturity/Duration of Investments
June 30, 2021

Weighted-Average Maturity (a) / Modified
Fair Value Duration (b) (Years)

LoSAP Trust Fund Investments:
Life Insurance Funds - Mass Mutual Annuity S 19,529 Not Applicable
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Concentrations. As of June 30, 2021, the LoSAP Plan’s investments were 100% invested in an insurance annuity fund and are not
subject to concentration of credit risk.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Investments

The County has appointed a Finance Board (Trustees) pursuant to the Code of Virginia §15.2-1547 to oversee certain policies and
procedures related to the operation and administration of the Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust. The Finance Board has
the authority to implement the investment policy and guidelines in the best interest of the Trust to best satisfy the purposes of the
Trust.

§51.1-803 of the Code of Virginia authorizes the County’s Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust to invest its funds with the
care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar
with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with the same aims. Such investments are not
subject to custodial credit risk.

Illustration 2-7 reflects the fair value of the County’s Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust fixed income investments as of
June 30, 2021. Weighted-average maturity expresses investment time horizons, the time when investments become due and payable,
in years, weighted to reflect the dollar size of the individual investments within an investment type. Duration is a measure of a fixed
income’s cash flows using present values, weighted for cash flows as a percentage of the investment’s full price. Modified duration
estimates the sensitivity of a bond’s price to interest rate changes.

Illustration 2-7
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Fair Value and Weighted Average Maturity/Duration of Investments
June 30, 2021

Weighted-Average

Maturity(a)/ Modified
Fair Value Duration (b) (Years)
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust
Fund:
Money Market Mutual Funds S 280 0.003(a)
Equity Mutual Funds 79,703 Not applicable
Real Assets 9,194 Not applicable
Bond Funds
Baird Core Plus S 10,464 6.36(b)
DoubleLine Core Fixed Income 4,812 4.83(b)
PGIM Total Return Bond 12,728 7.57(b)
Voya Intermediate Bond 6,810 5.96(b)
iShares 5-10 Year IG Corporate Bond 2,519 6.49(b)
iShares JP Morgan USD Emerging Mkts Bond ETF 1,158 8.53(b)
MainStay MacKay High Yield Corp Bond Fund 962 3.42(b)
Total Bond Funds 39,453

Total Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust
Fund Investments S 128,630
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The Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust’s rating and credit exposure as of June 30, 2021, is shown in lllustration 2-8.

Illustration 2-8
Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust (OPEB) Credit Risk

June 30, 2021
Credit Exposure as a

% of Total
Investment Type Credit Quality (Rating) Investments
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund
Investments:
Money Market Mutual Funds AAA 0.22%
Equity Mutual Funds Not rated 61.96%
Real Assets Not rated 7.15%
Bond Funds
Baird Core Plus A 8.13%
DoubleLine Core Fixed Income A 3.74%
PGIM Total Return Bond A 9.90%
Voya Intermediate Bond A 5.29%
iShares 5-10 Year |G Corporate Bond BBB 1.96%
iShares JP Morgan USD Emerging Mkts Bond ETF BB 0.90%
MainStay MacKay High Yield Corp Bond Fund BB 0.75%
100.00%
Concentration of credit risk:
Permissible asset classes, with target investment percentages are shown in illustration 2-9.
lllustration 2-9
Statement of Investment Policy
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund Concentrations
June 30, 2021
Actual
Asset Class Policy Percent Target Range Percent Percent
Other Post-Employment Benefits Master Trust Fund
Investments:
Domestic Equity 40% 20% - 60% 40.10%
International Equity 20% 0% - 40% 21.86%
Other Growth Assets 0% 0% - 20% 0.00%
Fixed Income 40% 20% - 60% 30.67%
Other Income Assets 0% 0% - 20% 0.00%
Real Assets 0% 0% - 20% 7.15%
Cash Equivalents 0% 0% -20% 0.22%
100% 100.00%

No more than the greater of 5% or weighting in the relevant index (Russell 3000 Index for U.S. issues and MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. for
non-U.S. issues) of the total equity portfolio valued at fair value may be invested in the common equity of any one corporation;
ownership of the shares of one company shall not exceed 5% of those outstanding; and not more than 40% of equity valued at fair
value may be held in any one sector, as defined by the Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS). Fixed income securities of any
one issuer shall not exceed 5% of the total bond portfolio at time of purchase. The 5% limitation does not apply to issues of the U.S.
Treasury or other Federal Agencies. Alternatives may consist of non-traditional asset classes such as hedge funds, private equity,
real estate and commodities, when deemed appropriate. The total allocation to this category may not exceed 30% of the overall
portfolio. Private equity and publicly traded Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITS) will be categorized in the Other Growth Assets
category. For purposes of asset allocation targets and limitations, single strategy hedge funds will be categorized under the specific
asset class of the fund. On June 30, 2021, the OPEB Master Trust Fund’s investments were in money market, bond and equity mutual
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funds and therefore not subject to concentration of credit risk.

There are no investments other than those issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government that represent 5% or more of
the OPEB Master Trust fiduciary net position.

Reconciliation of Cash and Investments

Reconciliation of total cash and investments to the entity-wide financial statements on June 30, 2021, is shown in lllustration 2-10.

INustration 2-10
Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to Entity-Wide Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Investments
Primary Government and Component Units s 1,541,455
Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund 55,1328
LoSAP Trust Fund 19,529
COther Post-Employment Benefits [OPER) Master Trust Fund 128,630
Total Investments 1,?44,_?55
Add: Cashon hand 42
Deposits 12,610
Total Cash and Investments m
Less: Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund’s cash and investments [55,651)
LaSAP Trust Fund cash and investments (19,529
OPEB Master Trust Fund cash and investments [128,630)
Custodial Funds equity in pooled cash and investments [1,156)
Zchool Board Fiduciary Funds cash and investments [3,688)
Total Reporting Entity cash and investments 5 1,548,754

Governmental Business-Type Component Tata| Reporting
Activities Activities Total Units Entity
Primary Government: B
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 5 817,662 31,259 848,827 570,635 1,413,622
Cash held by other fizcal agents - - - 2,347 2,347
Investments 18,051 - 18,051 - 18,051
Restricted Cazh and Temporary Investments 24,843 16,816 41,659 65,825 107,484
Restricted Investments 1,250 - 1,250 - 1,250
Total Cash and Investments 5 861,812 48,075 505,887 638,867 1,548,754

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value was estimated for each class of financial instrument for which it was practical to estimate fair value. Fair value is defined
as the price in the principal market that would be received for an asset to facilitate an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Market participants are assumed to be independent, knowledgeable, able and willing to
transact an exchange and not acting under duress. Fair value hierarchy disclosures are based on the quality of inputs used to
measure fair value.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Adjustments to transaction prices or quoted
market prices may be required in illiquid or disorderly markets to estimate fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are

defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities traded in active
markets.

Level 2 —inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
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for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable for the asset or liability and are significant to the fair value
measurement.

Fair values of the County’s investment portfolio are estimated using unadjusted prices obtained by its investment manager
from third party pricing services, where available. For securities where the County is unable to obtain fair values from a pricing
service or broker, fair values are estimated using information obtained from the County’s investment manager.

Management performs several procedures to ascertain the reasonableness of investment values included in the financial
statements including 1) obtaining and reviewing internal control reports from the County’s investment manager that obtain fair
values from third party pricing services, 2) discussing with the County’s investment manager its process for reviewing and validating
pricing obtained from outside pricing services, 3) reviewing the security pricing received from the County’s investment manager and
monitoring changes in unrealized gains and losses. The County has evaluated the various types of securities in its investment
portfolio to determine an appropriate fair value hierarchy level based upon trading activity and the observability of makret inputs.
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of
future fair values. Furthermore, while the County believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair values of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. Due to the relatively short-term nature of cash and cash
equivalents their carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value.

Illustration 2-11 shows the fair value levels used by the County to value investments.

INustration 2-11
Fair Value - PFrimary Government, 5chool Board and ADC
June 30, 2021

FairValue Meazurement Using:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Primary Government, 5chool Board, ADC
Investments by Fair Value

U5 Treasury Notes 5,289 5,289 - -
US Government Agency 5 B96,256 - E96,256 -
Corporate Bonds 173,852 - 173,852 -
Municipal Bonds 205,274 - 205,274 -

1,080,671 5,289 1,075,382 -

Investments by Amortized Cost

LGIP 261,442
SNAP 68,829
PFM Money Market 10,135
Other Money Market Accounts 22,346
Certificate of Deposits 25,000

387,756

Cash and Cazh Equivalents
MNow Accounts 73,032

Total 5 1,541,459
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Illustration 2-12 shows the fair value levels used in the Supplemental Pension Plan Trust Fund, LoSAP Trust Fund and OPEB Master
Trust Fund to value investments.

lllustration 2-12
Fair Value - Supplement Pension, LoSAP Trust and OPEB Master Trust Funds
June 30, 2021
Fair Value Measurement Using:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Supplement Pension Plan Trust Fund
Investments by Fair Value
US Treasury Notes 9,039 9,039 - -
US Government Agency S 4,756 - 4,756 -
Corporate Bonds 1,782 - 1,782 -
Equity Mutual Funds 35,999 35,999 - -
Real Assets 2,730 - - 2,730
54,306 45,038 6,538 2,730
Investments by Amortized Cost
Money Market Mutual Funds 832
55,138
LoSAP Trust Fund
Investments by Amortized Cost
Life Insurance Funds - Mass Mutual Annuity 19,529
19,529
OPEB Master Trust Fund
Investments by Fair Value
Equity Mutual Funds 79,703 79,703 - -
Real Assets 9,194 - - 9,194
Bond Mutual Funds 39,453 - 39,453 -
128,350 79,703 39,453 9,194
Investments by Amortized Cost
Money Market Mutual Funds 280
128,630
Total S 203,297
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Restricted cash and investments consist of a closure fund required by the Virginia Resource Authority (VRA) for the Landfill, capitalized
interest accounts required to be used for debt service, unspent debt proceeds required to be used for capital projects, and retainages as
depicted in lllustration 2-13.

lllustration 2-13
Restricted Cash and Investments
June 30, 2021

Restricted Cash & Temporary

Investments Restricted Investments
Primary Government
General Fund:
Bonds $ 6 S -
Total General Fund 6 -
Capital Projects Funds:
Bonds 4,489 -
Retainage 2,478 -
Total Capital Projects Funds 6,967 -
Enterprise Funds:
VRA Closure Fund 16,255 -
Parks & Recreation 491 -
Retainage 70 -
Total Enterprise Funds 16,816 -
Internal Service Funds:
PWSIG 17,870 -
Insurance Pool Collateral - 1,250
Total Internal Service Funds 17,870 1,250
Total Primary Government 41,659 1,250
Component Units
ADC:
Retainage 7 -
Total ADC 7 -
School Board:
School Bonds 64,341 -
Education Foundation 1,477 -
Total School Board 65,818 -
Total Component Units 65,825 -
Total Reporting Entity S 107,484 S 1,250

The County's real estate and personal property taxes are levied respectively of the July 1, 2021, tax levy, on the assessed value as of the
prior January 1, for all property located in the County. Real estate taxes are due in two installments on July 15 and December 5 and
personal property taxes are due on October 5. After October 5, personal property taxes are due 30 days following the levy date until the
end of the fiscal year. Penalties and interest are assessed on taxes not paid by the due dates. Property tax levies are recorded as
receivables and revenue, net of allowance for estimated uncollectible on the payment due dates. Property taxes due, but not collected
within 60 days after fiscal year-end, are reflected as deferred inflows of resources.

Assessed values are established at 100% of appraised fair value. The personal property tax is limited to vehicles and all business property.

A valuation of all property is completed annually. The assessed value of real and personal property on January 1, 2020, upon which the
July 1, 2020, levy was based, was approximately $76 billion.
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Current real estate and personal property tax collections for the year ended June 30, 2021, were 99.3% and 96.5%, respectively of the
July 1, 2020, tax levy. Real property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property if not paid on the due date. Collections received on or
before June 30, 2021, related to property taxes due on July 15 of the following fiscal year are recorded as deferred inflows of resources
on June 30, 2021.

The County calculates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data. Taxes receivable as of June 30, 2021, is
detailed in lllustration 3-1.

Illustration 3-1
Property Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2021

Gross Tax Allowance for Net Tax

Receivable Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

Real estate taxes S 6,766 1,537 5,229
Personal property taxes 11,390 3,367 8,023
Total S 18,156 4,904 13,252

Unearned revenue, as shown in lllustration 4-1, represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria were met, but for which revenue
recognition criteria were not met.

lllustration 4-1
Unearned Revenue
June 30, 2021

Primary Government

Other Unearned Revenue — Prepaid recreation fees, developer fees, health premiums and other S 134,625
Total Primary Government 134,625
Component Unit
School Board 14,265
Total Component Unit 14,265
Total Reporting Entity S 148,890

Deferred inflows of resources, as shown in lllustration 4-2, represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria where met, but which
were not available to finance expenditures of the current period under the accrual basis of accounting.

lllustration 4-2
Deferred Inflows of Resources
June 30, 2021
Primary Government

Prepaid taxes — Taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2021, but paid in advance by taxpayers S 124,159
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 17,734
Deferred inflows related to pensions 3,099
Total Primary Government 144,992

Component Units

Deferred inflows related to OPEB 37,443
Deferred inflows related to pensions 64,282
Total Component Unit 101,725

Total Reporting Entity S 246,717

78



Deferred inflows of resources for Governmental Fund represents amounts for which the revenue recognition was not met under the
modified accrual basis of accounting for the period ended June 30, 2021.

lllustration 4-3
Governmental Funds Deferred Inflows of Resources
June 30, 2021
General Fund

Prepaid Taxes — Taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2021, but paid in advance by taxpayers S 114,932
Unavailable taxes — Taxes not paid within sixty days of June 30, 2021 8,371
Unavailable lease revenue — Uncollected revenues associated with direct financing leases 4,995

Total General Fund 128,298

Streets and Roads Capital Projects Fund
Unavailable transportation revenue — Revenue not received within sixty day of June 30, 2021 27,214
Total Street and Roads Capital Projects Fund 27,214

Fire & Rescue Levy

Prepaid Taxes — Taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2021, but paid in advance by taxpayers 8,238
Unavailable taxes — Taxes not paid within sixty days of June 30, 2021 165
Total Fire & Rescue Levy 8,403

Other Governmental Funds

Prepaid Taxes — Taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2021, but paid in advance by taxpayers 989
Unavailable taxes — Taxes not paid within sixty days of June 30, 2021 5

Total Other Governmental Fund 994
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources of Governmental Funds S 164,909

The County has investments in direct financing leases, consisting of financing arrangements with various volunteer fire and rescue
companies and other organizations operating within the County. Under the terms of these financing arrangements, the County obtains
leasehold interests in specific properties, and uses those leasehold interests as collateral to obtain financing. The County uses the
proceeds from these financings to reimburse the organizations for capital expenses related to the renovation or construction of facilities.
In separate-but-related agreements, the County subleases the original leasehold interests and any existing and future improvements
back to the organizations; each sublease contains a clause which transfers title of the properties, as well as any existing and future
improvements of the properties back to each respective organization at the time the related debt is fully extinguished.

Illustration 5-1 shows the investment in direct financing leases as of June 30, 2021.

lllustration 5-1
Investment in Direct Financing Leases
June 30, 2021

Volunteer Fire & Rescue

Companies
Total minimum lease payments to be received S 5,661
Less: Unearned revenue (666)
Net investment in direct financing leases S 4,995
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Illustration 5-2 shows the scheduled minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2021.

lllustration 5-2
Scheduled Minimum Lease Payments
June 30, 2021

Fiscal year Ending June 30:

Volunteer Fire &
Rescue Companies

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027 thru 2029
Total minimum lease payments

1,360
1,318
955
618
498
912

5,661

Accounts receivables are recorded net of allowance for uncollectible accounts as shown in lllustration 5-3 as of June 30, 2021.

lllustration 5-3
Accounts Receivable

June 30, 2021

Component Units
Primary School Reporting Entity
Government Board ADC Total
Accrued interest S 3,363 - - 3,363
Enterprise operations 571 - - 571
Utility / consumption taxes 2,027 - - 2,027
Transient occupancy taxes 1,211 - - 1,211
Stormwater management fees 208 - - 208
Cable franchise taxes 319 - - 319
Other post-employment benefits 4,423 - - 4,423
Other 5,066 4,637 2 9,705
Total accounts receivable 17,188 4,637 2 21,287
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,780) - - (1,780)
Total Accounts Receivables, Net S 15,408 4,637 2 20,047
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Amounts due from other governmental units as of June 30, 2021, are detailed in lllustration 6-1.

Illustration 6-1
Due from Other Governmental Units
June 30, 2021

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
General Fund:

From the Federal Government S 2,669
Local sales taxes 14,701
Other 7,652 25,022
Street & Road Capital Projects Fund:
From the Federal Government 5,146
From the Commonwealth 15,236
From other localities 22,350 42,732
Other Capital Projects Fund:
From the Commonwealth 583 583
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
From the Federal Government 110
From the Commonwealth 12 122
Landfill Enterprise Fund:
From other localities 173 173
Internal Service Funds:
From other localities 6 6
Total Primary Government 68,638
COMPONENT UNITS
School Board:
From the Federal Government 14,737
From the Commonwealth 21,279 36,016
Adult Detention Center:
From other localities 1,957 1,957
Total Component Units 37,973
Total Reporting Entity 106,611
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Illustration 6-2 details the amounts due to other governmental units as of June 30, 2021.

lllustration 6-2
Due to Other Governmental Units
June 30, 2021

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

General Fund:

To Other Localities S 322

To the Federal Government 88 S 410

Streets & Roads Capital Projects Fund:
To Other Localities 1,280 1,280

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

To the Commonwealth 28 28
Total Primary Government 1718
Total Reporting Entity S 1718

Inter-fund balances and transfers are generally made for the purpose of providing operational support for the receiving fund. During the
year ended June 30, 2021, the County made inter-fund transfers as shown in illustration 7-1.

lllustration 7-1
Internal Balances
June 30, 2021

Due from Other Funds Due to Other Funds
General Fund S 306 -
Parks and Recreation - Enterprise Fund - 306
Total Reporting Entity S 306 306
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Transfer to General Fund from:

lllustration 7-2
Inter-fund Transfers
For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Transfer from General Fund to:

Streets & Roads - Capital Projects Fund S 13,291 §$ 17,604 Streets & Roads — Capital Projects Fund
Other - Capital Projects Fund 44 3,649 Other - Capital Projects Fund
Fire & Rescue Levy Fund 27,340 - Fire & Rescue Levy Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 8,257 5,425 Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Landfill - Enterprise Fund 2,302 - Landfill - Enterprise Fund
Parks & Recreation - Enterprise Fund - 1,682 Parks & Recreation - Enterprise Fund
Innovation - Enterprise Fund - 35 Innovation - Enterprise Fund
Internal Service Funds 2,000 80 Internal Service Funds

Total General Fund Transfers In 53,234 28,475 Total General Fund Transfers Out
Transfer to Streets & Roads - Capital Projects Fund from: Transfer from Streets & Roads - Capital Projects Fund to:
General Fund 17,604 13,291 General Fund
Other - Capital Projects Fund - 350 Other - Capital Projects Fund
Innovation - Enterprise Fund 2,691 - _Innovation - Enterprise Fund

Total Streets& Roads - Capital Projects Fund Transfers In 20,295 13,641 Total Streets & Roads - Capital Projects Fund Transfers Out
Transfer to Other - Capital Projects Fund from: Transfer from Other - Capital Projects Fund to:
General Fund 3,649 44 General Fund
Streets and Roads - Capital Projects Fund 350 - Streets and Roads - Capital Projects Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 2,196 - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Innovation - Enterprise Fund - 71 Innovation - Enterprise Fund
Internal Service Funds 3,900 4 Internal Service Funds

Total Other - Capital Projects Fund Transfers In 10,095 119 Total Other - Capital Projects Fund Transfers Out
Transfers to Fire & Rescue Levy Fund from: Transfers from Fire & Rescue Levy Fund to:
General Fund - 27,340 General Fund
Internal Service Funds - 98 Internal Service Funds

Total Fire & Rescue Levy Fund Transfers In - 27,438 Total Fire & Rescue Levy Funds Transfers Out
Transfer to Nonmajor Governmental Funds from: Transfer from Nonmajor Governmental Funds to:
General Fund 5,425 8,257 General Fund
Other - Capital Projects Fund - 2,196 Other - Capital Projects Fund
Internal Service Funds - 401 Internal Service Funds

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds Transfers In 5,425 10,854 Total Nonmajor Governmental Fund Transfers Out
Transfers to Landfill Enterprise Fund from: Transfers from Landfill Enterprise Fund to:
General Fund - 2,302 General Fund

Total Landfill Enterprise Fund Transfers In - 2,302 Total Landfill Enterprise Fund Transfers Out
Transfers to Innovation - Enterprise Fund from: Transfers from Innovation - Enterprise Fund to:
General Fund 35 - General Fund
Streets & Roads - Capital Projects Fund - 2,691 Streets & Roads - Capital Projects Fund
Other - Capital Projects Fund 71 - Other - Capital Projects Fund

Total Innovation - Enterprise Fund Transfers In 106 2,691 Total Innovation - Enterprise Fund Transfers Out
Transfers to Parks & Recreation - Enterprise Fund from: Transfers from Parks & Recreation - Enterprise Fund to:
General Fund 1,682 - _General Fund

Total to Parks & Recreation - Enterprise Fund Transfers In 1,682 - Transfers from Parks & Recreation Enterprise Transfers Out
Transfers to Internal Service Funds from: Transfers from Internal Service Funds to:
General Fund 80 2,000 General Fund
Other - Capital Projects Fund 4 3,900 Other - Capital Projects Fund
Fire & Rescue Levy Fund 98 - Fire & Rescue Levy Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 401 - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Fire & Rescue Levy Fund - - Fire & Rescue Levy Fund

Total Internal Service Funds Transfers In 583 5,900 Total Internal Service Funds Transfers Out

Total Primary Government Transfers In $ 91,420 $ 91,420

Total Primary Government Transfers Out
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Receivables/payables transactions between the primary government and component units are generally made for the purpose of
providing operational support for the receiving fund. lllustration 8-1 summarizes the amounts due from the primary government and
due to the component units as of June 30, 2021.

lllustration 8-1
Due from Primary Government/Due to Component Units
June 30, 2021

Due to Primary Due from Component
Government Units
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities S 13,146 -
COMPONENT UNITS
School Board S - 13,146

As of July 1, 2020, the County’s Capital Asset Policy was updated to change the capitalization threshold of non-grant funded assets from
$5,000 per a unit to $10,000 per a unit. The capitalization threshold of grant funded assets remains at $5,000 per unit and intangibles
remains at $100,000 per unit. The County retired non-grant funded assets less than $10,000 per a unit in FY 2021. llustration 9-1
summarizes the total dollar value of the assets retired by type of activity. These amounts are reflected as part of the deletions in
Illustration 9-2, 9-3, and 9-4 below.

lllustration 9-1
Retired Capital Assets Due to Change in Capitalization Threshold Policy

Business Type Total

Governmental Activities’ Reporting
Assets Assets  Entity’s Assets  ApDC Assets
Capital assets not being depreciated S 528 8 536 -
Buildings and other capital assets, being depreciated 13,957 694 14,651 279
Less accumulated depreciation (10,652) (558) (11,210) (177)
Buildings and other capital assets, net 3,305 136 3,441 102
Capital assets, net S 3,833 144 3,977 102
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Illustration 9-2 summarizes the changes in capital assets of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2021.

lllustration 9-2
Governmental Activities — Changes in Capital Assets

Additions / Deletions /

June 30, 2020 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2021
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 131,963 - (2,128) 129,835
Construction in progress 28,887 35,773 (22,608) 42,052
Total capital assets not being depreciated 160,850 35,773 (24,736) 171,887
Buildings and other capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements to sites 398,456 14,742 (432) 412,766
Equipment 99,959 13,360 (14,781) 98,538
Vehicles 61,625 10,514 (2,539) 69,600
Infrastructure 240,621 9,308 (729) 249,200
Intangibles 62,823 - - 62,823
Library collections 16,846 1,075 (2,109) 15,812
Total buil.dings and other capital assets being 880,330 48,999 (20,590) 908,739
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements to sites (179,734) (11,469) 358 (190,845)
Equipment (78,124) (8,752) 12,407 (74,469)
Vehicles (42,345) (6,481) 2,489 (46,337)
Infrastructure (65,975) (5,377) 226 (71,126)
Intangibles (42,194) (4,539) - (46,733)
Library collections (12,470) (1,868) 2,109 (12,229)
Total accumulated depreciation (420,842) (38,486) 17,589 (441,739)
Buildings and other capital assets, net 459,488 10,513 (3,001) 467,000
Capital assets, net S 620,338 46,286 (27,737) 638,887

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions of governmental activities:

General government administration S 8,801
Judicial administration 1,200
Public safety 11,518
Public works 3,440
Health and welfare 333
Parks, recreational and cultural 6,012
Community development 5,661
Capital assets held by the internal service funds are charged to the
various functions based on their usage of the assets 1,521
Total $ 38,486
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Illustration 9-3 summarizes the changes in capital assets of the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Illustration 9-3
Business-type Activities — Changes in Capital Assets

Additions / Deletions /
June 30, 2020 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2021
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 26,987 1,758 (8) 28,737
Construction in progress 2,046 3,412 (170) 5,288
Total capital assets not being depreciated 29,033 5,170 (178) 34,025
Buildings and other capital assets, being
depreciated
Buildings and improvements to sites 73,288 - (18) 73,270
Equipment 9,683 1,358 (2,020) 9,021
Infrastructure 1,566 - - 1,566
Vehicles 2,531 424 (5) 2,950
.Total buildings and other capital assets being 87,068 1,782 (2,043) 86,807
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements to sites (63,875) (412) 21 (64,266)
Equipment (5,600) (743) 1,685 (4,658)
Infrastructure (273) (78) - (351)
Vehicles (1,974) (132) 5 (2,101)
Total accumulated depreciation (71,722) (1,365) 1,711 (71,376)
Buildings and other capital assets, net 15,346 417 (332) 15,431
Capital assets, net S 44,379 5,587 (510) 49,456
Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions of business-type activities:
Landfill S 1,131
Parks, recreational & cultural 234
Total S 1,365
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Illustration 9-4 summarizes the changes in capital assets of the Adult Detention Center component unit activities for the year ended June
30, 2021.

lllustration 9-4
Adult Detention Center Component Unit — Changes in Capital Assets

Additions / Deletions /

June 30, 2020 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2021
Adult Detention Center:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 31 - - 31
Construction in progress 51,052 323 (51,355) 20
Total capital assets not being depreciated 51,083 323 (51,355) 51
Buildings and other capital assets,
being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements to sites 85,887 49,060 (36) 134,911
Equipment 1,173 2,418 (243) 3,348
Vehicles 734 82 - 816
. Total F)mldlngs and other capital assets 87,794 51,560 (279) 139,075
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements to sites (31,982) (3,140) 32 (35,090)
Equipment (788) (438) 154 (1,072)
Vehicles (539) (62) - (601)
Total accumulated depreciation (33,309) (3,640) 186 (36,763)
Buildings and other capital assets, net 54,485 47,920 (93) 102,312
Capital assets, net S 105,568 48,243 (51,448) 102,363

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions of the Adult Detention Center:

Public safety S 3,640
Total S 3,640
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Illustration 9-5 summarizes the construction in progress of governmental activities.

Illustration 9-5
Construction in Progress
June 30, 2021

Amount Expended to Project
Authorized Date Balance

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
800 MHz Radio Communications System S 2,554 1,319 1,235
Land Use Information System 1,246 295 951
Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trial — Featherstone Segment 873 599 274
Rollins Ford Park — Phase Il 7,326 661 6,665
Broad Run Trail 1,004 576 428
Catharpin Park Trail 30 25 5
Lake Ridge Trail 1,207 488 719
Neabsco Trail 335 275 60
Neabsco Commuter Garage/Potomac Town Center Commuter Lot 52,940 1,348 51,592
Locust Shade Maintenance Building 1,300 279 1,021
Courthouse Security System 4,789 3,779 1,010
Animal Shelter Expansion 16,745 10,715 6,030
Catharpin Park Phase I 5,905 4,777 1,128
Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trail — Occoquan Refuge 433 424 9
McCoart ADA Parking Improvements 320 230 90
Human Capital Management System Replacement 13,000 3,174 9,826
Harbor Park Drive 1,512 773 739
Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trail — Highman’s Parcel 40 36 4
Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trail — Neabsco Creek Wetlands Boardwalk 1,176 464 712
Covered Storage — Parks 450 81 369
Long Park Auxiliary Building 1,104 909 195
Hammil Mill Park ADA & Retaining Wall Improvements 450 26 424
Orchard Bridge Park Field Improvements 51 28 23
Howison Park Improvements 397 236 161
Cloverdale Park Improvements 439 137 302
Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trail — Rippon Landing 505 337 168
Lake Ridge Marina — Dock Replacement 625 28 597
Technology Infrastructure Improvements 16,196 1,043 15,153
CR Micro Trans — TIP 1,000 67 933
Potomac Heritage National Scenic Trail — Heritage Harbor 100 6 94
Security at County Facilities 800 356 444
Hellwig Park Improvements 989 872 117
Ascend Cloud Migration 3,930 2,049 1,881
Pat White Elevator 295 56 239
Locust Shade Challenge Course 520 273 247
Forest Green Golf Course Bunkers 394 349 45
Neabsco Creek Bandalong 300 129 171
Interactive Virtual Incident Simulator 255 249 6
Fire and Rescue Vehicles 361 259 102
HID Safe Software 122 122 -
Other Technology Improvements and Equipment 46 7 39
Hammill Mill Park ADA Improvements 4,196 4,196 -
S 146,260 42,052 104,208

Construction in progress for business-type activities as of June 30, 2021 is $5,288. This amount ($5,288) was recorded in the Landfill
enterprise fund and represents capital improvements at the landfill complex, including the construction and installation of landfill
liners and wetland mitigation to improve the landfill and protect public health, ground water and the environment. The $3,412 of the
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construction in progress additions as of June 30, 2021 recorded in the Public works (Landfill) enterprise fund represents capital
expenditure on the construction of the Landfill Liner Phase Ill, Cell A.

The $20 construction in progress balance as of June 30, 2021, of the Adult Detention Center component unit represents capital
improvements related to the jail expansion project.

lllustration 9-6 summarizes the changes in capital assets of the School Board component unit activities for the year ended June 30, 2021.

lllustration 9-6
School Board Component Unit — Changes in Capital Assets

Additions / Deletions /

June 30, 2020 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2021
School Board:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 95,888 8,348 - 104,236
Construction in progress 145,892 88,312 (194,974) 39,230
Total capital assets not being depreciated 241,780 96,660 (194,974) 143,466
Buildings and other capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings and improvements to sites 1,908,356 194,974 - 2,103,330
Library collections 3,084 743 (640) 3,187
Equipment 51,715 2,242 (325) 53,632
Intangibles 5,840 - - 5,840
Vehicles 113,429 5,355 (3,517) 115,267
Total bwl.dlngs and other capital assets being 2,082,424 203,314 (4,482) 2281256
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements to site (523,826) (37,185) - (561,011)
Library collections (1,964) (637) 640 (1,961)
Equipment (38,388) (2,509) 251 (40,646)
Intangibles (4,282) (341) - (4,623)
Vehicles (51,483) (8,019) 3,327 (56,175)
Total accumulated depreciation (619,943) (48,691) 4,218 (664,416)
Buildings and other capital assets, net 1,462,481 154,623 (264) 1,616,840
Capital assets, net S 1,704,261 251,283 (195,238) 1,760,306

Depreciation expense was charged to the following School Board component unit functions:

Instruction:
Regular S 36,290
Special 1,071
Other 13
Support Services:
General administration 1,103
Student services 10
Curricular/staff development 5
Pupil transportation 8,056
Maintenance 380
Central business services 1,483
Food and nutrition services 98
Business-Type Activities
Aquatics Center 182

Total S 48,691
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The following debt was issued during fiscal year 2021:

e  On September 22, 2020, the Board of County Supervisors approved Resolution No. 20-645 to authorize the issuance of one or
more General Obligation School Bonds of the County in an aggregate amount not to exceed $119,450 to finance certain capital
projects for school purposes and to refund other outstanding General Obligation School Bonds and to approve the sale of such
bonds to the Virginia Public School Authority. On October 15, 2020, the County sold the VPSA Special Obligation School
Financing Bonds Series VPSA 2020 in the amount of $106,510 par to provided construction and cost of issuance funds for
construction of 2 new schools, the renovation of 3 schools, and architectural and engineering design services for a future
construction and improvements.

e On October 29, 2020, the County entered an Installment Purchase Contract with the Industrial Development Authority of Prince
William County (IDA) as security for the IDA’s issuance of $49,580 par amount of the IDA of Prince William County, VA Facilities
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A with a true interest cost of 1.66%. The Authorization of the Installment Purchase
Contract was approved by the Board on September 22, 2020, by Resolution Number 20-649. $44,770 of the bond proceeds
provided construction and cost of issuance funds for three County projects: the expansion of the Adult Detention Center, Fire
and Rescue Station 22, and the Animal Shelter. Additionally, $4.8M of the bond proceeds were used to refund the remaining $5.4M balance of
the Park Facilities County Contribution Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, to achieve interest savings for the Parks and Recreation Enterprise
Fund. Payments due under the terms of the Installment Purchase Contract are subject to annual appropriation. The County has
assumed all responsibilities for continuing disclosure.

Unless otherwise noted, the County offers its debt through public sales. Official Statements describing the terms, collateral, and
remedies are prepared in conjunction with each sale and are reviewed by counsel prior to the issuance of debt. Depending on the type
of debt, different remedies may be pursuable under Virginia law. The County’s Official Statements can be found on the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board’s website at https://emma.msrb.org/.

Bonds Payable:

The majority of the County’s bonds payable are general obligations of the County and are secured by its full faith and credit. Some of
the County’s bonds are subject to arbitrage, and as such, actuarial calculations are made, and liabilities are recorded annually.

The Commonwealth imposes no legal debt limitation on counties. Except for Virginia Public School Authority general obligation issuances,
a referendum must be approved by the voters prior to the issuance of new money general obligation bonds. The County established a
self-imposed limit on its total bonded debt of 3% of the net assessed valuation of taxable property. The County includes general obligation
bonds, appropriation debt supported by tax revenue, and School Board bonds in its determination of total bonded debt. Additionally,
there are several limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The County follows all such limitations and
restrictions.

The County's general obligation bonds, which also include, the County's Build America Bonds (BABs), Qualified School Construction Bonds
(QSCBs), and refunding bonds are subject to the State Aid Intercept Provision as per §15.2-2659 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as
amended, which in the event of the county defaulting, provides the Commonwealth the ability to step in and work with the County to
make the bondholders whole.

Revenue bonds issued through the Prince William County Industrial Development Authority (IDA) are subject to terms that allow the
IDA’s Revenue Bond Trustees to accelerate all outstanding bond payments immediately due and payable without advance notice if a
default were to occur.

The annual debt service requirements of general obligation and lease revenue bonds outstanding in governmental funds as of June 30,
2021, including interest payments, are shown in lllustration 10-1. Refer to Schedule 40 for information related to maturity dates and
interest rates for these obligations.
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Illustration 10-1
Governmental Activities — Debt Service Requirements — General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Designated for Roads, Parks & Other General

County Projects Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year Ending June 30:

2022 S 16,706 6,438 23,144

2023 16,718 5,672 22,390

2024 16,784 4,875 21,659

2025 15,785 4,097 19,882

2026 12,865 3,444 16,309

2027 thru 2031 53,147 10,507 63,654

2032 thru 2036 37,035 3,445 40,480

2037 thru 2041 11,171 571 11,742

Subtotal 180,211 39,049 219,260

Designated for School Board Projects

Fiscal year Ending June 30:

2022 75,619 34,252 109,871

2023 72,652 30,668 103,320

2024 69,731 27,246 96,977

2025 65,845 23,992 89,837

2026 63,455 20,949 84,404

2027 thru 2031 270,358 64,075 334,433

2032 thru 2036 191,775 22,361 214,136

2037 thru 2041 69,924 3,435 73,359

Subtotal 879,359 226,978 1,106,337
Total $ 1,059,570 266,027 1,325,597

The annual debt service requirements of all bonds outstanding in business-type activities as of June 30, 2021, including interest
payments,are shown in lllustration 10-2. Refer to Schedule 40 for information related to maturity dates and interest rates for these
obligations.

Illustration 10-2
Business-type Activities — Debt Service Requirements — Revenue Bonds

Fiscal year Ending June 30: Principal Interest Total

2022 S 630 192 822

2023 665 160 825

2024 700 126 826

2025 725 90 815

2026 765 53 818

2027 670 15 685

Subtotal 4,155 636 4,791

Add: unamortized premium on

issuance of revenue bonds 580
Total S 4,735
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Operating and Capital Leases

The County leases real estate and equipment under operating and capital leases expiring at various dates through 2031. All leases are
non-cancelable except they are contingent upon the Board appropriating funds for each year’s payments. The County also has various
short-term leases for real estate and equipment with initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms of less than one year as of June 30,
2021. Total rental expense under operating leases of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2021, was $9,011. lllustration
10-3 summarizes the minimum lease commitments under the County’s operating leases.

Fiscal year Ending June 30:

Illustration 10-3
Minimum Lease Commitments — Operating Leases

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027 thru 2031

Total minimum payments

7,004
6,341
5,302
4,636
3,483
7,007

33,773

The County’s capital leases are issued through the Virginia Resource Authority (VRA), who has the authority to declare all outstanding
bond payments immediately due and payable without advance notice if a default was to occur. The principal and interest on the VRA
Capital leases are not subject to acceleration upon the event of default. These obligations are also subject to the State Aid Intercept
Provision as per §15.2-2659 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, which in the event of the County to make defaulting, provides the
Commonwealth the ability to step in and work with the County to make creditors whole. Additionally, the County participates in some
leasehold interest leasing agreements attached to some of the County’s facilities throughout the County. In the event the County was to
default on our obligations under this type of lease, the creditor has the right to accelerate the payment of all unpaid principal and interest

balances immediately as a remedy.

Illustration 10-4 presents the assets that were acquired through capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2021.

Illustration 10-4
Assets Acquired Through Capital Lease Obligations
June 30, 2021

Governmental Activities

ADC Component Unit

Other capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total assets acquired through capital lease obligations

S 92,138 6,459
13,534 76

972 -

1,118 -

(58,798) (4,936)

$ 48,964 1,599

92



Illustration 10-5 presents a summary of minimum lease commitments on all capital leases. Refer to Schedule 40 for information related
tomaturity dates and interest rates for these obligations.

lllustration 10-5
Minimum Lease Commitments — Capital Lease Obligations

Fiscal year Ending June 30: Primary Government
2022 S 12,592
2023 12,167
2024 9,919
2025 9,217
2026 6,794
2027 thru 2030 12,560

Total minimum payments 63,249
Less: Interest (8,334)

Present value of future minimum payments S 54,915

Loans Payable:

The County’s tri-party direct borrowing debt obligation among the County, the IDA, and Wells Fargo Bank N.A is a variable rate draw
down loan. The loan bears interest monthly at the LIBOR Index Rate. The full principal of the loan is due on August 22, 2023. The
proceeds of the loan will finance a portion of the expansion of the County’s Adult Detention Center and will pay the costs of issuance
associated with the Loan. The loan balance as of June 30, 2021, is $21,153.

The obligation of the IDA or the County to pay debt service on the loan is subject to appropriation by the Board of County Supervisors
and no collateral was pledged. Default under the Loan Agreement may allow the entire principal amount plus accrued interest to
become immediately due and payable. In the event of default, Wells Fargo may seek other remedies with financial consequences
against the IDA and/or County.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities:

Changes in long-term liabilities of governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2021, are shown in lllustration 10-6.

lllustration 10-6
Governmental Activities — Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
June 30, 2021

Duein Due
Beginning Ending  More Than Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year One Year
General obligation bonds:
Designated for Roads,
Parks and Other
General County projects S 150,761 44,770 (15,320) 180,211 163,505 16,706
Designated for School
Board projects 845,159 106,510 (72,310) 879,359 803,740 75,619
Subtotal 995,920 151,280 (87,630) 1,059,570 967,245 92,325
Capital lease obligations 68,295 - (13,380) 54,915 44,735 10,180
Loans payable 21,153 - - 21,153 21,153 -
Unpaid losses and related liabilities 21,579 50,158 (49,244) 22,493 15,062 7,431
(Footnote 15)
Net pension liabilities (Footnote 13) 198,005 80,559 . 278,564 278,564 -
Net OPEB liabilities (Footnote 14) 47,779 - (5,368) 42,411 42,411 -
Surplus distribution payable 3,937 - (1,571) 2,366 1,530 836
Compensated absences 42,776 16,698 (12,679) 46,795 43,676 3,119
Unamortized premium 112,268 17,468 (15,650) 114,086 100,182 13,904
Total 1,511,712 316,163 (185,522) 1,642,353 1,514,558 127,795

Long-term liabilities of governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General Fund. During fiscal year 2021, funds of the intra-
county services fund were used to liquidate approximately 4.45% of compensated absences.
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Changes in long-term liabilities of business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2021, are shown in Illustration 10-7.

Illustration 10-7
Business-Type Activities — Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
June 30, 2021

Due

Duein Within

Beginning Ending More Than One

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year Year

Revenue bonds ? 5,410 4,810 (6,065) 4,155 3,525 630
Unamortized premium on

issuance of revenue bonds 8 677 (105) 580 483 97

Revenue bonds, net 5,418 5,487 (6,170) 4,735 4,008 727

Compensated absences 597 (746) 728 579 538 41

Net pension liabilities (Footnote 13) 2,491 847 - 3,338 3,338 -

Net OPEB liabilities (Footnote 14) 744 - (141) 603 603 -

Accrued closure liabilities (Footnote 12) 13,604 2,602 - 16,206 16,206 -

S 22,854 8,190 (5,583) 25,461 24,693 768

Total

Changes in deferred outflows of resources of governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2021, are shown in lllustration 10-8.

lllustration 10-8

Governmental Activities — Changes in Deferred Outflow of Resources

June 30, 2021

Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance
Unamortized deferred loss on refunding S 31,474 - (3,514) 27,960
Related to OPEB (Footnote 14) 11,430 12,321 (11,430) 12,321
Related to pensions (Footnote 13) 75,285 51,344 - 126,629
Total S 118,189 63,665 (14,944) 166,910

Changes in deferred outflows of resources of business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2021, are shown in lllustration 10-9.

Hlustration 10-9

Business-Type Activities — Changes in Deferred Outflow of Resources

June 30, 2021

Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance
Unamortized deferred loss on refunding S 261 9 (262) 8
Related to OPEB 139 4 - 143
Related to pensions 921 585 - 1,506
Total S 1,321 598 (262) 1,657
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Changes in long-term liabilities of the component units for the year ended June 30, 2021, are shown in lllustration 10-10.

lllustration 10-10
Component Units — Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

June 30, 2021
Duein Due
Beginni Endi More Than Within
eginning ;. . nding One One
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Year Year
School Board:
Compensated absences S 36,718 16,137 (12,196) 40,659 28,094 12,565
Net pension liabilities (Footnote 13) 880,641 123,101 - 1,003,742 1,003,742 -
Net OPEB liabilities (Footnote 14) 159,353  (19,589) - 139,764 139,764 -
Pollution remediation 462 1,531 (1,152) 841 - 841
Claims liabilities 14,108 96,218 (94,790) 15,536 4,930 10,606
Total School Board component unit 1,091,282 220,400  (108,138) 1,203,544 1,179,532 24,012
Adult Detention Center:
Compensated absences 4,253 (526) 643 4,370 4,095 275
Net pension liabilities (Footnote 13) 17,828 8,673 - 26,501 26,501 -
Net OPEB liabilities (Footnote 14) 4,524 - (329) 4,195 4,195 -
Total Adult Detention Center 26,605 8,147 314 35,066 34,791 275
component unit
Total S 1,117,887 228,547 (107,824) 1,238,610 1,214,323 24,287

Defeasance of Long-Term Debt

In the current and prior years, the County defeased certain bonds, some of which have been called and repaid. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds were not included in the County’s financial statements. On June 30, 2021,
$128,535 in principal of bonds outstanding is considered defeased by the County.

A. Component Unit Debt

The Code of Virginia establishes the School Board as a legal entity holding title to all school assets but having no taxing authority. The
County must issue debt through bond referendum, Virginia Public School Authority or Literary Fund. Historically, the County has reported
all School Board assets along with the related debt in the School Board component unit column of its ACFR. GASB 34 provided specific
guidance that requires localities to separate internal activities (within the primary government) from intra-entity activities (between the
primary government and its component units). This guidance prevents local governments from allocating debt incurred “on behalf” of
school boards to the School Board component unit column.

Therefore, the School Board assets are included in the component unit column while the debts related to those assets are included in the
Primary Government — Governmental Activities column on Exhibit 1. On June 30, 2021, the County has outstanding debt of $879,359
reflected in the Primary Government — Governmental Activities column on Exhibit 1 as a reduction to the unrestricted net position of
the County.

Similarly, assets of the Adult Detention Center are included in the component unit column, while the debts related to those assets are
included in the Primary Government — Governmental Activities column on Exhibit 1. On June 30, 2021, the County has outstanding debt
of $48,070 reflected in the Primary Government — Governmental Activities column on Exhibit 1 as a reduction to the unrestricted net
position of the County, respectively that relates to the Adult Detention Center.

To assist the readers in understanding this relationship and to reflect the total entity’s financial condition more accurately, a total
Reporting Entity column has been added to match the asset and related debt information.
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Illustration 11-1 details the fund balances of the County's Governmental funds and Adult Detention Center (ADC) component unit on
June 30, 2021.

Mustration 11-1
Fund Balances
June 30, 2021

Governmental Funds

Fire &
Capital Rescue CO¥ID-19 Total ADC
General Projects Leuy Response Other Funds Governmental Component
Fund Funds Funds Fund Governmental Funds Unit
MNonspendable Fund Balance:
Inyentary : 297 - - - 24 321 -
Prepaid expenditures - - - El 2163 2172 -
Total Nonspendable Fund Balance 297 - - k]l 2187 2493 -
Restricted Fund Balance:
Grants 8,048 - - 107 - 2,953 -
Donations E54 - - - - E59
General gowvernment administration - - - - 26,538 26,538 -
Fublic safety - - 41,132 - 15,300 59,482 -
Fublic work.s - - - - 5528 5528 -
Community development - - - - bE72 BETZ -
Total Restricted fund balance 8,506 - 41,182 107 55,038 105,532 -
Committed Fund Balance:
Capital reserve E1,7ED - - - - B1,7E0 -
FRewenue stabilization reserve 20,445 - - - - 26,445 -
Emergency response resene 10,000 - - - - 10,000 -
Economic development opportunity fund 5534 } } : : 5534 A
IFMINF
General government administration B,ED4 16,264 - - - 22,538 -
Judicial administration 1,735 577 - - - e ) -
Fublic safety - 8,826 - - - 89,826 -
Fublic work.s 17,631 37667 - - - 55,268 -
Health and welfare - 142 - - - 42 -
Education 12,912 - - - - 12,913 -
Farks, recreational, and cultural 14492 nE32 - - - 13,184 -
Caommunity development 11 13,993 - - - 14,004 -
Total Committed Fund Balance 142,265 29,651 - - - 23,918 -
Assigned Fund Balance:
General government administration 3715 - - - - 3715 -
Judicial administration ] - - - - 173 -
Fublic safety 2140 - - - - 2140 5,023
Fublic works 4,007 - - - - 4,007 -
Health and welfare 2,093 - - - - 2,093 -
Fark.z, recreational, and cultural 374 - - - - 3744 -
Community development 1,056 - - - - 1,056 -
Total Assigned Fund Balance 16,940 - - - 16,340 5,023
Total Unassigned Fund Balance 35,453 - - - - 95,453 10,615
Total Fund Balance 264 466 29,651 41,182 11§ 57,225 452,640 15,638

For further information about each classification of fund balance, see Note 1.

Fund Balance Classification. The County considers restricted amounts to have been spent first when both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available. When amounts from multiple fund balance classifications are eligible to be expended, the County considers
the amounts to be spent first from the category with the most stringent constraints and last from the category with the least stringent
constraints.
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Non-spendable Fund Balance. The amounts that are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balances. The portion of fund balance appropriated for expenditures or legally segregated for a specific future use. The
County’s restricted fund balance includes amounts restricted for unspent bond proceeds, cash equivalents, grants, debt service, net
pension assets, and revenues from Special Revenue funds.

Committed Fund Balance. The County’s highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of County Supervisors. The formal action
required to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a resolution of the Board of County Supervisors.

Assigned Fund Balance. Assignment of fund balance occurs only through the encumbrance of funds for specific future transactions
identified during the current fiscal year and are not related to transactions captured in restricted or committed fund balances.
Department directors have the authority to approve such encumbrances; the County Executive has the authority to modify or rescind
any fund balance assignment per §100.12(D)2. (a) of the County’s Purchasing Regulations.

Unassigned Fund Balance. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund.

Illustration 11-2 details the encumbrances of the County’s Governmental funds and Adult Detention Center (ADC) component unit on
June 30, 2021.

Illustration 11-2
June 30, 2021
Encumbrances

Governmental Funds

Total ADC
Capital Fire & Rescue Other Funds  Governmental Component
General Fund  Projects Funds Levy Funds Governmental Funds Unit
Encumbrances S 20,796 229,622 6,016 3,106 259,540 5,023

In fiscal year 2021, the Landfill enterprise fund had no outstanding debt and there were no bond coverage requirements.

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its Independent Hill landfill site when it stops accepting
waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. Although closure and post
closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these
closure and post closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of the end of each fiscal
year. The $16,206 reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability on June 30, 2021, represents the cumulative amount reported
to date based on the use of 100% of the Phase | landfill, and 41.50% of Phase Il and Ill of the landfill, which are the only remaining
disposal phases in the southern portion of the landfill. The total landfill capacity for the southern portion which include phases I, Il and
11l for post closure is 61.06%.

The total maximum exposure liability for closure and post closure care for Phases Il and Ill of the landfill is estimated at $41,217 at June
30, 2021. The County has paid $3,525 of closure costs as of June 30, 2021. The County will recognize the remaining total estimated cost
of closure and post closure care for the southern portion of the landfill of $21,485 as the remaining estimated capacity of the southern
portion of the landfill is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in 2021. The
County expects to complete filling the southern portion of the landfill site in the year 2033 and to close the remaining phases of the
southern portion of the landfill by 2038. The northern portion of the landfill is estimated to be closed around 2060-2065. The total
current cost of landfill closure and post closure care is an estimate and subject to changes resulting from inflation, deflation, technology,
or changes in applicable laws or regulations.
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1. Prince William County Pension Plans
The County maintains three pension plans for its employees:
e  Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan

e  Prince William County Supplemental Plan for Sworn and Uniformed Public Safety Personnel (Supplemental Pension Plan)

. Prince William County Volunteer Fire and Rescue Personnel Length of Service Award Program (LoSAP)

The aggregate amount of net pension liability / (asset), related deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension
expense for the County’s pension plans as of June 30, 2021, with measurement date of June 30, 2020, are summarized in lllustration 13-
1 below.

lllustration 13-1
Prince William County Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Net Pension / (Asset) Liability and Related Amounts
June 30, 2021

Deferred Deferred
Net Pension Outflows of Inflows of Pension
MEASUREMENT DATE 6/30/20 Liability / (Asset) Resources Resources Expense
Virginia Retirement System S 297,972 134,486 1,991 64,932
Supplemental Pension Plan 263 4,478 1,403 1,124
Length of Service Award Program 10,168 1,820 103 2,416
Total Pension S 308,403 140,784 3,497 68,472
Primary Government:
Governmental Funds S 267,272 121,531 3,002 59,341
Intra-County Services 10,815 4,883 72 2,357
Health Insurance 477 215 3 104
Total Governmental Funds 278,564 126,629 3,077 61,802
Landfill 3,338 1,506 22 727
Total Proprietary Funds 3,338 1,506 22 727
Total Primary Government (A) 281,902 128,135 3,099 62,529
Component Unit:
Adult Detention Center (B) 26,501 12,649 398 5,943
Total Pension - County Funded (A+B) S 308,403 * 140,784 3,497 68,472
Schools Pensions Plans (C)** S 1,003,741 281,406 63,884 125,714
Total Component Units (B+C) 1,030,242 294,055 64,282 131,657
Total Reporting Entity (A+B+C) S 1,312,144 * 422,190 67,381 194,186

Note: Amounts are allocated to the funds based on proportion of pension contributions paid.
*Supplemental Pension Plan net pension assets cannot be netted against net pension liabilities of other pension plans.
** Please see Schools separately issued financial statements for further information and lllustration 13-31 below.
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Summary Financial Statements for Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans Self-Insured by the County for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2021:

Illustration 13-2 is a summary of the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position of the Supplemental Pension Plan and LoSAP trust funds. See the
following discussion for further information on each plan.

Illustration 13-2
Prince William County - Pension Trust Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2021

Supplemental Total Pension
Pension Plan LoSAP Plan Trust
Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds
Assets:
Restricted cash S 513 - 513
Restricted investments 55,138 19,529 74,667
Accounts Receivable 146 146
Total Assets 55,797 19,529 75,326
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 66 13 79
Total Liabilities 66 13 79
Net position:
Net position restricted for pensions 55,731 19,516 75,247
Total net position S 55,731 19,516 75,247
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Illustration 13-3 is a summary of the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position of the Supplemental Pension Plan and LoSAP trust
funds.

lllustration 13-3
Prince William County - Pension Trust Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Supplemental

Pension Plan Trust Total Pension
Fund LoSAP Trust Fund Plan Trust Funds
Additions
Member contributions S 2,030 - 2,030
Employer contributions 2,030 1,536 3,566
Total contributions 4,060 1,536 5,596
Other Income 12 - 12
Investment Income
Total investment income 11,070 547 11,617
Less: investment expense (130) - (130)
Net investment income 10,940 547 11,487
Total additions 15,012 2,083 17,095
Deductions
Benefit payments 2,288 567 2,855
Refund of members’ contributions 222 - 222
Administrative expenses 182 155 337
Total deductions 2,692 722 3,414
Change in net position 12,320 1,361 13,681
Net position, beginning of year 43,411 18,155 61,566
Net position, end of year S 55,731 19,516 75,247

A. County’s Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
County’s Plan Overview:

County’s plan administration. The County and the Adult Detention Center component unit contribute to the Virginia Retirement System
(VRS), a multi-employer, agent pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the “System”), along with plans for other
employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the County and the Adult Detention
Center are automatically covered by VRS upon employment. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are
employed and for which they and their employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on
specific criteria a defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service,
active military service, certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

Professional and non-professional employees of the School Board are also covered by the VRS. Professional employees participate in a
VRS statewide teacher cost-sharing pool, and non-professional employees participate as a separate group in the multi-employer, agent
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retirement system. The Prince William County Public Schools retirement plans are reported separately in their audited financial
statements. Copies of these financial statements may be obtained by writing to the School Board’s Finance Division at P.O. Box 389,
Manassas, Virginia 20108.

Summary of significant accounting policies. The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Prince William County Retirement Plan is a multi-
employer, agent plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County Retirement Plan and the
additions to/deductions from the County Retirement Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Plan description. All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the County are automatically covered by a VRS Retirement Plan upon
employment. This plan is administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their
employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in the Code of
Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active military service, certain periods of
leave, and previously refunded service.

County’s benefits provided. The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees — Plan 1, Plan 2, and a Hybrid
Retirement Plan. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria. The specific information for each plan and the eligibility
for covered groups within each plan are discussed in Illustration 13-4.

Illustration 13-4
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan
VRS Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 2

VRS Plan 1 Hybrid Retirement Plan

About the Plans

Plan 1 is a defined benefit
plan. The retirement benefits
are based on a member’s age,
service credit and average
final compensation at
retirement using a formula.

Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan.
The retirement benefits are

The Hybrid Retirement Plan combines the features of a
defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan.

based on a member’s age,
service credit and average final
compensation at retirement
using a formula.

The defined benefit is based on a member’s age,
service credit and average final compensation at
retirement using a formula.

The benefit from the defined contribution
component of the plan depends on the member
and County contributions made to the plan and
the investment performance of those
contributions.

In addition to the monthly benefit payments
payable from the defined benefit plan at
retirement, a member may start receiving
distributions from the balance in the defined
contribution account, reflecting the
contributions, investment gains or losses, and
any required fees.

102




Illustration 13-4 (cont’d)
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan

VRS Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1 VRS Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan
Eligible Members
Eligible Members: Eligible Members: Eligible Members:

Employees are in Plan 1 if their
membership date is before July
1, 2010, and were vested as of
January 1, 2013, and they
have not taken a refund.

Hybrid Opt-In Election:

VRS non-hazardous duty
covered Plan 1 members were
allowed to make an irrevocable
decision to opt into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan during a special
election window held January 1
through April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s
effective date for eligible
Plan 1 members who opted
in was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members
returned to work during the
election window, they were
also eligible to opt into the
Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible
for an optional retirement
plan (ORP) and have prior
service under Plan 1 were
not eligible to elect the
Hybrid Retirement Plan and
remain as Plan 1 or ORP.

Employees are in Plan 2 if their
membership date is on or after
July 1, 2010, or their membership
date is before July 1, 2010, and
they were not vested as of
January 1, 2013.

Hybrid Opt-In Election:

Eligible Plan 2 members could
make an irrevocable decision to
opt into the Hybrid Retirement
Plan during a special election
window held January 1 through
April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s
effective date for eligible Plan 2
members who opted in was
July 1, 2014,

If eligible deferred members
returned to work during the
election window, they were also
eligible to opt into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible for
an optional retirement plan
(ORP) and have prior service
under Plan 2 were not eligible to
elect the Hybrid Retirement
Plan and remain as Plan 2 or
ORP.

Employees are in the Hybrid Retirement Plan if their
membership date is on or after January 1, 2014. This
includes:

e County employees*

e Members in Plan 1 or Plan 2 who elected to opt into
the plan during the election window held January 1-
April 30, 2014; the plan’s effective date for opt-in
members was July 1, 2014.

*Non-Eligible Members:
Some employees are not eligible to participate in the
Hybrid Retirement Plan. They include:

e County employees who are covered by enhanced
benefits for hazardous duty employees.

Those employees eligible for an optional retirement plan
(ORP) must elect the optional retirement plan (ORP) plan
or the Hybrid Retirement Plan. If these members have
prior service under Plan 1 or Plan 2, they are not eligible
to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and must select Plan
1 or Plan 2 (as applicable) or ORP.
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lllustration 13-4 (cont’d)
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan

VRS Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1

VRS Plan 2

Hybrid Retirement Plan

Retirement Contributions

Employees contribute 5% of their
compensation each month to their
member contributions account
through a pre-tax salary reduction.
Member contributions are tax-
deferred until they are withdrawn
as part of a retirement benefit or
as a refund. The County makes a
separate actuarially determined
contrition to VRS for all covered
employees. VRS invests both
member and County contributions
to provide funding for the future
benefit payments.

Same as Plan 1.

A member’s retirement benefit is funded through
mandatory and voluntary contributions made by the
member and the County to both the defined benefit
and the defined contribution components of the
plan. Mandatory contributions are based on a
percentage of the employee’s creditable
compensation and are required for both the
member and the County. Additionally, members
may choose to make voluntary contributions to the
defined contribution component of the plan, and
the County is required to match those voluntary
contribution according to specified percentages.

Service Credit

Service credit includes active
service. Members earn service
credit for each month they are
employed in a covered position.
It also may include credit for
prior service the member has
purchased or additional service
credit the member was granted.
A member’s total service credit is
one of the factors used to
determine their eligibility for
retirement and to calculate their
retirement benefit. It also may
count toward eligibility for the
health insurance credit in
retirement, if the County offers
the health insurance

credit.

Same as Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component:

Under the defined benefit component of the plan,
service credit includes active service. Members earn
service credit for each month they are employed in
a covered position. It also may include credit for
prior service the member has purchased or
additional service credit the member was granted.
A member’s total service credit is one of the
factors used to determine their eligibility for
retirement and to calculate their retirement benefit.
It also may count toward eligibility for the health
insurance credit in retirement if the County offers
the health insurance credit.

Defined Contribution Component:

Under the defined contribution component,
service credit is used to determine vesting for the
County contribution portion of the plan.

Vesting

Vesting is the minimum length of
service a member needs to qualify
for a future retirement benefit.
Members become vested when
they have at least five years (60
months) of service credit.

Same as Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component: Defined benefit
vesting is the minimum length of service a member
needs to qualify for a future retirement benefit.
Members are vested under the defined benefit
component of the Hybrid Retirement Plan when
they reach five years (60 months) of service credit.
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lllustration 13-4 (cont’d)

Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan VRS

Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1

VRS Plan 2

Hybrid Retirement Plan

Vesting (cont’d)

Vesting means members are
eligible to qualify for retirement
if they meet the age and service
requirements for their plan.
Members also must be vested to
receive a full refund of their
member contribution account
balance if they leave
employment and request a
refund.

Members are always 100%
vested in the contributions
that they make.

Plan 1 or Plan 2 members with at least five years (60
months) of service credit who opted into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan remain vested in the defined benefit
component.

Defined Contribution Component:

Defined contribution vesting refers to the minimum
length of service a member needs to be eligible to
withdraw the County contributions from the defined
contribution component of the plan.

Members are always 100% vested in the contributions
that they make.

Upon retirement or leaving covered employment, a
member is eligible to withdraw a percentage of County
contributions to the defined contribution component of
the plan, based on service.

o After two years, a member is 50% vested and may
withdraw 50% of County contributions.

o After three years, a member is 75% vested and may
withdraw 75% of County contributions.

o After four or more years, a member is 100% vested and
may withdraw 100% of County contributions.

Distribution is not required, except as governed by law.

Calculating the Benefit

The basic benefit is determined
using the average final
compensation, service credit and
plan multiplier. An early
retirement reduction is applied
to this amount if the member is
retiring with a reduced benefit.
In cases where the member has
elected an optional form of
retirement payment, an option
factor specific to the option
chosen is then applied.

Same definition under Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component:
See definition under Plan 1.

Defined Contribution Component:

The benefit is based on contributions made by the
member and any matching contributions made by the
County, plus net investment earnings on those
contributions.
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lllustration 13-4 (cont’d)
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan VRS

Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1

VRS Plan 2

Hybrid Retirement Plan

Average Final Compensation

The member’s average final
compensation is the average
of the 36 consecutive months
of highest compensation as a
covered employee.

The member’s average final
compensation is the average of
the 60 consecutive months of
highest compensation as a
covered employee.

Same as Plan 2. It is used in the retirement formula for
the defined benefit component of the plan.

Service Retirement Multiplier

The retirement multiplier is a
factor used in the formula to
determine a final retirement
benefit. The retirement multiplier
for each employee class is as
follows:

e 1.70% for non-hazardous duty
members.

¢ 1.85% for sheriffs and regional
jail superintendents.

e 1.85% as elected by the County
for eligible County hazardous
duty employees other than
sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents.

Same as Plan 1 for service
earned, purchased, or granted
prior to January 1, 2013. For
non-hazardous duty members
the retirement multiplier is 1.65%
for service credit earned,
purchased, or granted on or after
January 1, 2013.

Same as Plan 1 for sheriffs,
regional jail superintendents and
all other hazardous duty
employees.

Defined Benefit Component:
The retirement multiplier for the defined benefit
component is 1.00%.

For members who opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan
from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the applicable multipliers for those
plans will be used to calculate the retirement benefit for

service credited in those plans.

This is not applicable for sheriffs, regional jail
superintendents and all other hazardous duty
employees.

Defined Contribution Component:
Not applicable.

Normal Retirement Age

VRS: Age 65. VRS: Normal Social Security Defined Benefit Component:
retirement age. VRS: Same as Plan 2.

County hazardous duty &

employees: Age 60.

County hazardous duty
employees: Same as Plan 1.

County hazardous duty employees:
Not applicable.

Defined Contribution Component:
Members are eligible to receive distribution upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.
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lllustration 13-4 (cont’d)
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan VRS

Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1

VRS Plan 2

Hybrid Retirement Plan

Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility

VRS: Age 65 with at least five
years (60 months) of service
credit or at age 50 with at least
30 years of service credit.

County hazardous duty
employees: Age 60 with at least
five years of service credit or age
50 with at least 25 years of
service credit.

VRS: Normal Social Security
retirement age with at least five
years (60 months) of service
credit or when their age and
plus service equals 90.

County hazardous duty
employees: Same as Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component:

VRS: Normal Social Security retirement age and have at
least five years (60 months) of service credit or when
their age plus service credit equal 90.

County hazardous duty employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contribution Component:

Members are eligible to receive distributions upon
leaving employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility

VRS: Age 55 with at least five
years (60 months) of service
credit or age 50 with at least 10
years of service credits.

County hazardous duty
employees: Age 50 with at least
five years of service credits.

VRS: Age 60 with at least five
years (60 months) of service
credit.

County hazardous duty
employees: Same as Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component:

VRS: Age 60 with at least five years (60 months) of
service credit.

County hazardous duty employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contribution Component:

Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement

The COLA matches the first 3%
increase in the Consumer Price
Index for all Urban Consumers
(CPI-U) and half of any additional
increase (up to 4%) up to a
maximum COLA of 5%.

Eligibility:

For members who retire with an
unreduced benefit or with a
reduced benefit with at least 20
years of service credit, the COLA
will go into effect on July 1 after
one full calendar year from the
retirement date.

For members who retire with a
reduced benefit and who have
less than 20 years of service
credit, the COLA will go into
effect on July 1 after one
calendar year following the
unreduced retirement eligibility
date.

The COLA matches the first 2%
increase in the CPI-U and half of
any additional increase (up to
2%), for a maximum COLA of 3%.

Eligibility:
Same as Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component:
Same as Plan 2.

Defined Contribution Component: Not applicable.

Eligibility:
Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.
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lllustration 13-4 (cont’d)

Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan

VRS Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1

VRS Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) in

Retirement (cont’d)

Exceptions to COLA Effective
Dates:

The COLA is effective July 1
following one full calendar year
(January 1 to December 31)
under any of the following
circumstances:

e The member is within five
years of qualifying for an
unreduced retirement benefit
as of January 1, 2013.

e The member retires on
disability.

e The member retires directly
from short-term or long-
term.

e The member is involuntarily
separated from employment
for causes other than job
performance or misconduct
and is eligible to retire under
the Workforce Transition Act or
the Transitional Benefits
Program.

e The member dies in service and
the member’s survivor, or
beneficiary is eligible for a
monthly death-in-service
benefit.

Exceptions to COLA Effective Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:
Dates: Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.
Same as Plan 1.
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lllustration 13-4 (cont’d)

Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan

VRS Retirement Plan Provisions

VRS Plan 1

VRS Plan 2

Hybrid Retirement Plan

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement (cont’d)

e The COLA will go into effect on
July 1 following one full
calendar year (January 1 to
December 31) from the date
the monthly benefit begins.

Disability Coverage

Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability
retirement and retire on
disability, the retirement
multiplier is 1.70% on all service,
regardless of when it was earned,
purchased, or granted.

Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability
retirement and retire on
disability, the retirement
multiplier is 1.65% on all service,
regardless of when it was earned,
purchased, or granted.

Employees of the County (including Plan 1 and Plan 2
opt-ins) participate in the Virginia Local Disability
Program (VLDP) unless the County provides a County-
paid comparable program for its members.

Hybrid members (including Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins)
covered under VLDP are subject to a one-year waiting
period before becoming eligible for non-work-related
disability benefits.

Purchase of Prior Service

Members may be eligible to
purchase service from previous
public employment, active duty
military service, an eligible period
of leave or VRS refunded service
as service credit in their plan.
Prior service credit counts
toward vesting, eligibility for
retirement and the health
insurance credit. Only active
members are eligible to purchase
prior service. Members also may
be eligible to purchase periods of
leave without pay.

Same as Plan 1.

Defined Benefit Component:
Same as Plan 1, with the following exceptions:

o Hybrid Retirement Plan members are ineligible for
ported service.

Defined Contribution Component:
Not applicable.
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County Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. As of June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation, the following County employees were covered by
benefit terms of the pension plan in Illustration 13-5.

lllustration 13-5
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Pension Plan
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of June 30, 2019

Inactive plan members or their beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2,382
Inactive members:

Vested inactive members 698

Non-vested inactive members 1,267

Inactive members active elsewhere in VRS 664

Total inactive members 2,629

Active employees 4,177

Total covered members 9,188

County contributions. The VRS contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia General Assembly.
Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their retirement.

The County’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, was 14.68% of the covered
employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019.

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the VRS pension plans from the County
were $45,001 and $38,050 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, respectively.

County’s Net Pension Liability:

The County's net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each employer and represents the County's total pension liability
determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, less the County's fiduciary net position. For the County, the NPL was measured
as of June 30, 2020. The total pension liability used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2019, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2020.
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County’s actuarial assumption. The total pension liability for employees in the County’s VRS pension plan was based on an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the assumptions displayed in lllustration 13-6,
applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 20120.

lllustration 13-6
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions as of the Valuation Date of June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level percent closed

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation*
Inflation 2.50%

Payroll Growth Rate 3.00%

Cost-of Living Increase 2.50% Plan 1; 2.25% all other members

General Employees:

Salary Increase 3.50% - 5.35%, including inflation
Mortality Rates 20% of deaths are assumed to be service related
Mortality:

RP-2014 Employee rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 81 and older projected

Pre-Reti
re-Retirement with scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates

RP-2014 Employee rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 50 and older projected
Post-Retirement with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1% increase compounded from
ages 70 to 90

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2

Post-Disabl t
ost-Disablemen years, 110% of rates; females 125% of rates

Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits:

Salary Increase 3.50% - 4.75%, including inflation
Mortality Rates 70% of deaths are assumed to be service related
Mortality:

RP-2014 Employee rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 81 and older projected

Pre-Reti t .
re-retiremen with scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year

RP-2014 Employee rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 50 and older, projected
Post-Retirement with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year, 1% increase compounded from ages 70 to
90; females set forward 3 years

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2

Post-Disablement . .
years; unisex using 100% male

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the fair value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes
of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment
return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected
rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019, valuation was based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period
from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective July

1, 2019.

County’s changes in assumptions and benefit terms. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as

follows:

County’s General Employees.

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Update to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 to 75

\Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of
service

Disability Rates

Lowered rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increase rate from 14.00% to 20.00%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

County’s Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits.

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Update to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered rates at older ages

\Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience

Disability Rates

Increased rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increase rate from 60% to 70%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

112




County’s long-term expected rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined
using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in Illustration 13-7.

lllustration 13-7
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plan
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Arithmetic Long- Weighted Average
Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Target Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Public Equity 34.00% 4.65% 1.58%
Fixed Income 15.00% 46.00% 0.07%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.38% 0.75%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.01% 0.70%
Private Equity 14.00% 8.34% 1.17%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.04% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.49% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 4.64%
Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.14%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.14%. However, one-year returns do not consider the volatility present in
each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are employed to model
future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately
provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term
rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation. More recent
capital market assumptions compiled for the FY2020 actuarial valuations, provide a median return of 6.81%.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes and the County’s
contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the rate
contributed by the for the County's VRS Retirement Plan will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board certified rates that are funded
by the Virginia General Assembly. From July 1, 2020, on, participating employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the VRS plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

County’s Changes in Net Pension Liability:

Illustration 13-8 presents the changes in net position liabilities from June 30, 2019, to June 30, 2020, which is the measurement date
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
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Illustration 13-8
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plan

Changes in Net Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary

Total Pension Net Position- Net Pension
Liability Increase (Decrease) Liability
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 1,399,469 1,191,921 207,548
Changes for the year:
Service cost 39,422 - 39,422
Interest 92,309 - 92,309
Changes in assumptions - - -
Differences between expected
and actual experience 33,766 - 33,766
Contributions - employer - 38,018 (38,018)
Contributions - employee - 15,122 (15,122)
Net investment income - 22,732 (22,732)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (63,843) (63,843) -
Administrative expenses - (770) 770
Other changes - (29) 29
Net changes 101,654 11,230 90,424
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 1,501,123 1,203,151 297,972

Sensitivity of the County’s net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 13-9 presents the net pension liability of the
County measured as of June 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ended as of June 30, 2021, using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as the
County’s net pension liability if calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point
higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

lllustration 13-9
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plan
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease
(5.75%)

1.00% Increase
(7.75%)

Current Discount Rate
(6.75%)

County's Net Pension Liability S 492,065 297,972 136,676
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County’s Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and measured as of June 30, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $64,932. On June
30, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the sources
displayed in lllustration 13-10.

Illustration 13-10
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 30,289 1,991

Change in actuarial assumptions 23,141 -

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 36.055 )
plan investments ’

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 45,001 -

Total 134,486 1,991

$45,001 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the County’s contributions to the VRS subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in
future reporting periods as displayed in Illustration 13-11.

Illustration 13-11
Prince William County - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 18,203
2023 29,197
2024 25,558
2025 14,536
2026 -
Thereafter -

Total S 87,494

Pension plan data. Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS 2020
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). A copy of the 2020 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at:
https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2020-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.
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B. Prince William County Supplemental Pension Plan for Sworn & Uniformed Public Safety
Plan Activity for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021:
County’s Plan Description:

County’s plan administration. The Supplemental Pension Plan is a single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Plan’s
Board of Trustees. Terms and provisions of the Plan may be recommended for amendment to the Board of County Supervisors by the
Plan’s Board of Trustees. The Supplemental Pension Plan was amended per Resolutions No. 20-540 on July 21, 2020, and 21-297 on May
18, 2021, by the Board of County Supervisors. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Each police officer and uniformed Fire & Rescue Department personnel employed by the County prior to July 1, 1985, is eligible to
participate in the Plan as of July 1, 1985, if they were covered by and participating in the VRS and elected to participate in the Plan. Each
police officer and uniformed Fire & Rescue Department personnel, hired after June 30, 1985, becomes a participant on his or her date of
employment. The Supplemental Pension Plan provides retirement and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The 2019 Plan
amendment extended Plan benefits to sworn and uniformed employees of the Sheriff’s Office and the Prince William-Manassas Regional
Adult Detention Center effective on the later of the employee’s date of hire or July 1, 2019.

County’s benefits provided. The Plan is designed to provide a benefit upon the retirement of participants, the amount of which considers
the length of service and the compensation paid by the County to such employees with recognition given to the benefits that will be
provided by the VRS. The normal retirement date is the earlier of the participant’s 55th birthday or the completion of 25 years of credited
service. Benefits, at the participants’ irrevocable election, are i) the larger of 1.5% of the participant’s final average annual compensation
times credited service or 1.65% of the participant’s final average compensation in excess of $1.2 multiplied by the years of credited
service; ii) for Participants whose most recent date of hire is prior to January 1, 2018 and who have Credited Service on or after March
30, 2001, a guaranteed monthly benefit of $0.64 thousand for 180 months; for Participants whose most recent date of hire is on or after
January 1, 2018 and who retire with at least twenty-five (25) years of Credited Service, a guaranteed monthly benefit of $0.64 thousand
for 180 months; for Participants with Credited Service on or after July 1, 2021, the benefit shall be applied by substituting $0.79 thousand
for $0.64 thousand; or iii) a lump sum benefit of the participant’s contribution with interest plus the employer's contributions during the
period of employment. Final average compensation for participants hired or rehired before July 1, 2010, is the highest compensation
received during the 36 consecutive calendar months producing the highest average, or if the participant has less than 36 consecutive
months of credited service, it is the average annual compensation received during the entire period of credited service prior to the
termination of employment. Final average compensation for participants hired after June 30, 2010, is the highest compensation received
during the 60 consecutive calendar months producing the highest average or if the participant has less than 60 consecutive months of
credited service, it is the average annual compensation received during the entire period of credited service prior to the termination of
employment.

Participants shall vest 100% in the benefit provided under the Plan upon attainment of the participant’s normal retirement date.
Participants are considered vested and eligible for early retirement after 20 years of credited service. Early retirement benefits at the
participants’ election are i) for Participants whose most recent date of hire is prior to January 1, 2018 and who have Credited Service on
or after March 30, 2001, a guaranteed monthly benefit of $0.32 thousand for 180 months; for Participants whose most recent date of
hire is on or after January 1, 2018 and who retire with at least twenty-five (25) years of Credited Service, a guaranteed monthly benefit
of $0.32 thousand for 180 months; for Participants with Credited Service on or after July 1, 2021, the benefit shall be applied by
substituting $0.395 thousand for $0.32 thousand; or ii) the withdrawal benefit plus an employer match equal to 100% multiplied by the
ratio of number of completed years of service at early retirement to 25 years. Any participant or spouse receiving a monthly benefit for
at least one year is eligible for the pension increase each July 1st. For participants hired before July 1, 2010, the benefit will be increased
by 100% of the first 3% increase in the cost-of-living index plus 50% of the increase in the cost-of-living index in excess of 3%. Increases
in the cost-of-living index in excess of 7% are not recognized, for a maximum increase under the Plan of 5%. For participants hired after
June 30, 2010, the benefit will be increased by 100% of the first 2% increase in the cost-of-living index plus 50% of the increase in the
cost-of-living index in excess of 2%. Increases in the cost- of-living index in excess of 6% are not recognized, for a maximum increase
under the Plan of 4%. Increases do not apply to supplemental benefits or early retirement pensions.
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County employees covered by benefit terms. The Supplemental Pension Plan membership covered by the benefit terms as of the July 1,
2019, actuarial valuation, is presented in lllustration 13-12.

lllustration 13-12
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Plan Membership as of June 30, 2020

Inactive plan members or their beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 211
Inactive members not currently receiving benefits:

Vested inactive members 450

Non-vested inactive members 129

Total inactive members 579

Active employees 1,670

Total covered members 2,460

County contributions. The Plan’s Board of Trustees establishes rates based on an actuarially determined rate recommended by an
independent actuary. The County is not required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the
contribution rate of plan members to the Plan Trust Fund. However, as specified in the County’s Principles of Sound Financial
Management, the County intends to make the entire recommended contribution amount each year. For the year ended June 30, 2021,
the average contribution rate was 1.44% of annual payroll.

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by the employee during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the Supplemental Pension Plan by the County
were $2,030 and $1,921 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, respectively.

lllustration 13-13
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Actuarial Valuation Methods and Assumptions as of June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Aggregate
Amortization Method Level percentage of projected payroll

Asset smoothing method. Spreading the investment gains or losses in excess of the

Asset Valuation Method .
assumed rate over a 5-year period

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense
Salary Increase 4.50%, including inflation
Inflation 3.00%

RP-2000 Combined Healthy table with Blue Collar adjustment with generational

Mortality Rat L . . .
ortaiity Rates projection by Scale AA. 20% of active participant deaths are assumed to be line-of-duty.

County’s Net Pension Liability (Asset):

The County’s net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2019, using actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020. GASB 68 pension liabilities were calculated
using sworn police and fire participants’ data as of June 30, 2019, and including Sheriff or ADC participants who entered the plan on July
1, 2019, with no prior service credits. The discount rate assumption used in the valuation at June 30, 2020, was 6.75%.

County’s actuarial assumption. The total pension liability for employees in the Supplemental Pension Plan was based on an actuarial

valuation as of June 30, 2019, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the assumptions displayed in Illustration 13-14,
applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020.
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County’s changes in assumptions and benefit terms. There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions related to the net pension
liability (asset) that was measured as of June 30, 2020.

Historical long term average returns have been used as a reasonable expectation of returns. The returns presented here are nominal,
20-year arithmetic means of the corresponding benchmark, less 2.2% to account for expected rate of inflation. Based on the 64.0%
Equity, 6.0% Real Assets, and 30.0% Fixed Income policy target allocation of the Plan, we are comfortable with a long-term net return of
6.75%. For the short term, we assumed that the current volatility in the markets could persist and assigned a 50% discount to long-term

expectations.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2021, (see the discussion of the pension plan’s investment policy) are summarized in lllustration 13-14.

lllustration 13-14
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Long Term Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Benchmark Index Annualized Return*

Domestic Equity 40.0% Russell 3000 8.0%

International Equity Developed 16.0% Blended Developed 5.8%

International Equity Emerging 8.0% MSCI Emerging Markets 10.1%

Real Estate 6.0% NCREIF NFI-ODCE 6.1%

Fixed Income US Investment Grade 30.0% Bloomberg Int. Gov/Cred 1.9%
100.0% Real Return 5.8%

*For illustrative purposes, historical long-term average returns have been used as a reasonable expectation of returns. The returns
presented are nominal, 20-year arithmetic means of the corresponding benchmark, less 2.2% to account for expected rate of inflation.
Based on the 64.0% Equity, 6.0% Real Assets, and 30.0% Fixed Income policy target allocation of the Plan, we are comfortable with a
long-term net return of 6.75%. For the short term, we assumed that the current volatility in the markets could persist and assigned a
50% discount to long-term expectations.

County’s money-weighted rate of return. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 25.96%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts invested.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability / asset was 6.75% for the measurement date as of
June 30, 2020. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that County contributions will be made at rates equal to the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on the Plan’s investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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County’s Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset):

Illustration 13-15 presents the changes in net pension liability (asset) from June 30, 2019, to June 30, 2020, which is the
measurement date for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Illustration 13-15
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Total Pension Position - Increase Liability
Liability (Decrease) (Asset)
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 40,862 41,679 (817)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,701 - 2,701
Interest 2,664 - 2,664
lefer.ences between expected and actual (469) i (469)
experience
Changes of assumptions 694 - 694
Contributions - employer - 1,921 (1,921)
Contributions - employee - 1,921 (1,921)
Net investment income - 812 (812)
Benefit paymentsf mcIIudlng refunds of (2,778) (2,778) )
employee contributions
Administrative expenses - (144) 144
Net changes 2,812 1,732 1,080
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 43,674 43,411 263

Sensitivity of the County’s net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 13-16 presents the net pension
liability (asset) of the County measures as of June 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using the discount rate of 6.75%
for the measurement date as of June 30, 2020. Therefore, both discount rates are used in the sensitivity analysis to calculate the
County’s net pension liability (asset) one percentage point lower (5.75% / 6.00%) and one percentage point higher (7.75% / 8.00%)
from the current discount rate (6.75% / 7.00%).

Illustration 13-16
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase

Fiscal Year Ended: (5.75% / 6.00%) (6.75% / 7.00%) (7.75% / 8.00%)
June 30, 2021 S (5,982) (8,922) (11,627)
June 30, 2020 S 3,140 263 (2,383)
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County’s Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and measured as of June 30, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $1,124. On
June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
sources displayed in lllustration 13-17.

Illustration 13-17
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows

MEASUREMENT DATE 6/30/20 Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S - 1,403
Changes of assumptions 595

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 1,853 -

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,030 -

Total S 4,478 1,403

The $2,030 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the County’s contributions to the Plan
subsequent to the measurement date, June 30, 2020, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as displayed in Illustration 13-18.

Illustration 13-18
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflow and (Inflow) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 $ (56)
2023 264
2024 414
2025 398
2026 (8)
Thereafter 33

Total S 1,045

County’s fiduciary net position. The components of the net pension liability / (asset) for the Supplemental Pension Plan as of June 30,
2021, are shown in Illustration 13-19.

Illustration 13-19
Prince William County - Supplemental Pension Plan
Supplemental Pension Plan Net Pension Liability / (Asset)

Net Pension
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Liability / Net Position as % of Total
Measurement Date Liability Net Position (Asset) Pension Liability
June 30, 2021 S 46,810 55,731 (8,921) 119.06%
June 30, 2020 S 43,674 43,411 263 99.40%
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C. Prince William County Volunteer Fire and Rescue Personnel Length of Service Award Program (LoSAP)
Plan Activity for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021:
County’s Plan Description:

County’s plan administration. The LoSAP plan is a single employer defined benefit pension plan that provides benefits for certified
volunteer fire department and rescue squad members and is administered by the LoSAP’s Board of Trustees. The benefit provisions,
and the contributions required to pay them, are established, and may be amended by the Board of County Supervisors and
additionally, administered by the LoSAP’s Board of Trustees. The LoSAP was authorized by the Board of County Supervisors on
October 22, 1991, and became effective July 1, 1997. The LoSAP plan was amended and restated by the Board of County Supervisors
on May 10, 2016, via Resolution No. 16-464 to update the LoSAP plan documents, governance structure, and other structural
changes to the plan. However, there was no change in eligibility requirements or benefits. The LoSAP Pension Trust Plan does not
issue a stand-alone financial report.

Certified active-duty fire department and rescue squad volunteers are eligible to participate in LoSAP upon attainment of the
minimum age of 21 years, and a minimum of ten months of service credit (30 hours per month), or a minimum of 360 hours of
service credit. Each certified active-duty fire department and rescue squad volunteer becomes a participant on July 1 coinciding
with or the next following year when all the eligibility requirements are met. The LoSAP plan provides retirement and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries.

County benefits provided. LoSAP is designed to provide a benefit upon the retirement of participants, the amount of which considers
the length of service. Normal retirement date is first day of the month coinciding with or next following attainment of age 60.
Benefits are $10 monthly times years of service with a 50% joint and survivor annuity. Normal Retirement Benefit accrues based on
service to date. The LoSAP plan also provides a pre-retirement death benefit or disability benefit after a minimum service of five
years. The pre-retirement death benefit provides a life annuity to the surviving spouse equal to 50% of the accrued benefit. For non-
married participants, a life annuity to a named beneficiary equal to 25% of the accrued benefit. Additional death benefit for active
members, $10 is provided to designated beneficiary. The disability benefit provides an immediate annuity equal to 100% of the
accrued benefit.

Participants shall vest upon termination after five years of service, a percentage, ranging from 50% for five years of service to 100%
for ten or more years of service, of the accrued benefit, deferred to normal retirement date.

County employees covered by benefit terms. The LoSAP plan membership covered by the benefit terms as of the July 1, 2019, actuarial
valuation, is presented in lllustration 13-20.

Illustration 13-20
Prince William County - LoSAP Plan
Plan Membership as of July 1, 2019

Inactive plan members or their beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 291
Inactive members not currently receiving benefits:

Vested inactive members 911

Non-vested inactive members 233

Total inactive members 1,435

Active participants 430

Total covered members 1,865

County’s contributions. The LoSAP Board of Trustees recommends the contribution amount based on an actuarially determined
contributions calculated by an independent actuary for approval by the County’s Board of Supervisors during the Budget approval
process each year. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by
plan members during the year and is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by the employee during the year. However,
specified in the County’s Principles of Sound Financial Management, the County intends to make the entire contribution amount
each year. The County paid contributions on behalf of each of the Volunteer Fire and Rescue Companies according to their respective
actuarial valuations.

121



Contributions to the LoSAP plan by the County were $1,536 and $1,156 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020,
respectively.

County’s Net Pension Liability:

The County’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2019, using actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020.

County’s actuarial assumption. The total pension liability for employees in the LoSAP plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of
July 1, 2019, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the assumptions displayed in Illustration 13-21, applied to all

periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of July 31, 2020.

Illustration 13-21
Prince William County- LoSAP Plan
Actuarial Valuation Methods and Assumptions as of July 1, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level dollar, including inflation
Asset Valuation Method Fair Value
Investment Rate of Return 3.00%
Discount Rate 3.00%
Tax-exempt, high-quality general obligation
.. . N/A

municipal bond index rate
Salary Increase N/A *
Inflation 2.50%
Retirement age Low to Medium Rates between Ages 60 and 69; 100% at age 70

Society of Actuaries Public Safety (Above-Median Income)

Mortality Rates Mortality Table adjusted by Scale MP-2019

Disability rates N/A
Withdrawal rates 10.00%-17.50% depending on age

* Salary has no impact on the funding since employees do not contribute a portion of their salary to fund the LoSAP plan.

County’s changes in assumptions and benefit terms. There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions related to the net pension
liability that was measured as of June 30, 2020.

County’s long-term expected rate of return. On June 30, 2021, the LoSAP Trust Fund’s investments were 100% invested in a general
investment account at Mass Mutual with a guaranteed 3.0% investment return.

County’s money-weighted rate of return. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return of LoSAP
plan’s investments, net of pension plan investment expense, as of the measurement date of June 30, 2020, was 3.00%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts invested.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate is the single rate that reflects the long-term expected rate of return of the LoSAP plan’s
investments expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits, to the extent that the LoSAP plan’s fiduciary net position is
projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and the LoSAP plan’s assets are expected to be invested using a strategy
to achieve that return. However, in the case where the LoSAP plan’s fiduciary net position does not sufficiently cover the projected
benefit payments within the period, a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher (or equivalent quality on another scale is used instead of the long-term expected rate of return. It is the
County’s intension to pay the full recommended actuarial contribution amount each year.
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The discount rate to measure the total pension liability was estimated to be 3.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that the County’s contributions will be made each year as recommended by the actuarially determined
contribution amount.

County’s Changes in Net Pension Liability:

Illustration 13-22 presents the changes in net pension liability from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, which is the measurement date
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Illustration 13-22
Prince William County - LoSAP Plan
Changes in Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Net Pension
Liability Increase (Decrease) Liability
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 27,826 17,050 10,776
Changes for the year:
Service cost 428 - 428
Interest 840 - 840
Differences b.etween expected and (202) i (202)
actual experience
Changes of assumptions (80) - (80)
Contributions - employer - 1,156 (1,156)
Net investment income - 517 (517)
Benefit payments., inFIuding refunds of (489) (489) i
employee contributions
Administrative expenses - (79) 79
Net changes 497 1,105 (608)
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 28,323 18,155 10,168

Sensitivity of the County’s net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 13-23 presents the net pension liability of
the County measured as of Jun 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using the discount rate of 3.00%, as well as the
County’s net position liability calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.00%) and one percentage point
higher (4.00%) than the current rate.

Illustration 13-23
Prince William County - LoSAP Plan
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease  Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase

Measurement Date (2.00%) (3.00%) (4.00%)
June 30, 2021 S 15,659 9,545 4,870
June 30, 2020 S 16,196 10,168 5,560
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County’s Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and measured as of June 30, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $2,416 and
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the sources displayed in Illustration 13-
24.

lllustration 13-24
Prince William County - LoSAP Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S - 66
Change in actuarial assumptions - 37
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 284 )

pension plan investments

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,536 -
Total S 1,820 103

$1,536 was contributed to the LoSAP plan subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2020, and is reported as a deferred
outflow of resources, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as displayed in Illustration 13-25.

Illustration 13-25
Prince William County - LoSAP Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflow and (Inflow) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 84
2023 95
2024 1
2025 1
2026 -
Thereafter -

Total S 181

County'’s fiduciary net position. The components of the net pension liability for the LoSAP Pension Plan as of June 30, 2021, are shown
in lllustration 13-26.

Illustration 13-26
Prince William County - LoSAP Plan
LoSAP Plan Net Position Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension Net Position as % of

Measurement Date Liability Position Liability Total Pension Liability
June 30, 2021 S 29,061 19,516 9,545 67.16%

June 30, 2020 S 28,323 18,155 10,168 64.10%
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D. Prince William County’s 401(a) Money Purchase Plan

Plan description. The 401(a) Money Purchase Plan (the Plan) is a defined contribution plan to provide County employees an
additional way to save for retirement. On September 17, 2019, the Board of County Supervisors established a Board of Trustees per
Resolution No. 19-444, adopted Bylaws, and appointed Trustees to serve as the investment fiduciary responsible for the selection
and retention of professional advisors for the Plan’s portfolio. The Director of Finance and the Human Resources Benefits Manager
serve as non-rotating Trustees for the Plan in addition to four current employees and one retiree, who are nominated by the County
Executive to the Board of County Supervisors to each serve a three-year term. Empower administers the Plan under the purview of
the Trustees, who have administrative oversight and to ensure the proper administration of the Plan. In fiscal year 2021, the County
contributed $1,506 towards County employee’s 401(a) accounts.

Plan benefits. All full-time and part-time active employees who work at least 15 hours per week are eligible to participate in the
Plan. Employees have a one-time, irrevocable opportunity to enroll upon commencement of employment. The Planincludes a 0.5%
contribution from employees’ gross salary on a pre-tax basis and receive an equal County match. Contributions may increase and
decrease each fiscal year if approved by the Board of County Supervisors.

Employees who separate service with the County and withdraw funds from their account prior to age 59 % may incur an additional
10% tax penalty. Upon separation from the County, employees may elect to have their leave payout rolled into the Plan. As of July
2021, employees can borrow funds from their account in the Plan for any reason for as little as $1,000 or up to 50% of their
contributions. However, the employee must repay the loan via payroll deductions no later than 5 years with after-tax dollars.
Additionally, the loan incurs interest at a rate of 1% above the prime rate and is deposited in the employee’s account.

E. Prince William County Schools (PWCS) Pension Plans

Prince William County Schools, a component unit of the County, also participates the VRS Pension plans. The aggregate amount of
net pension liability related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense for the Schools’
pension plans are summarized in lllustration 13-27.

Illustration 13-27
Prince William County Schools - Virginia Retirement System Plans
Net Pension Liability and Related Amount
June 30, 2021

Deferred Deferred

Net Pension Outflows of Inflows of Pension
Liability Resources Resources Expense

Virginia Retirement System Plans
VRS Pension Plans — For Professional Group S 983,823 268,431 63,099 120,131
VRS Pension Plans — For Non-Professional 19,918 12,975 785 5,583

Group

Total Schools’ Pension Plans S 1,003,741 281,406 63,884 125,714

Schools' Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Plans - Professional Group & Non-Professional Group
Schools’ Plan Description:

All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees of public-school divisions are automatically covered by VRS Teacher
Retirement Plan upon employment. All full-time, salaried permanent (nonprofessional) employees of PWCS are automatically
covered by a VRS Retirement Plan upon employment. Both plans are administered by the VRS along with plans for other employer
groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for
which they and their employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria
as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active
military service, certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

The VRS administers three different benefit structures for covered employees in both employee groups: Plan 1, Plan 2, and the Hybrid

Retirement Plan (Hybrid Plan). Each of these benefit structures have different eligibility criteria. The specific information for each plan
and the eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out below:
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Plan 1

. About Plan 1: Plan 1 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a member’s age, service credit, and average
final compensation at retirement using a formula.

. Eligible members: Employees are in Plan 1 if their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were vested as of January 1,
2013, and they have not taken a refund.

. Hybrid opt-in election: VRS non-hazardous duty covered Plan 1 members could make an irrevocable decision to opt into
the Hybrid Plan during a special election window held January 1 through April 30, 2014. The Hybrid Plan’s effective date for
eligible Plan 1 members who opted in was July 1, 2014. If eligible deferred members returned to work during the election
window, they were also eligible to opt into the Hybrid Plan. Members who were eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP)
and had prior service under Plan 1 were not eligible to elect the Hybrid Plan and remain as Plan 1 or ORP.

. Retirement contributions: Members contribute 5.0% of their compensation each month to their member contribution account
through a pre-tax salary reduction. Member contributions are tax deferred until they are withdrawn as part of a retirement
benefit or as a refund. The employer makes a separate actuarially determined contribution to VRS for all covered employees.
VRS invests both member and employer contributions to provide funding for the future benefit payments.

. Service Credit: Service credit includes active service. Members earn service credit for each month they are employed in a
covered position. It may also include credit for prior service the member has purchased or additional service credit the
member was granted. A member’s total service credit is one of the factors used to determine their eligibility for
retirement and to calculate their retirement benefit. It also may count toward eligibility for the health insurance credit
in retirement if the employer offers the health insurance credit.

. Vesting: Vesting is the minimum length of service a member needs to qualify for a future retirement benefit. Members
become vested when they have at least five years (60 months) of service credit. Vesting means members are eligible to qualify for
retirement if they meet the age and service requirements for their plan. Members also must be vested to receive a full
refund of their member contribution account balance if they leave employment and request a refund. Members are always
100% vested in the contributions that they make.

. Calculating the benefit: The Basic Benefit is determined using the average final compensation, service credit and plan
multiplier. An early retirement reduction is applied to this amount if the member is retiring with a reduced benefit. In cases
where the member has elected an optional form of retirement payment, an option factor specific to the option chosen is
then applied.

. Average final compensation: A member’s average final compensation is the average of the 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation as a covered employee.

. Service retirement multiplier: The retirement multiplier is a factor used in the formula to determine a final retirement benefit.
The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty members is 1.70%. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents is 1.85%. The retirement multiplier of eligible non-professional hazardous duty employees other than sheriffs
and regional jail superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer.

. Normal retirement age: Normal retirement age is 65. For non-professional hazardous duty employees, normal retirement age
is 60.

. Earliest reduced retirement eligibility: Age 55 with at least five years (60 months) of service credit or age 50 with at least
10 years of service credit. Hazardous duty members: age 50 with at least five years of service credit.

e Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in retirement: The COLA matches the first 3.0% increase in the Consumer Price Index for all
Urban Consumers (CPI-U) and half of any additional increase (up to 4.0%) up to a maximum COLA of 5.0%.

. Eligibility for COLA: For members who retire with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years
of service credit, the COLA will go into effect on July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement date. For
members who retire with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of service credit, the COLA will go into
effect on July 1 after one calendar year following the unreduced retirement eligibility date.

o Exceptions to COLA effective dates: The COLA is effective July 1 following one full calendar year (January 1 to
December 31) under any of the following circumstances:

*The member is within five years of qualifying for an unreduced retirement benefit as of January 1, 2013.
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*The member retires on disability.
*The non-professional member retires directly from short-term or long-term disability.

*The member is involuntarily separated from employment for causes other than job performance or misconduct and
is eligible to retire under the Workforce Transition Act or the Transitional Benefits Program.

*The member dies in service and the member’s survivor, or beneficiary is eligible for a monthly death-in-service
benefit. The COLA will go into effect on July 1 following one full calendar year (January 1 to December 31) from
the date the monthly benefit begins.

e Disability coverage: Members who are eligible to be considered for disability retirement and retire on disability, the retirement
multiplier is 1.70% on all service, regardless of when it was earned, purchased, or granted.

®  Purchase of prior service: Members may be eligible to purchase service from previous public employment, active-duty military
service, an eligible period of leave or VRS refunded service as service credit in their plan. Prior service credit counts toward
vesting, eligibility for retirement and the health insurance credit. Only active members are eligible to purchase prior service.
Members also may be eligible to purchase periods of leave without pay.

Plan 2

e About Plan 2: Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a member’s age, service credit and average
final compensation at retirement using a formula.

e FEligible Members: Employees are in Plan 2 if their membership date is on or after July 1, 2010, or their membership date is before
July 1, 2010, and they were not vested as of January 1, 2013.

e Hybrid opt-in election: Eligible Plan 2 members could make an irrevocable decision to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan during
a special election window held January 1 through April 30, 2014. The Hybrid Plan’s effective date for eligible Plan 2 members
who opted in was July 1, 2014. If eligible deferred members returned to work during the election window, they were also eligible
to opt into the Hybrid Plan. Members who were eligible for an ORP and have prior service under Plan 2 were not eligible to elect
the Hybrid Plan and remain as Plan 2 or ORP.

*  Retirement contributions: Same as Plan 1.

e Service credit: Same as Plan 1.

e Vesting: Same as Plan 1.

e Calculating the benefit: See definition under Plan 1.

e Average final compensation: A member’s average final compensation is the average of their 60 consecutive months of highest
compensation as a covered employee.

e Service retirement multiplier: Same as Plan 1 for service earned, purchased, or granted prior to January 1, 2013. For non-
hazardous duty members, the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for service credit earned, purchased, or granted on or after January
1, 2013. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is the same as Plan 1. The retirement for non-
professional hazardous duty employees is the same as Plan 1.

e Normal retirement age: Normal Social Security retirement age. Non-professional hazardous duty employee’s retirement age is
the same as Plan 1.

e Earliest unreduced retirement eligibility: Members who are not in hazardous duty positions are eligible for an unreduced
retirement benefit when they reach normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years (60 months) of service credit

or when their age and service equal 90. Hazardous duty members are same as Plan 1.

e Earliest reduced retirement eligibility: Members may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years (60
months) of service credit. Hazardous duty employees are same as Plan 1.
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®  COLA in retirement: The COLA matches the first 2.0% increase in the CPI-U and half of any additional increase (up to 2.0%), for a
maximum COLA of 3.0%.

o COLA eligibility: Same as Plan 1.

o Exceptions to COLA effective dates: Same as Plan 1.

e Disability Coverage: Non-professional members who are eligible to be considered for disability retirement and retire on disability,
the retirement multiplier is 1.65% on all service, regardless of when it was earned, purchased, or granted.

®  Purchase of prior service: Same as Plan 1. Disability Coverage: Non-professional members who are eligible to be considered
for disability retirement and retire on disability, the retirement multiplier is 1.65% on all service, regardless of when it was
earned, purchased, or granted.

®  Purchase of prior service: Same as Plan 1.

Hybrid Plan
e About the Hybrid Plan: The Hybrid Plan combines the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan.

e The defined benefit is based on a member’s age, service credit and average final compensation at retirement using a
formula.

e The benefit from the defined contribution component of the plan depends on the member and employer contributions
made to the plan and the investment performance of those contributions.

¢ Inaddition to the monthly benefit payment payable from the defined benefit plan at retirement, a member may start
receiving distributions from the balance in the defined contribution account, reflecting the contributions, investment
gains or losses, and any required fees.
e  Eligible members: Employees are in the Hybrid Plan if their membership date is on or after January 1, 2014. This includes:
e Professional employees

e  Non-professional employees*

e Membersin Plan 1 or Plan 2 who elected to opt into the plan during the election window held January 1 - April 30,
2014; the plan’s effective date for opt-in members was July 1, 2014.

e *Non-Eligible Members: Some employees are not eligible to participate in the Hybrid Plan. They include:
¢ Non-professional employees who are covered by enhanced benefits for hazardous duty employees.

. Members in Plan 1 or Plan 2 who elected to opt into the plan during the election window held January
1 - April 30, 2014; the plan’s effective date for opt-in members was July 1, 2014.

e  Those employees eligible for an ORP must elect the ORP plan or the Hybrid Plan. If these members have prior service
under Plan 1 or Plan 2, they are not eligible to elect the Hybrid Plan and must select Plan 1 or Plan 2 (as applicable)
or ORP.

e Retirement contributions: A member’s retirement benefit is funded through mandatory and voluntary contributions made by
the member and the employer to both the defined benefit and the defined contribution components of the plan. Mandatory
contributions are based on a percentage of the employee’s creditable compensation and are required from both the member
and the employer. Additionally, members may choose to make voluntary contributions to the defined contribution component
of the plan, and the employer is required to match those voluntary contributions according to specified percentages.

e Service Credit:

e Defined benefit component: Under the defined benefit component of the plan, service credit includes active service.
Members earn service credit for each month they are employed in a covered position. It also may include credit for
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prior service the member has purchased or additional service credit the member was granted. A member’s total service
credit is one of the factors used to determine their eligibility for retirement and to calculate their retirement benefit.
It also may count toward eligibility for the health insurance credit in retirement if the employer offers the health
insurance credit.

e Defined contributions component: Under the defined contribution component, service credit is used to determine
vesting for the employer contribution portion of the plan.

. Vesting:
e Defined benefit component: Defined benefit vesting is the minimum length of service a member needs to qualify for a
future retirement benefit. Members are vested under the defined benefit component of the Hybrid Plan when they reach

five years (60 months) of service credit. Plan 1 or Plan 2 members with at least five years (60 months) of service credit who
opted into the Hybrid Plan remain vested in the defined benefit component.

e Defined contributions component: Defined contribution vesting refers to the minimum length of service a member needs
to be eligible to withdraw the employer contributions from the defined contribution component of the plan. Members are
always 100% vested in the contributions that they make. Upon retirement or leaving covered employment, a member is
eligible to withdraw a percentage of employer contributions to the defined contribution component of the plan, based on
service.

e  After two years, a member is 50% vested and may withdraw 50% of employer contributions.
e  After three years, a member is 75% vested and may withdraw 75% of employer contributions.

e After four or more years, a member is 100% vested and my withdrawal 100% of employer contributions. Distribution is
not required by law.

e Calculating the benefit: Defined Benefit Component: See definition under Plan 1. Defined Contributions Component: The benefit
is based on contributions made by the member and any matching contributions made by the employer, plus net investment
earnings on those contributions.

e Average final compensation: Same as Plan 2. It is used in the retirement formula for the defined benefit component of the plan.

e Service retirement multiplier: The retirement multiplier is 1.0%. For members that opted into the Hybrid Plan from Plan 1 or Plan
2, the applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in those plans.
The service retirement multiplier is not applicable to the defined contribution component.

e Normal retirement age:

e Defined benefit component: Same as Plan 2. Not applicable for nonprofessional hazardous duty employees.

e Defined contributions component: Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to
restrictions.

e Earliest unreduced retirement eligibility:
e Defined benefit component: Members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit when they reach normal Social
Security retirement age and have at least five years (60 months) of service credit or when their age and service equal 90.

Not applicable to non-professional hazardous duty employees.

e Defined contributions component: Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to
restrictions.

e Earliest reduced retirement eligibility:

e Defined benefit component: Members may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years (60
months) of service credit. Not applicable to non-professional hazardous duty employees.
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e Defined contribution component: Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to
restrictions.

e  COLA in retirement:
e Defined benefit component: Same as Plan 2.
e Defined contribution component: Not applicable.
e COLA eligibility: Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

e Exceptions to COLA effective dates: Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

e Disability coverage: Eligible non-professional and professional employees (including Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins) may participate in
the Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP) unless their local governing body provides an employer-paid comparable program
for its members. Hybrid members (including Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins) covered under VLDP are subject to a one-year waiting
period before becoming eligible for non-work-related disability benefits.

e Purchase of prior service:

e Defined benefit component: Same as Plan 1, except for Hybrid Plan members are ineligible for ported service.

e Defined contribution component: Not applicable.

Schools’ employees covered by benefit terms. As of the June 30, 20119 actuarial valuations, the following employees of the non-
professional group were covered by the benefit terms of the pension plan as displayed by lllustration 13-28.

Illustration 13-28
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Non-Professional Group
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of June 30, 2019

Inactive members or their beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 909

Inactive members:

Vested inactive members 253
Non-vested inactive members 573
Inactive members active elsewhere in VRS 243
Total inactive members 1,069

Active members 1,844
Total covered employees 3,822

Schools’ contributions. The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to the non-professional and professional groups by the
Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.0% of their compensation toward their retirement.

Non-professional group. The non-professional group’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2021,
was 6.07% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2019. This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits earned
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contribution to the pension plan
from the non-professional group were $3,654 and $3,140 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, respectively.

Professional group. Each professional group’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2021, was 16.62%

of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions was expected to finance the costs of
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benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contribution to
the pension plan from the professional group were $101,153 and $93,207 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020,
respectively.

Schools’ actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability for general employees in the non-professional and professional group was
based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020.

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases, including inflation 3.5%-5.35%
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net pension plan investment expense, including inflation*

*Administrative expense as a percent of the fair value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the assets of all VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB
purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative
6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceed the projected benefit payment,
the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension
liabilities.

** Mortality rates update to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019, valuation was based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the
period from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action
effective as of July 1, 2019.

Pre-Retirement:

Post-Retirement:

Post-Disablement:

Non-hazardous Duty for Non-professional Group

Professional Group

20% of deaths are assumed to be service related.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80. Healthy Annuitant Rates at
age 81 and older projected with scale BB to 2020; males 95% of
rates; females 105% of rates.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49. Healthy Annuitant Rates at
age 50 and older projected with scale BB to 2020; males set
forward 3 years; females 1.00% increase compounded from
ages 70 to 90.

RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to
2020; males set forward 2 years, 110.0% rates; females
125.00% rates.
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15% of deaths are assumed to be service related.

RP-2014 White Collar employee Rates to age 80. White Collar
Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 81 and older projected with
scale BB 2020.

RP-2014 White Collar employee Rates to age 49. White Collar
Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 50 and older projected with
scale BB 2020; males 1.00% increase compounded from age 70
to 90; females set back 3 years with 1.50% increase
compounded from age 65 to 70 and 2.00% increase
compounded from age 75 to 90.

RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to
2020; 115.00% of rates for males and females.



Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Retirement
rates

Withdrawal
rates

Disability rate

Salary scale

Line of Duty
Disability

Discount rate

Largest 10 Non-Hazardous
Duty

Lower rates at older ages and
changed final retirement
from 70 to 75

Adjusted rates to better fit
experience at each year age
and service through 9 years
of service

Lower rates

No change

Increase from 14.00% to
20.00%

Decrease rate from 7.00% to
6.75%

All Others (Non 10 Largest)
Non-Hazardous Duty

Lower rates at older ages and
changed final retirement
from 70 to 75

Adjusted rates to better fit
experience at each year age
and service through 9 years
of service

Lower rates

No change

Increase from 14.00% to
20.00%

Decrease rate from 7.00% to
6.75%

Professional Group

Lower rates at older ages and
changed final retirement from
70to 75

Adjusted rates to better fit
experience at each year age and
service through 9 vyears of
service

Adjusted rates to better match
experience

No change

Not applicable

Decrease rate from 7.00% to
6.75%

Schools’ long-term expected rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on pension VRS investments was determined
using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension VRS investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in Illustration 13-29.
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Illustration 13-29
Prince William County Schools - Virginia Retirement System Pension Plans
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Arithmetic Long- Weighted Average
Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Target Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Public Equity 34.00% 4.65% 1.58%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.46% 0.07%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.38% 0.75%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.01% 0.70%
Private Equity 14.00% 8.34% 1.17%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.04% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.49% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 4.64%
Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.14%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.14%. However, one-year returns do not consider the volatility present
in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are employed to
model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods
that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.5%. On October 10,2019, the VRS Board
elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset
allocation. Most recent capital market assumptions complied for the FY2020 actuarial valuations, provide a median return
of 6.81%.

Schools’ discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that VRS member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes, and the employer
contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by
the General Assembly for state and teacher employer contributions; political subdivisions were also provided with an opportunity
to use an alternate employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the alternate rate was the employer contribution
rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution rate from June 30, 2017, actuarial valuations,
whichever was greater. From July 1, 2020, on, school divisions are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Schools’ Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

Net Pension Liability

On June 30, 2021, the professional group reported a liability of $983,823 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020. The
professional group’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the professional group’s actuarially determined employer
contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2020, relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer
contributions for all participating employers. On June 30, 2020, the professional group’s proportion was 6.76% as compared to
6.68% on June 30, 2019.
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The non-professional net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019,
using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2020.

Schools’ Changes in Net Pension Liability — Non-Professional Group

Illustration 13-30 presents the change in the net pension liability from June 30, 2019, to June 30, 2020, which is the measurement
date for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Illustration 13-30
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Non-Professional Group
Changes in Net Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net

Total Pension  Position - Increase Net Pension
Liability (Decrease) Liability
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 221,126 210,575 10,551
Changes for the year:
Service cost 5,342 - 5,342
Interest 14,579 - 14,579
Changes of assumptions - - -
Differences betwe.en expected (621) i (621)
and actual experience
Contributions — employer - 3,200 (3,200)
Contributions - employee - 2,881 (2,881)
Net investment income - 3,993 (3,993)
Benefit payments, irlclu'ding refunds (10,290) (10,290) )
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses - (137) 137
Other changes - (4) 4
Net changes 9,010 (357) 9,367
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 230,136 210,218 19,918

Sensitivity of the Schools’ net pension liability / (asset) to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 13-31 presents the net pension
liability / (asset) of the non-professional group measured as of June 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as the non-professional group’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

lllustration 13-31
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Non-Professional Group
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability / (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Schools' Non-Professional Group’s Net Pension
Liability / (Asset) $ 47,348 19,918 (3,035)
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Illustration 13-32 presents the professional group’s proportionate share of the net pension liability measured as of June 30, 2020,
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as the professional group’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage point higher
(7.75%) than the current rate.

Schedule 13-32
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Professional Group
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Schools' Professional Group’s
Proportionate Share of the VRS S 1,443,489 983,823 603,621

Teacher Employee Retirement
Plan Net Pension Liability

Schools’ Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Non-Professional
Group

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the non-professional group recognized pension benefit of $5,583. On June 30, 2021, the non-
professional group reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the sources
displayed in lllustration 13-33.

lllustration 13-33
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Non-Professional Group
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 190 785

Change in actuarial assumptions 2,783 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 6,348 -

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,654 -

Total S 12,975 785

$3,654 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from PWCS’ non-professional group contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30,
2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expenses in future reporting periods displayed in lllustration 13-34.

lllustration 13-34
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Non-Professional Group
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 1,724
2023 2,748
2024 2,049
2025 2,015
2026 -
Thereafter -

Total S 8,536
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Professional Group

For the year ended June 30, 2021, PWCS recognized pension expense of $120,131 related to the professional group. Since there
was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension expense was related to deferred
amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between employer contributions and the proportionate share of
employer contributions.

On June 30, 2021, the professional group’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the sources displayed in lllustration 13-35.

Illustration 13-35
Schools’ VRS Pension Plan — For Professional Group
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S - 57,667

Change in actuarial assumptions 67,159 -

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 74831 )

on pension plan investments !

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer

Contributions and proportionate share of contributions 25,288 5,432

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 101,153 -

Total S 268,431 63,099

PWCS'’ professional group contribution of $101,153, made subsequent to the measurement date and reported as deferred outflows
of resources related to pensions, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense in future reporting periods presented in Illustration 13-36.

Illustration 13-36
Schools’ VRS Pension Plans — For Professional Group
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 7,800
2023 31,573
2024 36,607
2025 28,536
2026 (337)
Thereafter -

Total S 104,179

Schools’ Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The VRS issues a publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial report (ACFR) that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information (RSI) for the plans administered by VRS. A copy of the 2020 VRS ACFR may be obtained for the VRS web
site at www.varetire.org, or by writing to VRS’ Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.
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Prince William County Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans (OPEB)

The County maintains five OPEB plans for its employees; two Virginia Retirement System (VRS) plans, and three plans that participate in
the OPEB Master Trust Fund:

° VRS OPEB Group Life Insurance Program (GLI) Plan

. VRS Health Insurance Credit Program (HIC) Plan

. OPEB Master Trust Plans:
o Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
o Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit Plan (County RHICP)
o Prince William County Line of Duty Act Plan (LODA Plan)

The aggregate amount of the County’s net OPEB (asset) liability, related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources, and OPEB expense for the County’s OPEB plans are summarized in lllustration 14-1 below.

Illustration 14-1
Prince William County’s Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Amounts
June 30, 2021

Net OPEB Deferred Deferred
Liability Outflows of Inflows of OPEB
(Asset) Resources Resources Expense
MEASUREMENT DATE 6/30/2021
OPEB Master Trust Fund Plan:
County LODA Plan* S (4,854) 1,744 8,308 477
MEASUREMENT DATE 6/30/2020
Virginia Retirement System Plans:
VRS Group Life Insurance Program S 24,735 9,262 739 1,298
VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit 4,458 1,047 73 518
MEASUREMENT DATE 6/30/2021
OPEB Master Trust Fund Plans:
County Premium Plan 3,240 1,110 7,497 43
County RHICP 14,776 655 3,509 1,347
Total OPEB — County Funded S 47,209 12,074 11,818 3,206
Primary Government:
Governmental Funds (F) S (4,070) 1,462 6,966 400
Component units:
Adult Detention Center (E) (784) 282 1,342 77
Subtotal Governmental Funds from LODA
$ (4,854) 1,744 8,308 477
Plan
Primary Government:
Governmental Funds S 40,640 10,401 10,152 2,759
Intra-County Services 1,704 439 424 116
Health Insurance 67 19 14 4
Subtotal Governmental Funds from all other
42,411 10,859 10,590 2,879
OPEB Plans (A) ’ ’ ’ ’
Total I F
otal Governmental Funds 42,411 12,321 17,556 3,279

(A+F excluding net OPEB asset)=(H)
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Illustration 14-1 (cont’d)
Prince William County’s Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Amounts
June 30, 2021

Net OPEB Deferred Deferred
Liability Outflows of Inflows of OPEB
(Asset) Resources Resources Expense
Primary Government-Business-Type:
Parks - - - -
Landfill 603 143 178 42

Total Proprietary Funds (B) 603 143 178 42
Total Primary Government (H+B) 43,014 12,464 17,734 3,321
Component units:

Adult Detention Center (C) 4,195 1,072 1,050 285
Total OPEB - County Funded (H+B+C) S 47,209 13,536 18,784 3,606
School Board’s OPEB Plans **

School Board Premium S (3,002) 3,865 30,796 (1,222)
Other School Pension Plans 142,766 25,365 4,255 10,390
Total School Board’s OPEB Plans (D) 139,764 29,230 35,051 9,168
Total Component Units ***
146,961 30,584 37,433 9,530
(C+D+E excluding net OPEB asset) ! ! ! !
Total R ting Entit
otalReporting Entity 189,975 43,048 55,177 12,851

(Sum of A thru F, excluding net OPEB asset)

Note: Amounts are allocated based on proportion of OPEB contributions paid.

* The County LODA Plan net OPEB assets cannot be netted against the net OPEB liabilities of other OPEB plans.
** Please see Schools separately issued financial statements for further information and lllustration 14-47 below.
*** Total Component Units’ Net OPEB Assets is $3,786.

A. County’s Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — OPEB Plans
County’s VRS Plans Overview:

County’s plan administration: The County and the Adult Detention Center component unit contribute to the Virginia Retirement
System (VRS) Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program, a cost-sharing, multi-employer, defined benefit employee and OPEB plan. The
County also participates in the Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post- Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, a
multiple-employer, agent defined benefit OPEB plan. Both, the GLI and HIC Programs, are administered by the VRS, along with
pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. All full-time, salaried permanent
employees of the County and ADC are automatically covered by the VRS GLI and HIC Programs upon employment.

Professional and non-professional employees of the School Board are also covered by the VRS. Professional employees participate
in a VRS statewide teacher cost-sharing pool, and non-professional employees participate as a separate group in the multi-
employer, agent system. The Prince William County Public Schools OPEB plans are reported separately in their audited financial
statements. Copies of these financial statements may be obtained by writing to the School Board'’s Finance Division at P.O. Box 389,
Manassas, Virginia 20108.

Under the VRS HIC Program, members earn one month of service credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and
for which their employer pays contributions to VRS. The retiree health insurance credit is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount
set by the General Assembly for each year of service credit against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay for single
coverage, excluding any portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and
ends upon the retiree’s death.
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1. County’s VRS Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program OPEB

Summary of significant accounting policies: The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program is a multiple
employer, cost-sharing plan. It provides coverage to state employees, teachers, and employees of participating political
subdivisions. The Group Life Insurance Program was established pursuant to § 51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended,
and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or may be amended. The GLI Program is a defined
benefit plan that provides a basic group life insurance benefit for employees of participating employers. For purposes of measuring
the net GLI Program OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI Program
OPEB, and GLI Program OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the VRS GLI Program OPEB and the additions
to/deductions from the VRS GLI Program OPEB’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Plan description: All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers and employees of participating political
subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS GLI Program upon employment. This plan is administered by the Virginia
Retirement System (the System), along with pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of
Virginia.

In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as well as a spouse or
dependent children through the Optional Group Life Insurance Program. For members who elect the optional group life insurance
coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums. Employers deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and
pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the GLI Program
OPEB.

Benefits provided. The specific information for GLI Program, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is set out in the table below:

County’s VRS GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PROGRAM PROVISIONS

Eligible Employees

IThe Group Life Insurance Program was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers and employees of political
subdivisions that elect the program. Basic group life insurance coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for employees
who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated retirement member contributions
and accrued interest.

Benefit Amounts

IThe benefits payable under the Group Life Insurance Program have several components.

e  Natural Death Benefit — The natural death benefit is equal to the employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next
highest thousand and then doubled.

e  Accidental Death Benefit — The accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit.

e  Other Benefit Provisions — In addition to the basic natural and accidental death benefits, the program provides
additional benefits provided under specific circumstances. These include:

e  Accidental dismemberment benefit

Safety belt benefit

Repatriation benefit

Felonious assault benefit

Accelerated death benefit option

Reduction in benefit Amounts

IThe benefit amounts provided to members covered under the Group Life Insurance Program are subject to a reduction factor. The
benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces by an additional
25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value.

Minimum Benefit Amount and Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)

For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, there is a minimum benefit payable under the Group Life
Insurance Program. The minimum benefit was set at $8,000 by statute in 2015. This will be increased annually based on the VRS Plan
2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation. The minimum benefit adjusted for the COLA was $8,616 as of June 30, 2021.
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County’s contributions. The contribution requirements for the GLI Program are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school divisions by the Virginia
General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Program was 1.34% of covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an
employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The employee component was 0.80% (1.34% X 60%) and the employer
component was 0.54% (1.34% X 40%). Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution, however the employer
must pay all the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June
30, 2021, was 0.54% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance
the costs of benefits payable during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The County elects
to pay the employee component with the employer component of the contribution. Contributions to the GLI Program from the
County were $4,287 and $3,996 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, respectively.

County’s GLI OPEB Liability, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB:

On June 30, 2021, the County reported a liability of $24,735 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability. The Net GLI
OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total GLI OPEB liability used to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020.
The County’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the County’s actuarially determined employer contributions to
the Group Life Insurance Program for the year ended June 30, 2020, relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer
contributions for all participating employers. On June 30, 2020, the County’s proportion was 1.48218% as compared to 1.43243% on
June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County recognized GLI OPEB expense of $1,298. Since there was a change in proportionate
share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in
proportion.

On June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB
from the sources displayed in Illustration 14-2.

Illustration 14-2
County’s Virginia Retirement System — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

June 30, 2021
Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 1,587 222
Change in actuarial assumptions 1,237 517
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 743 -
Changes in Proportionate Share 1,408 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 4,287 -
Total S 9,262 739

$4,287 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the County’s contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net GLI OPEB Liability in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be
recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future reporting periods as shown in lllustration 14-3.
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lllustration 14-3
County’s Virginia Retirement System — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 728
2023 937
2024 1,123
2025 1,057
2026 349
Thereafter 42

Total S 4,236

County’s actuarial assumptions. The total GLI OPEB liabilities were based on actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2019, using the Entry
Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020 as displayed in lllustration 14-4.

lllustration 14-4
County's Virginia Retirement System - Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program
Other Post -Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Investment Rate of Return 6.75% net investment expense, including inflation*

Inflation 2.50%

Healthcare Trend Rate N/A - the benefit is not based on healthcare costs but rather on compensation

General Employees:
Payroll Growth 3.50%-5.35%, includes inflation
Mortality

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected
Pre-Retirement with Scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older
projected with Scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase
Post-Retirement compounded from ages 70 to 90.

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set
Post-Disablement forward 2 years, 110% of rates; females 125% of rates.
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lllustration 14-4 (cont’d)
County's Virginia Retirement System - Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program
Other Post -Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits:
Payroll Growth 3.50%-4.75%, includes inflation
Mortality

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Health Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with
Pre-Retirement Scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older
projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year with 1.0% increase
Post-Retirement compounded from ages 70 to 90; females set forward 3 years.

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward
Post-Disablement 2 years, unisex using 100% male.

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the fair value of assets for the last experience study were found to be approximately
0.06% of the assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly
more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return
assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate
of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of the OPEB liabilities.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the
period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount rate from 7.00% to 6.75%, which was based on
VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019.

Changes in assumptions. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:
General Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014
healthy, and disability) projected to 2020

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final
retirement age from 70 to 75

Retirement Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each
age and service year

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14.0% to 20.0%
Discount Rate Decrease rate 7.00% to 6.75%

142



Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014
healthy, and disabled) projected to 2020
Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each

Withdrawal Rates .
age and service year

Disability Rates Increased disability rates

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 60.0% to 70.0%
Discount Rate Decrease rate 7.00% to 6.75%

County’s Net GLI OPEB Liability (NOL):

The County’s net OPEB liability for the GLI Program represents the program’s total OPEB liability determined in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the measurement date of June 30, 2020, net
OPEB liability amounts for the GLI Program are displayed in lllustration 14-5.

lllustration 14-5
County’s Virginia Retirement System — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB  Net Position as % of
Fiscal Year Ending Liability Net Position Liability Total OPEB Liability
June 30, 2021 S 52,231 27,496 24,735 52.6%

The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by VRS’ actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in VRS’ financial statements.
The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in VRS’ notes to the financial
statements and required supplementary information.

County’s long-term expected rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on the VRS investments was determined using a
log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of VRS
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in lllustration 14-6.
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Illustration 14-6
County’s Virginia Retirement System — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Arithmetic Long-Term

Asset Class (Strategy) Target Allocation Expected Rate of Return Weighted Average
Public Equity 34.00% 4.65% 1.58%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.46% 0.07%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.38% 0.75%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.01% 0.70%
Private Equity 14.00% 8.34% 1.17%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.04% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.49% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 4.64%
Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.14%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.14%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility
present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are employed
to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that
ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected
a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation.
More recent capital market assumptions compiled for the FY2020 actuarial valuations, provide a median return of 6.81%.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions and the County will be made in accordance with the VRS funding
policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and
the member rate. Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the rates contributed by the County for the GLI OPEB Program will
be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly, which was 100% of the
actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2020 on, employers are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of eligible employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 14-7 presents
the County’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as the County’s proportionate
share of the net GLI OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage
point higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

Illustration 14-7
County’s Virginia Retirement System — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
June 30, 2021 S 32,516 24,735 18,416
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Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability to changes in healthcare costs. There is no valuation health
care cost trend assumption for the VRS GLI Program because the benefit provided to participants is not dependent on medical claims
costs, but rather is based on each participant’s compensation

County’s GLI fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the Group Life Insurance Program’s Fiduciary Net Position is available
in the separately issued VRS 2020 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). A copy of the 2020 VRS ACFR may be downloaded
from the VRS website at https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2020-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the VRS’ Chief Financial
Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, Virginia, 23218-2500.

2. County’s Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB)

Summary of significant accounting policies: The County’s VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan is a multiple-employer, agent defined benefit plan that provides a credit toward the cost of health
insurance coverage for retired County employees. The VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program was established pursuant to §
51.1-1400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established
or may be amended. For purposes of measuring the net County’s VRS HIC OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the County’s VRS HIC OPEB, and the County’s VRS HIC OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the County’s VRS HIC Plan; and the additions to/deductions from the County’s VRS HIC Plan’s net fiduciary position
have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Plan description: All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the County are automatically covered under the VRS HIC OPEB
upon employment. This plan is administered by VRS, along with pension and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and
for which their employer pays contributions to VRS. The retiree health insurance credit is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount
set by the General Assembly for each year of service credit against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay for single
coverage, excluding any portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and
ends upon the retiree’s death.

The specific information about the County’s HIC OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is set out in the table below:

County’s VRS RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT PROGRAM PROVISIONS

Eligible Employees

who are covered under the VRS pension plan are enrolled automatically upon employment.

The County VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program was established July 1, 1993, for retired County employees of employers
who elect the benefit and who retire with at least 15 years of service credit. Full-time permanent salaried employees of the County

Benefit Amounts
The County’s VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program provides the following benefits for eligible employees:

benefit of $45.00 per month.

Disability Program (VLDP), the monthly benefit is $45.00 per month.

e At Retirement — For employees who retire, the monthly benefit is $1.50 per year of service per month with a maximum

e Disability Retirement — For employees who retire on disability or go on long-term disability under the Virginia Local

County VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program Notes:

®  The monthly Health Insurance Credit benefit cannot exceed the individual premium amount.

for premiums paid for other qualified health plans.

qualify for the Retiree Health Insurance Credit as a retiree.

®  No health insurance credit for premiums paid and qualified under LODA; however, the employee may receive the credit

® Employees who retire after being on long-term disability under VLDP must have at least 15 year of service credit to
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County employees covered by benefit terms. As of the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation, employees covered by the benefit terms
of the VRS HIC OPEB Plan are displayed in lllustration 14-8.

Illustration 14-8
County’s Virginia Retirement System Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of June 30, 2019

Inactive plan members or their beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1,091
Inactive members:
Vested inactive members -

Total inactive members 1,091
Active employees 3,796
Total covered members 4,887

County’s contributions. The contributions requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-1402(E) of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to the County by the Virginia General Assembly. The County’s
contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2021, was 0.18% of covered employee compensation.
This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate
was expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. Contributions from the County to the VRS HIC Program were $522 and $498 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

County’s Net VRS HIC OPEB Liability:

The County’s net VRS HIC OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total VRS HIC OPEB liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020.

County’s actuarial assumptions. The total VRS HIC OPEB liability was based on actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2019, using the Entry
Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020 as displayed in Illustration 14-9.

lllustration 14-9
County's Virginia Retirement System Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Investment Rate of Return 6.75% net investment expense, including inflation*

Inflation 2.50%

Healthcare Trend Rate N/A - the benefit is not based on healthcare costs but rather on compensation
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lllustration 14-9 (cont’d)
County's Virginia Retirement System Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

General Employees:
Payroll Growth 3.50%-5.35%, includes inflation

Mortality
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Health Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected
Pre-Retirement with Scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older
projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase
Post-Retirement compounded from ages 70 to 90.

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward
Post-Disability 2 years, 110% of rates; females 125% of rates.

Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits:
Payroll Growth 3.50%-4.75%, includes inflation

Mortality
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Health Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with
Pre-Retirement Scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older
projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year with 1.0% increase
Post-Retirement compounded from ages 70 to 90; females set forward 3 years.

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward
Post-Disability 2 years, unisex using 100% male.

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the fair value of assets for the last experience study were found to be approximately
0.06% of the assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly
more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return
assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate
of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of the OPEB liabilities.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the
period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective
as of July 1, 2019.
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Changes in assumptions. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

General Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement
healthy, and disability)

Retirement Rates

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate
Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement
healthy, and disabled)

Retirement Rates

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Discount Rate

County’s long-term expected rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on the VRS investments was determined using a
log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of VRS
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are

summarized in lllustration 14-10.
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Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014
projected to 2020

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final
retirement age from 70 to 75

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each
age and service year

Lowered disability rates
No change
Increased rate from 14.00% to 20.00%

Decrease rate 7.00% to 6.75%

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014
projected to 2020

Lowered retirement rates at older ages

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each
age and service year

Increased disability rates
No change
Increased rate from 60.00% to 70.00%

Decrease rate 7.00% to 6.75%



Illustration 14-10
County’s Virginia Retirement System — Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Arithmetic Long-Term

Asset Class (Strategy) Target Allocation Expected Rate of Return Weighted Average
Public Equity 34.00% 4.65% 1.58%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.46% 0.07%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.38% 0.75%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.01% 0.70%
Private Equity 14.00% 8.34% 1.17%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.04% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.49% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 4.64%
Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.14%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.14%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility
present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the System, stochastic projections are
employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time
periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. On October 10, 2019, the VRS
Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund
asset allocation. More recent capital market assumptions compiled for the FY2020 actuarial valuations, provide a median return
of 6.81%.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total VRS HIC OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates
equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member
rate. Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the rates contributed by the entity for the VRS HIC OPEB will be subject to the
portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly, which was 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2020, on, employers are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the VRS HIC OPEB fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of eligible employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total VRS HIC OPEB liability.
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County’s Changes in Net VRS HIC OPEB Liability:

Illustration 14-11 presents the change in the net OPEB liability from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, which is the measurement date
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Illustration 14-11
County’s Virginia Retirement System
Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Plan Fiduciary

Net Position -
Total OPEB Increase Net OPEB
Liability (Decrease) Liability
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 8,004 3,836 4,168
Changes for the year:
Service cost 188 - 188
Interest 521 - 521
Changes of assumptions - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 149 - 149
Contributions - employer - 498 (498)
Net investment income - 76 (76)
Benefit payments, including refund of employee contributions (566) (566) -
Administrative expenses - (8) 8
Other costs (2) - (2)
Net changes 290 - 290
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 8,294 3,836 4,458

Sensitivity of the County’s VRS Health Insurance Credit net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 14-12 presents
the County VRS HIC’s net OPEB liability measured as of June 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using the discount
rate of 6.75%, as well as the County’s net OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%)
and one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

lllustration 14-12
County’s Virginia Retirement System
Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability
Discount Rate

Fiscal Year Ended: 1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
) (5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
June 30, 2021 S 5,362 4,458 3,690

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability to changes in healthcare costs. There is no valuation health
care cost trend assumption for the VRS HIC Program because the benefit provided to participants is not dependent on medical claims
costs, but rather is based on each participant’s insurance premiums paid.
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County’s HIC Program OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to VRS Health
Insurance Credit Program OPEB:

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County recognized VRS HIC OPEB expense of $518. On June 30, 2021, the County reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the County VRS HIC OPEB Plan as displayed in Illustration
14-13.

Illustration 14-13
County’s Virginia Retirement System
Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 252 -
Change in actuarial assumptions 146 73
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 127 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 522 -
Total S 1,047 73

$522 of the reported as VRS HIC's deferred outflows of resources is related to the County’s contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the Net VRS HIC’s OPEB Liability in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the VRS HIC OPEB Plan will
be recognized in the VRS HIC OPEB expense in future reporting periods displayed in lllustration 14-14.

Illustration 14-14
County’s Virginia Retirement System
Retiree Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 59
2023 88
2024 89
2025 89
2026 66
Thereafter 61

Total S 452

County’s VRS HIC fiduciary net position. Information about the VRS Retiree Health Insurance Credit’s Fiduciary Net Position is
available in the separately issued VRS 2020 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which can be downloaded from the
VRS website at https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2020-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the VRS’ Chief Financial Officer
at P.0. Box 2500, Richmond, Virginia, 23218-2500.
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B. County’s Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Plans

Summary Financial Statements for Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans Self-Insured by the County for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2021:

Illustration 14-15 is a summary of the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position of the Master Trust Fund Plans. See the proceeding discussion
for further information on each plan.

Illustration 14-15
Prince William County — OPEB Master Trust Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Positions
June 30, 2021

County School Board Total OPEB
Premium County LODA Premium Master
Plan RHICP Plan Plan Trust Fund
Assets:
Restricted investments S 25,307 25,705 23,487 54,131 128,630
Total assets 25,307 25,705 23,487 54,131 128,630
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,405 2,088 796 8 4,297
Total liabilities 1,405 2,088 796 8 4,297
Net position:
Net position restricted for OPEB 23,902 23,617 22,691 54,123 124,333
Total net position S 23,902 23,617 22,691 54,123 124,333

152



Illustration 14-16 is a summary of the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position of the Master Trust Fund Plans.

lllustration 14-16
Prince William County — OPEB Master Trust Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2021

County County LODA School Board Total OPEB
Premium Plan RHICP Plan Premium Plan Master Trust
Additions:

Employer contributions 1,475 2,137 1,875 1,800 7,287
Total contributions 1,475 2,137 1,875 1,800 7,287
Investment income:

Total investment income 5,709 4,623 4,988 10,821 26,141

Less: investment expense (46) (37) (39) (86) (208)

Net investment income 5,663 4,586 4,949 10,735 25,933
Total additions 7,138 6,723 6,824 12,535 33,220
Deductions:

Benefit payments 1,400 2,085 793 - 4,278

Administrative expenses - - - 15 15
Total deductions 1,400 2,085 793 15 4,293
Change in net position: 5,738 4,638 6,031 12,520 28,927

Net position, beginning of year 18,164 18,979 16,660 41,603 95,406

Net position, end of year S 23,902 23,617 22,691 54,123 124,333

County’s Plans Descriptions:

The Prince William County Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund, administered by Prince William County (the
County) and the OPEB Master Trust Fund Finance Board (the Trustees), was established by the County Board on June 23, 2009, by
Resolution No. 09-544 to provide funding for benefit payments on behalf of retirees and Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act (COBRA) participants. On June 30, 2009, funds were transferred to establish separate trust fund accounts for the four single-
employer, defined benefit OPEB plans operating under the OPEB Master Trust:

. Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
. Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit Plan (County RHICP)
. Prince William County Line of Duty Act Plan (LODA Plan)

The County participates in the County Premium Plan, County RHICP, and LODA Plan. The County Board approves the terms of their
participating OPEB Master Trust Plans, and the Trustees administer the activity of the plans. The Trustees are comprised of three
members: two finance directors representing the employer and one citizen member. The County does not issue separate stand- alone
financial reports for their plans.

Contributions and earnings on the contributions to the OPEB Master Trust are irrevocable and can only be used by the Trust. All OPEB
Trust plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB benefits to plan members in accordance with benefit terms. OPEB plan assets are
legally protected from the creditors of the County, Schools and the OPEB Trust Board and are legally protected from creditors of any
plan members.
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County’s long-term expected rate of return. All OPEB Master Trust Plans’ assets are commingled for investment purposes. However, only
the assets for each Plan can be used to pay for the benefits of that specific Plan. The long-term expected rate of return on the County’s
Premium Plan’s investments is derived using an economic building block approach that projects economic and corporate profit growth
and takes into consideration the fundamental factors driving long-term real economic growth, expectations for inflation, productivity,
and labor force growth. The target asset allocation and best estimate of geometric rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in lllustration 14-17.

lllustration 14-17
Prince William County — OPEB Master Trust Fund
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Capital Market Expected Long-term
Asset Class Target Allocation Assumptions Rate of Return
OPEB Master Trust Fund Investments:
Domestic Equity 40.0% 7.5% 5.0%
International Developed Equity 15.0% 7.6% 5.1%
International Emerging Markets Equity 5.0% 7.9% 5.4%
Core Bonds 20.0% 3.8% 1.3%
Investment Grade Corporate Debt 10.0% 4.2% 1.7%
Emerging Markets Debt 5.0% 6.1% 3.6%
High Yield 5.0% 6.0% 3.5%
100.0%
Inflation 2.5%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 6.3%

County’s money weighted rate of return. The annual money-weighted rate of return on OPEB plan investments calculated as the
internal rate of return, net of plan investment expenses, is 26.05% The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expenses, and adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

1. Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Plan Activity for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021:
County’s Premium Plan Description:

The Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan) covers eligible retired employees
and Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) eligible employees of the County, including all departments and agencies.
The County Premium Plan provides limited health, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their eligible family
members. To receive the subsidy, the participant must be eligible to retire or eligible for COBRA coverage and have coverage under the
medical plan prior to termination. All employees who are retiree eligible or COBRA eligible have access to medical coverage.
Dependents, including surviving spouses, are permitted access to medical coverage. No access to medical coverage is permitted after
age 65. Eligible employees must elect coverage immediately upon retirement. Employees who terminate prior to retirement eligibility
are not eligible for the County Premium Plan. Terminated employees can elect COBRA coverage for up to eighteen months if previously
enrolled in the County Premium Plan. Terminated plan members and beneficiaries are required to pay 100% of published blended
premium rates to the County.

County employees covered by benefit terms. lllustration 14-18 summarizes the membership in the OPEB Master Trust Fund — County
Premium Plan as of January 1, 2020, the latest actuarial valuations for the County.
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Illustration 14-18
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of January 1, 2020

Active employees 3,351
Inactive members receiving benefits 221
Total covered members 3,572

County contributions. Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the County Board at any time via approved
resolution. The County Board must provide 30 days’ notice to establish new requirements or amend existing requirements including
contributions to the Plan per Article X of the Trust Agreement. The County intends to contribute the entire annually actuarially
determined contribution and invoices the Plan to recover the claims and administrative costs paid for during the fiscal year.

The County contributed $1,475 to the OPEB Master Trust’s County Premium Plan for the year ended June 30, 2021. The contribution
amounts were determined using the actuarial valuations performed as of January 1, 2020 and valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2021.
The actuarially determined contribution amount were derived with the expectation of financing costs for members benefits earned
during the current fiscal year and include an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability, if needed.

County’s Net OPEB Liability:

The County’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2020, using actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.

County actuarial assumption. The total OPEB liability for employees in the County’s Premium Plan in the Master Trust Fund was
calculated using the actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2020, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the
assumptions displayed in lllustration 14-19, applied to all periods included in the measurement year and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2021.

Illustration 14-19
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date January 1, 2020

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level percentage of projected pay, closed

Remaining Amortization Period 17 years, closed

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value

Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of expenses

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll Growth 3.50%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 4.7% base; 4.0% ultimate (pre-Medicare); does not provide post-Medicare coverage

County discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for the County’s Premium Plan was 7.00%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the County intends to contribute the full contribution amount
actuarially determined and charge the Trust to recover any payments made for claims, net of retiree and COBRA insured premiums,
made by the County during the current fiscal year. Since the Plan’s current target allocation is 60% equity and 40% fixed income, the
discount rate is realized. The returns presented below are calculated using geometric return projections based on long-term capital
market assumptions. As a result, the Trust’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected benefit payments
for eligible members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total OPEB liability.

County’s net OPEB liability. The components of the net position liability for the County Premium Plan of the OPEB Master Trust Fund as
of June 30, 2021 are shown in lllustration 14-20.
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Illustration 14-20
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Net OPEB Net Position as % of
Fiscal Year Ended: Liability Position Liability Total OPEB Liability
June 30, 2021 S 27,142 23,902 3,240 88.06%

County’s Changes in Net OPEB Liability:

Illustration 14-21 presents the changes in net pension liability from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021.

Illustration 14-21
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Plan Fiduciary

Net Position -

Total OPEB Increase Net OPEB

Liability (Decrease) Liability

Balances on June 30, 2020 S 25,390 18,164 7,226
Changes for the year:

Service cost 1,202 - 1,202

Interest 1,736 - 1,736

Differences between expected and actual experience 214 - 214

Contributions - employer - 1,475 (1,475)

Net investment income - 5,663 (5,663)

Benefit payments, including refund of employee contributions (1,400) (1,400) -

Administrative expenses - - -

Net changes 1,752 5,738 (3,986)

Balances on June 30, 2021 S 27,142 23,902 3,240

Sensitivity of the County’s net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 14-22 presents the net OPEB liability of the
County Premium Plan using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as the net OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (6.00%) and one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate.

Illustration 14-22
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
County's Net OPEB Liability S 5,738 3,240 821

Sensitivity of the County’s net pension liability (asset) to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. llustration 14-23 presents the net
OPEB liability (asset) of the County Premium Plan using the current Healthcare Cost Trend Rate of 4.70% base with an 4.00% ultimate
Medicare coverage and it is not applicable to post-Medicare coverage as well as the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using a
healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point lower (3.00%) and one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the current rate.
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lllustration 14-23
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Medical Trend
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease Medical Trend 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
County's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S (37) 3,240 6,901

County’s OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County Premium Plan recognized OPEB expense of $43. On June 30, 2021, the County reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the sources presented in Illustration 14-24.

lllustration 14-24
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 1,110 2,259
Change in actuarial assumptions - 1,462
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments - 3,776
Total S 1,110 7,497

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in the County Premium
Plan’s OPEB expense in future reporting periods displayed by lllustration 14-25.

Illustration 14-25
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Premium Plan (County Premium Plan)
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 $ (1,666)
2023 (1,594)
2024 (1,562)
2025 (1,532)
2026 (32)
Thereafter (1)

Total S (6,387)
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2. Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (County RHICP) Plan
Plan Activity for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021:
County’s Plan Description:

The Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit Plan (County RHICP) covers eligible
employees or former employees of the County including all departments and agencies. The RHICP provides $0.0055 per month, per
year of service (maximum 30 years) paid for life towards the purchase of a medical insurance plan. Disabled employees receive the full
30-year allowance. However, employees disabled in-service, where the County pays the entire cost of insurance, do not receive the
subsidy. The medical insurance plan can be the County Premium Plan or any health plan of the retiree’s choosing. To receive the subsidy,
the retiree must have 15 years of service with the County and must be receiving a pension payment from the VRS or the County
Supplemental Pension Plan. Terminated vested employees are allowed. The health insurance credit cannot be used for spousal
coverage. The retirees are granted the option to participate by paying 100% of their monthly health insurance premium towards the
County Premium Plan less $0.0055 times years of service for a maximum health insurance credit rate of $0.165 from the County.

County employees covered by benefit terms. lllustration 14-26 summarizes the membership in the County RHICP as of January 1, 2020
the latest actuarial valuations for the County.

Illustration 14-26
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (County RHICP) Plan
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of January 1, 2020

Active employees 4,181
Inactive members receiving benefits 1,255
Total covered members 5,436

County contributions. Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the County Board at any time via approved
resolution. The County Board must provide 30 days’ notice to establish new requirements or amend existing requirements including
contributions to the Plan per Article X of the Trust Agreement. The County intends to contribute the entire annually actuarially
determined contribution and invoices the Plan to recover the claims and administrative costs paid for during the fiscal year.

The County contributed $2,137 to the County RHICP for the year ended June 30, 2021. The contribution amounts were determined
using the actuarial valuations performed as of January 1, 2020 and rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The actuarially determined
contribution amount were derived with the expectation of financing costs for members benefits earned during the current fiscal year
and include an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability, if needed.

County’s Net OPEB Liability:

The County’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2020, using actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.

County actuarial assumption. The total OPEB liability for employees in the County’s RHICP was calculated using the actuarial valuation

performed as of January 1, 2020, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the assumptions displayed in lllustration 14-27,
applied to all periods included in the measurement year and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.
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Illustration 14-27
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (County RHICP) Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date January 1, 2020

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level percentage of projected pay, closed
Remaining Amortization Period 18 years, closed

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value

Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of expenses

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll Growth 3.50%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates Not applicable - This Plan does not depend on healthcare cost trend rates.

County’s changes in assumptions and benefit terms. There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions related to the net position
liability that was measured as of June 30, 2021.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for the County’s RHICP was 7.00%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the County intends to contribute the full contribution amount actuarially
determined and charge the Trust to recover any payments made for claims, net of retiree and COBRA insured premiums, made by the
County during the current fiscal year. Since the Plan’s current target allocation is 60% equity and 40% fixed income, the discount rate is
realized. The returns presented below are calculated using geometric return projections based on long-term capital market
assumptions. As a result, the Trust’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected benefit payments for
eligible members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total OPEB liability.

County’s net OPEB liability. The components of the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Master Trust’s County RHICP are shown in
Illustration 14-28.

lllustration 14-28
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (County RHICP) Plan
Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB  Net Position as % of Total
Fiscal Year Ended: Liability Net Position Liability OPEB Liability
June 30, 2021 S 38,394 23,618 14,776 61.51%
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County’s Changes in Net OPEB Liability:

Illustration 14-29 presents the changes in net pension liability from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021.

Illustration 14-29
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHICP) Plan
Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Plan Fiduciary

Net Position -

Total OPEB Increase Net OPEB

Liability (Decrease) Liability

Balances on June 30, 2020 S 37,323 18,979 18,344
Changes for the year:

Service cost 803 - 803

Interest 2,533 - 2,533

Differences between expected and actual experience (180) - (180)

Contributions - employer - 2,137 (2,137)

Net investment income - 4,587 (4,587)

Benefit payments, including refund of employee contributions (2,085) (2,085) -

Net changes 1,071 4,639 (3,568)

Balances on June 30, 2021 S 38,394 23,618 14,776

Sensitivity of the County’s net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 14-30 presents the net OPEB liability of the
County using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as the County’s net OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point lower (6.00%) and one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate.

lllustration 14-30
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHICP) Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
County's Net OPEB Liability S 19,195 14,776 11,056

Sensitivity of the County’s net pension liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. There is no valuation health care cost trend
assumption for the Prince William County Credit Plan because the benefit provided to participants is not dependent on medical claims
costs, but rather is equal to $0.0055 per month per year of service.
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County’s OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB:

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County recognized OPEB expense of $1,347. On June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the sources displayed in lllustration 14-31.

lllustration 14-31
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHICP) Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 655 313
Change in actuarial assumptions - 702
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments - 2,494
Total S 655 3,509

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in the County RHICP’s OPEB
expense in future reporting periods as shown in Illustration 14-32.

lllustration 14-32
Prince William County Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHICP) Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 $ (697)
2023 (684)
2024 (712)
2025 (745)
2026 -
Thereafter (16)

Total S (2,854)

3. Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Plan
Plan Activity for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021:
County’s Plan Description:

The County’s Line of Duty Act (LODA) is authorized by the Code of Virginia §9.1-400 et seq. On June 5, 2012, the Board of County
Supervisors authorized Resolution No. 12-588, pursuant to paragraph B2 of Item 258 of the Commonwealth Appropriations Act, to
make an irrevocable election not to participate in the Commonwealth Line of Duty Act Fund on July 1, 2012. The County has assumed
all responsibility for existing, pending or prospective claims for benefits approved and associated administrative costs made by the
State Comptroller on behalf of Prince William County. On June 17, 2014, the Board of County Supervisors authorized Resolution No.
14-391 establishing the Line of Duty Act sub-account to fund covered employees and authorized annual contributions to the OPEB
Master Trust Fund. The beginning liability for fiscal year 2014 was also transferred to the OPEB Master Trust Fund.

The County LODA Plan provides death, disability and healthcare benefits for public safety employees and volunteer firefighters who

hold specified hazardous duty positions and who die or who become permanently disabled in the line of duty. The LODA Plan includes
a $100 life insurance benefit for death occurring as a direct or proximate result of duties, a $25 death benefit for death by
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presumptive clause within five years of retirement, and lifetime medical benefits for the disabled employee and their surviving spouse
with certified children covered to age 26, comparable to the medical coverage held by the deceased or disabled employee or volunteer
at the time of the qualifying incident.

To be eligible to receive LODA benefits, the disabled or deceased employee or volunteer must be certified by the Virginia Department
of Human Resource Management. To be eligible for the healthcare benefit portion of the plan, the employee or volunteer must
subscribe to healthcare coverage under a medical plan prior to the date of incident. Eligible employees and/or family members are
enrolled in a state-sponsored group healthcare plan or reimbursed for their healthcare premiums. Surviving spouses who remarry or
children who marry and have access to other medical insurance coverage are no longer eligible for the healthcare benefits under the
LODA Plan. Certified LODA retirees and their beneficiaries are required to pay 0% of the Commonwealth premium rate state sponsored
group healthcare plans. County employees covered by benefit terms. Illustration 14-39 summarizes the membership in the OPEB
Master Trust Fund — County LODA Plan as of January 1, 2020, the latest actuarial valuations for the County.

County employees covered by benefit terms. Illustration 14-33 summarizes the membership in the OPEB Master Trust Fund — County
LODA Plan as of January 1, 2020 the latest actuarial valuations for the County.

Illustration 14-33
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of January 1, 2020

Active employees 2,322
Inactive members receiving benefits 42
Total covered members 2,364

County’s contributions. Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the County Board at any time via approved
resolution. The County Board must provide 30 days’ notice to establish new requirements or amend existing requirements including
contributions to the Plan per Article X of the Trust Agreement. The County intends to contribute the entire annually actuarially
determined contribution and invoices the LODA Plan to recover the premiumes, life insurance payout and administrative costs paid for
during the fiscal year.

The County contributed $1,875 to the LODA Plan for the year ended June 30, 2021. The contribution amounts were determined using
the actuarial valuations performed as of January 1, 2020 and valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The actuarially determined
contribution amount were derived with the expectation of financing costs for members benefits earned during the current fiscal year
and include an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability, if needed.

County’s Net OPEB Liability (Asset):

The County’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total OPEB liability (asset) used to calculate the net OPEB
liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2020, using actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.

County actuarial assumption. The total OPEB liability for employees in the County’s LODA Plan was calculated using the actuarial
valuation performed as of January 1, 2020, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the assumptions displayed in
Illustration 14-34, applied to all periods included in the measurement year and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2021.
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Illustration 14-34
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date January 1, 2020

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level percentage of projected pay, closed

Remaining Amortization Period 22 years, closed

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value

Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of expenses

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll Growth 3.50%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 4.7% base; 4.0% ultimate (pre-Medicare); Virginia LODA and Medicare Part B coverage

County’s changes in assumptions and benefit terms. There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions related to the net position
liability that was measured as of June 30, 2021.

County’s discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for the County’s LODA Plan was 7.00%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the County intends to contribute the full contribution amount actuarially
determined and charge the Trust to recover any payments made for claims, net of retiree and COBRA insured premiums, made by the
County during the current fiscal year. Since the Plan’s current target allocation is 60% equity and 40% fixed income, the discount rate is
realized. The returns presented below are calculated using geometric return projections based on long- term capital market
assumptions. As a result, the Trust’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected benefit payments for
eligible members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total OPEB liability.

County’s net OPEB liability (asset). lllustration 14-35 shows the net OPEB liability (asset) for the OPEB Master Trust’s County LODA Plan
was measured as of June 30, 2021.

Illustration 14-35
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Net Position as %

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Net OPEB Liability of Total OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Liability Position (Asset) Liability (Asset)
June 30, 2021 S 17,837 22,691 (4,854) 127.21%
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County’s Changes in Net OPEB Liability (Asset):

Illustration 14-36 presents the changes in net pension liability (asset) from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021.

lllustration 14-36
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Changes in Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position - Net OPEB
Total OPEB Increase Liability
Liability (Decrease) (Asset)
Balances on June 30, 2020 S 15,873 16,660 (787)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,726 - 1,726
Interest 1,082 - 1,082
Differences between expected and actual experience (51) - (51)
Changes in assumptions - - -
Contributions - employer - 1,875 (1,875)
Net investment income - 4,988 (4,988)
Benefit payments, including refund of employee
contributions (793) (793) -
Administrative expenses - (39) 39
Net changes 1,964 6,031 (4,067)
Balances on June 30, 2021 S 17,837 22,691 (4,854)

Sensitivity of the County’s net OPEB liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 14-37 presents the net OPEB liability
(asset) of the County LODA Plan using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current
rate.

Illustration 14-37
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Fiscal Year Ended: 1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
’ (6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
County's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S (3,107) (4,854) (6,468)

Sensitivity of the County’s net OPEB liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate. lllustration 14-38 presents the net OPEB liability
(asset) of the County LODA plan using the current Healthcare Cost Trend Rate of 4.70% base with 4.00% ultimate, Virginia LODA
premiums and the Medicare B premiums, as well as the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is
one percentage point lower (3.00%) and one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the current rate.
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lllustration 14-38
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
County's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S (7,478) (4,854) (1,800)

County’s OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB:

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized OPEB expense of $477. On June 30, 2021, the County reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the sources displayed in lllustration 14-39.

Illustration 14-39
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 604 5,078

Change in actuarial assumptions 1,140 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan

investments - 3,230

Total S 1,744 8,308

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in the County LODA Plan’s
OPEB expense in future reporting periods as shown in lllustration 14-40.

lllustration 14-40
Prince William County Line of Duty Act (LODA) Trust Fund Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 $ (1,168)
2023 (1,105)
2024 (1,074)
2025 (1,048)
2026 (291)
Thereafter (1,878)

Total S (6,564)
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A. Prince William County School Board’s (Schools’) Other Post-Employment (OPEB) Plans

Prince William County Schools, a component unit of the County, also participates in three OPEB plans for its employees; two Virginia
Retirement System plans, and one plan that participates in the County’s OPEB Master Trust Fund.

e  Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Plans:
0 VRS Group Life Insurance Program (GLI)
0 VRS Health Insurance Credit Program (HIC)
e  OPEB Master Trust Plans:
0  Prince William County Public Schools Retiree Medical Program (Master Trust - School Board Premium Plan)
The aggregate amount of net OPEB liability (asset), related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and

OPEB expense for the County’s OPEB plans are summarized in lllustration 14-41 below.

Illustration 14-41
Prince William County School Board's (Schools) Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Amounts

Net OPEB Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflows OPEB Expense/

Liability (Asset) of Resources of Resources (Income)

MEASUREMENT DATE 6/30/2020
School Board Premium Plan (3,002) 3,865 30,796 (1,222)
VRS Group Life Insurance Program S 53,380 12,645 1,827 2,416

VRS Health Insurance Credit

Non-Professional Group 884 227 124 194
Professional Group 88,502 12,493 2,304 7,780
Total VRS Health Insurance Credit 89,386 12,720 2,428 7,974
Total OPEB — Schools Funded 142,766 25,365 4,255 10,390

Prince William County Schools Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans
1. Schools’ Virginia Retirement Systems (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program

Schools’ plan description. Schools participates in the VRS HIC Program to provide other post-employment benefits to eligible retired
employees. The VRS Teacher (professional) Employee HIC program is a multi-employer, cost-sharing plan, defined benefit plan. The VRS
Prince William County Schools (non-professional) Employee HIC program is an agent, multi-employer, defined benefit plan. The HIC
program provides a credit toward the cost of health insurance coverage for retired professional and non-professional employees.

The HIC program was established pursuant to §51.1-1400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority
under which benefit terms are established or may be amended. All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees of public-
school divisions are automatically covered by the VRS Teacher Employee HIC program. All full-time, salaried permanent (non-
professional) employees of Schools are automatically covered by the VRS Prince William County Schools HIC program upon
employment. These plans are administered by VRS. Members earn one month of service credit toward the benefit for each month
they are employed and for which Schools pays contributions to VRS. The HIC is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount set by the
General Assembly for each year of service credit against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay for single coverage,
excluding any portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and ends upon the
retiree’s death.
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Schools’ benefit amounts. For professional employees who retire, the monthly benefit is $0.004 per year of service per month with no
cap on the benefit amount. For professional employees who retire on disability or go on long-term disability under the Virginia Long-
term Disability Program (VLDP), the monthly benefit is either: (a) $0.004 per month, multiplied by twice the amount of service credit,
or (b) $0.004 per month, multiplied by the amount of service earned had the employee been active until age 60, whichever is lower.
For eligible non-professional employees who retire, the monthly benefit is $0.0015 per year of service per month with a maximum
benefit of $0.045 per month. For eligible non-professional employees who retire on disability or go on long-term disability under the
VLDP, the monthly benefit is $0.045 per month.

Schools’ HIC program notes. The monthly HIC benefit cannot exceed the individual premium amount. Employees who retire after being
on long-term disability under VLDP must have at least 15 years of service credit to qualify for the HIC as a retiree.

Schools’ Contributions — Non-Professional Group

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-1402(E) of the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be
impacted because of funding provided to Schools by the Virginia General Assembly. The non-professional group’s contractually
required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was 0.21% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on
an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The actuarially determined rate was expected to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions from Schools to the VRS HIC program for the non-professional group were $126 and $129 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

Schools’ Contributions — Professional Group

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-1401(E) of the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be
impacted because of funding provided to Schools by the Virginia General Assembly. Schools’ contractually required employer
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was 1.21% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an
actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate was expected to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions from Schools to the VRS HIC program for the professional group were $7,326 and $7,134 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

Schools’ Actuarial Assumptions, Long-Term Expected Rate of Return and Discount Rate

The actuarial assumptions and mortality rates, long-term expected return and discount rate used by VRS employee HIC program are
the same as those used by VRS pension plan for General Employees in the non-professional and professional group.

Schools’ OPEB Liabilities, Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to the HIC
Program OPEB Net HIC OPEB

On June 30, 2021, the professional group reported a liability of $88,502 for its proportionate share of the VRS HIC program net OPEB
liability. The net VRS HIC program OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total VRS HIC program OPEB liability used
to calculate the net VRS HIC program OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019 and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020. Schools’ proportion of the net VRS HIC program OPEB liability was based on the
Schools actuarially determined employer contributions to the VRS HIC program OPEB plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 relative
to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. On June 30, 2020, Schools’ proportion
of the VRS HIC program for professional group was 6.78% as compared to 6.64% on June 30, 2019.

The non-professional HIC program OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total non-professional HIC program OPEB
liability used to calculate the net non-professional HIC program OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as
of June 30, 2019, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2020.

Schools’ Changes in Net HIC OPEB Liability — Non-Professional Group

Illustration 14-42 present the change in the net OPEB liability from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, which is the measurement date
for June 30, 2021.
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Illustration 14-42
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan
Non-Professional Groups Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net

Total OPEB  Position - Increase Net OPEB
Liability (Decrease) Liability
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 2,482 1,709 773
Changes for the year:
Service cost 66 - 66
Interest 163 - 163
Changes of assumptions 94 - 94
Differences between expected and actual experience (52) - (52)
Contributions - employer - 129 (129)
Net investment income - 34 (34)
Benefit payments, including refund of employee
contributions (132) (132) -
Administrative expenses - (3) 3
Net changes 139 28 111
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 2,621 1,737 884

Sensitivity of Schools’ HIC Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Illustration 14-43 presents the VRS HIC program net OPEB liability of the non-professional group measured as of June 30, 2020, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as the non-professional group’s net HIC OPEB liability
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current
rate.

Illustration 14-43
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan — Non-Professional Groups
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

June 30, 2021
1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Proportionate share of the VRS HIC
OPEB Plan Net HIC OPEB Liability -
Non-Professional Group S 1,183 884 622

Illustration 14-44 present the professional’s group proportionate share of the VRS HIC program net liability measured as of June 30,
2020, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as the professional group’s proportionate share
of the net HIC OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage point
higher (7.75%) than the current rate.
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lllustration 14-44
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan — Professional Groups
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

June 30, 2021
1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Proportionate share of the VRS HIC
OPEB Plan Net HIC OPEB Liability -
Professional Group S 99,068 88,502 79,521

Schools’ Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to HIC Program OPEB Non-
Professional Group

For the year ended June 30, 2021, Schools recognized VRS HIC program OPEB expense of $194 for the non-professional group. On
June 30, 2021, Schools reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the VRS HIC program
OPEB for the non-professional group from the sources displayed in lllustration 14-45.

Illustration 14-45
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan —Non-Professional Groups
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S - 97
Change in actuarial assumptions 43 27
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 58 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 126 -
Total S 227 124

$126 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the non-professional group HIC OPEB resulting from Schools’ contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net non-professional group HIC OPEB liability in the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to the non-professional group HIC OPEB will be recognized in the OPEB expense in the future reporting periods shown in Illustration
14-46.

lllustration 14-46
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan — Non-Professional Groups
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 $ (17)
2023 (6)
2024 -
2025 9
2026 (6)
Thereafter (3)

Total S (23)
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Professional Group

For the year ended June 30, 2021, Schools recognized VRS HIC program OPEB expense of $7,780 for the professional group.

On June 30, 2021, Schools reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Schools’ VRS HIC
OPEB program for the professional group from the sources displayed in lllustration 14-47.

lllustration 14-47
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan — Professional Groups
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S - 1,182
Change in actuarial assumptions 1,749 483
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 392 -
Employer contributions and proportionate share of Contributions 3,026 639
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,326 -
Total $ 12,493 2,304

$7,326 reported as deferred outflow of resources related to Schools’ VRS HIC OPEB program for the professional resulting from
Schools’ contribution subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net professional group HIC OPEB
liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflow of resources and the deferred inflow of
resources related to Schools’ VRS HIC OPEB program for the professional group will be recognized in the OPEB expense in the future
reporting periods displayed in illustration 14-48.

Illustration 14-48
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Plan — Professional Groups
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 533
2023 572
2024 558
2025 538
2026 381
Thereafter 281

Total S 2,863

Schools’ VRS HIC Program Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about Schools” VRS HIC program’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). A copy of the 2020 VRS ACFR may be downloaded from the VRS website at
https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2020-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the VRS’ Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, Virginia 23218-2500.
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2. School Board’s (Schools’) Virginia Retirement Systems (VRS) — General Life Insurance (GLI) Program
Schools’ Plan Description

Schools participates in the VRS GLI Program to provide other postemployment benefits to eligible retired employees. The VRS GLI
program is a multiple employer, cost-sharing, defined benefit plan. The GLI program was established pursuant to § 51.1-500 et seq. of
the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or may be amended. It
provides a basic group life insurance benefit for eligible employees.

All full-time, salaried permanent Schools employees are automatically covered by the VRS Group Life Insurance Program upon
employment. Coverage ends for employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their member
contributions and accrued interest.

In addition to the Basic Group Life Insurance benefit, Schools employees are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as well
as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional Group Life Insurance Program. For Schools employees who elect the optional group
life insurance coverage, the insurer bills Schools directly for the premiums. Schools deducts these premiums from employees’ paychecks and
pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the VRS GLI Program OPEB

Schools’ benefit amounts. The benefits payable under the GLI program have several components. (1) Natural Death Benefit, which is
equal to the employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled; (2) Accidental Death Benefit,
which is double the natural death benefit; or (3) Other Benefit Provisions, which include accidental dismemberment benefit, safety belt
benefit, repatriation benefit, felonious assault benefit and accelerated death benefit option.

Reduction in Schools’ benefit amounts. The benefit amounts provided to members covered under the GLI program are subject to a
reduction factor. The benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount
reduces by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value.

Minimum Schools’ benefit amount and COLA. For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, there is a minimum
benefit payable under the GLI program. The minimum benefit was set at $8.0 by statute in 2015. This amount is increased annually
based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment and is currently $8.6.

Schools’ Contributions

The contribution requirements for Schools’ GLI program are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to Schools by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI
program was 1.34% of covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an employee and employer component using a 60/40
split. The employee component was 0.80% (1.34% x 60%) and the employer component was 0.54% (1.34% x 40%). Employers may
elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution, however the employer must pay all the employer contribution. Schools has
elected to pay the employee share. Schools’ contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was
0.54% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions
from Schools to the VRS GLI program were $3,636 and $3,423 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

Schools’ Actuarial Assumptions, Long-Term Expected Return and Discount Rate

The actuarial assumptions and mortality rates, long-term expected return and discount rate used by VRS employee GLI program are
the same as those used by VRS pension plan for General Employees in the non-professional and professional group.

Schools’ OPEB Liabilities, Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to the GLI
Program

On June 30, 2021, Schools reported a liability of $53,380 for its proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability. The net GLI OPEB
liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total GLI OPEB liability used to calculate the net GLI OPEB liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020. Schools’ proportion
of the net GLI OPEB liability was based on Schools’ actuarially determined employer contributions to the VRS GLI program for the year
ended June 30, 2020, relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. On June
30, 2020, Schools’ proportion for the professional and non-professional groups, respectively, was 2.90% and 0.30% as compared to
2.85% and 0.30% on June 30, 2019.
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For the year ended June 30, 2021, Schools recognized GLI OPEB expense of $2,416. Since there was a change in proportionate share
between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.

On June 30, 2021, Schools reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB from
the following sources displayed in Illustration 14-49.

Illustration 14-49
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 3,424 479

Change in actuarial assumptions 2,670 1,115

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 1,603 -
Change in proportion and differences between employer contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 1,312 233

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,636 -

Total $ 12,645 1,827

$3,636 reported as deferred outflow of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from Schools’ contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net GLI OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB
expense in the future reporting periods displayed in Illustration 14-50.

Illustration 14-50
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) —Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 S 1,184
2023 1,637
2024 1,948
2025 1,835
2026 522
Thereafter 56

Total S 7,182

Sensitivity of the Schools’ Proportionate Share of the GLI Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents Schools’ proportionate share of the VRS GLI program net OPEB liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as
well as the Schools’ proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate displayed in Illustrations 14-51 and
14-52.
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Illustration 14-51
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan — For Non-Professional
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Proportionate share of the VRS HIC
OPEB Plan Net — GLI OPEB Liability S 6,586 5,010 3,730

lllustration 14-52
School Board’s (Schools) Virginia Retirement System (VRS) — Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan — For Professional
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
June 30, 2021

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Proportionate share of the VRS HIC
OPEB Plan Net — GLI OPEB Liability S 63,586 48,370 36,013

Schools’ VRS GLI Program Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about Schools” VRS HIC program’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). A copy of the 2020 VRS ACFR may be downloaded from the VRS website at
https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2020-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the VRS’ Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, Virginia 23218-2500.

Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund Plans — School Board
Premium Plan

Plan Activity for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021:

Schools’ Plan Description

Schools contributes to the Prince William County OPEB Master Trust Fund in the School Boards Premium Plan, an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit post-employment benefits trust fund administered by the County. As such, it is reported in accordance with
GASB Statement 74.

The OPEB Master Trust is not a part of the Schools reporting entity and does not issue stand-alone financial statements. The OPEB
Master Trust is part of the County’s reporting entity and the County issues a publicly available ACFR that includes financial statements
and RSI for the OPEB Master Trust. A copy of that report may be obtained by writing Prince William County at 1 County Complex Court,
Prince William, Virginia 22192 or download from the County’s website at https://www.pwcva.gov/department/finance/finance-and-
revenue.

All OPEB Master Trust Plans’ assets are aggregated together for investment purposes. Please refer to the previous discussion in
footnote 14, section B and Illustration 14-15 for overall OPEB Master Trust Plans' information, such as, long-term expected rate of
return and annual money-weighted rate of return.

Contributions:

The Schools’ actuarially determined contribution amount for the year ended June 30, 2021, was $3,556. This rate was based on an
actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021. The actuarially determined rate was expected to finance the
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costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions from the Schools into the OPEB Master Trust Fund were $1,800 and $1,800 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and June

30, 2020, respectively. Additional information about Schools net benefits paid for the year ended June 30, 2021 are in Illustrations
14-16.

Schools’ Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Schools’ net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability (asset) used to calculate the net OPEB
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020.

Illustration 14-53
School Board (Schools) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund Plans — School Board Premium Plan
Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB Net Position as % of
Fiscal Year Ended: Liability Net Position Liability (Asset) Total OPEB Liability
June 30, 2021 S 39,793 54,123 (14,330) 136.0%

Sensitivity of Schools’ Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Change in Discount Rate

Illustration 14-54 represents the net OPEB liability (asset) measured calculated using a discount rate of 7.00%, as well as the net OPEB
liability (asset) calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower (6.00%) and one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the
current rate.

lllustration 14-54
School Board (Schools) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund Plans — School Board Premium Plan

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.0% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) (11,376) (14,330) (17,048)

Sensitivity of Schools’ Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Illustration 14-55 represents the total and net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using the stated health care cost trend assumption, as
well as the OPEB liability (asset) calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate of 4.00% as well as the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated
using a discount rate of one percentage point lower (3.00%) and one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the assumed rate.

Illustration 14-55
School Board (Schools) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Master Trust Fund Plans — School Board Premium Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S (18,455) (14,330) (9,526)
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3. Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Schools’ Plan Description

Other post-employment benefits provided by Schools include a single employer defined benefit self-insurance medical plan and a
retiree health insurance premium contribution plan that cover retirees until they reach 65 years of age. There is no coverage for
retirees or their spouses once they attain age 65. Both plans were established under the authority of the School Board. Any
amendments to the plans must be approved by the School Board.

The Schools’ single-employer self-insurance medical plan allows retirees under age 65 to remain in the same medical and dental plan
as active employees.

The Schools’ retiree health insurance premium contribution plan allows eligible retirees to have the option to exchange their accrued,
unused sick leave for a School Board contribution to offset the cost of the Schools health insurance premiums in retirement. The
retiring employee must be between the ages of 55 and 65, have a minimum of 125 days of accrued sick leave, be currently enrolled in
the Schools group health insurance plan, and meet the service requirements to participate in Schools’ Retirement Opportunity
Program.

The School Board will pay between 25 to 100 percent of the amount contributed by retirees who enrolled in the school division’s post-
retirement medical plan depending on the number of sick leave days exchanged. The plan became effective on July 1, 2000.

On July 1, 2020 (valuation date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms displayed in Illustration 14-56.

Illustration 14-56
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Plan Membership as of the Valuation Date of July 1, 2020

Active employees 6,739
Inactive members receiving benefits 270
Total covered members 7,009

Schools’ Contributions

Post-employment healthcare expenses, depending on the number of sick leave days exchanged, are made from the Health Insurance
Fund, which is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting. The School Board establishes employer contribution rates for plan
participants and determines how the plan will be funded as part of the budgetary process each year. Retirees pay the full budgeted
rates for coverage under the medical plan. Schools currently pays benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and contributed $1,800 to Schools’
OPEB Master Trust Fund —School Board Premium Plan to fund the current year liability. For the year ended June 30, 2021, plan members
received $4,492 in benefits and contributed $2,736 in premiums, resulting in net benefits paid by Schools of $1,756.
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Schools’ Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Schools’ total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial methods and

assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified in Illustration 14-57.

lllustration 14-57

Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan

Valuation date
Measurement date
Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method
Payroll growth

Subsidy rate

Medical trend

Discount rate / Investment rate of return

Coverage status and age of spouse

Professional / Non-Professional

Amortization method

Amortization period
Decrement assumptions
Mortality assumption

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

July 1, 2020
June 30, 2020
Entry Age Normal
Fair value of assets, assets were assumed to earn 7.00% per annum
3.00% per year-used in level percentage of pay amortization

It is assumed that all retirees will receive a 30.00% subsidy. This is based
on the average of all current subsidies, and not an actual subsidy option.

The medical trend assumption is based on a model developed using the

Society of Actuaries (SOA) Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model baseline
assumptions. The SOA Model was released in October 2010 and updated
in September 2019. We have a blended medical trend rate of 2.00% based
on the following baseline assumptions were used as input variables into

a model:

Rate of Inflation 2.50%
Rate of Growth in real income / GDP per capita 1.50%
Extra Trend due to Technology and other factors 1.10%
Expected Health Share of GDP in 2019 20.00%
Health Share of GDP Resistance Point 25.00%
Year of Limiting Cost Growth to GDP Growth 2075

7.00% per annum. Because the plan’s assets are currently 65.00% of the
liabilities, and Schools intends to continue to contribute, the long-term
expected rate of return on assets of 7.00% can be used as the discount rate.

Active employees that currently have coverage: 35.00% are assumed to
continue coverage in retirement. Females are assumed to be 3 years
younger than male spouse. Of active employees electing retirement

health coverage 25.00% are assumed to have spousal or family coverage.
Of these 25.00% with spouse or family coverage, approximately 75.00% are
assumed to have retiree and spouse and 25.00% have family coverage.
Employees currently waiving coverage are assumed to continue to waive
coverage in retirement.

It is assumed that 80.00% of actives are professionals and 20.00% are non-
professionals. This is used to determine the subsidy, since the active
subsidy is different for professionals and non-professionals.

Unfunded (Surplus) liabilities are amortized using level percentage of
projected pay.

The amortization period is closed and equals 28 years as of June 30, 2020.
VRS Termination Rates for Teachers

None — not material, since benefits end at 65.
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The three Anthem plans are self-insured. To determine the assumed cost and the retiree
contributions, we weighted the FY 2020 premium rates by the current enrollment. Gross
claims are equal to the age adjusted assumed cost. The results were increased by a load of

Claims assumptions: 1.25 so that the 2020 retiree portion of premiums would equal the expected FY 2020 retiree
paid claims. The resulting average per age 65 claims were age adjusted. The chart below
shows the current cost broken down between the published per capita cost (i.e., the blended
rates) and the hidden subsidy.

FYE 2021
Total Costs (per annum) Single Family
1. Assumed Costs (Explicit costs)
a. Pre-medicare $8,351 $18,595

2. Total Medicare Costs (including prescription drugs)

a. Under 50 $8,917 $19,854
b. Age 50-54 $11,099 $24,713
c. Age 55-59 $13,663 $30,423
d. Age 60-64 $16,778 $37,358

Schools’ Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Schools’ net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability
(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020.

lllustration 14-58
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Net OPEB
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Liability Net Position as % of Total
Fiscal Year Ended: Liability Position (Asset) OPEB Liability
June 30, 2021 S 38,601 41,603 (3,002) 107.78%
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Illustration 14-59 presents the change in net OPEB liability (asset) from June 30 2020 to June 30, 2021, which is the measurement date
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Illustration 14-59
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Changes in Net OPEB Liability (Asset)
Plan Fiduciary

Net Position - Net OPEB
Total OPEB Increase Liability
Liability (Decrease) (Asset)
Balances on June 30, 2019 for FY 2020 S 57,676 37,324 20,352
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,913 - 2,913
Interest 3,903 - 3,903
Differences between expected and actual experience (22,626) - (22,626)
Contributions - employer - 4,845 (4,845)
Net investment income - 2,494 (2,494)
Changes in Assumptions (220) - (220)
Benefit payments, including refund of employee contributions (3,045) (3,045) -
Administrative expenses - (15) 15
Net changes (19,075) 4,279 (23,354)
Balances on June 30, 2020 for FY 2021 S 38,601 41,603 (3,002)

Sensitivity of Schools’ Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

Illustration 14-60 represents the net OPEB liability (asset) measured as of June 30, 2020, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using
the discount rate of 7.00% calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) and one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate.

Illustration 14-60
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended: (6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Net OPEB Liability (asset) S (182) (3,002) (5,595)
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Sensitivity of Schools’ Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Illustration 14-61 represents the total and net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using the stated health care cost trend assumption of
4.00%, as well as the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point lower (3.00%)
or one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the assumed trend rate.

lllustration 14-61
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S (6,629) (3,002) 1,217

Schools’ OPEB Expense (Income) and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2021, Schools recognized OPEB income of $1,222. At June 30, 2021, Schools reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources displayed in lllustration 14-62.

Illustration 14-62
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium

Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources
June 30, 2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S - 30,603

Change of Assumptions 193
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan

investments 309 -

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,556 -

Total S 3,865 30,796

$3,556 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Schools’ contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense per
Illustration 14-63.

Illustration 14-63
Prince William County School Board (Schools) — Retiree Health Insurance Premium Plan
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 $ (5,361)
2023 (5,510)
2024 (5,468)
2025 (5,496)
2026 (2,941)
Thereafter (5,711)

Total $ (30,487)
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The County and Adult Detention Center are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; the health of and injuries to its employees; and natural disasters.

The Prince William County Self-Insurance Group Casualty Pool provides coverage to the County and the Adult Detention Center. The
Casualty Pool has a $750 per occurrence retention of coverage, except ambulances and fire trucks, $1,000 per occurrence retention of
coverage, and it purchases commercial excess insurance with a $10,000 per occurrence and $20,000 annual aggregate limit, except for
automobile liability coverage, which has a $10,000 annual aggregate limit and public official liability which has a $10,000 aggregate limit.
The Prince William County Self-Insurance Group Workers” Compensation Association provides coverage to the County and the Adult
Detention Center. The Association has a $1,500 per occurrence retention, and it purchases commercial excess coverage which provides
statutory limits for workers’ compensation claims of the $1,500 per occurrence and a $1,000 excess retention limit for employers’
liability coverage.

The County’s Self-Insurance Group Casualty Pool, Workers’ Compensation and Other Self-Insurance plans are fully funded. Losses are
charged to operations as incurred. The liability for unpaid losses for self-insurance is determined using case-basis evaluations and a
provision for incurred but not reported losses that is based upon actuarial projections. Actuarial projections of ultimate losses are
based on a composite of the self-insurance members’ experience and property and casualty insurance industry data, which is used to
supplement the limited historical experience and includes the effects of inflation and other factors. Claims liabilities include allocated
loss adjustment expenses and are reported net of estimated claims. Due to the limited historical experience of the Prince William Self-
Insurance Group Casualty Pool, Workers’ Compensation and Other Self-Insurance, there exists a significant range of variability around
the best estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all unpaid claims. Accordingly, the amount of the liability for unpaid losses and related
expenses and the related provisions included in financial statements may be more or less than the actual cost of settling all unpaid
claims. Adjustments to claim liabilities are made continually, based on subsequent developments and experience, and are included in
operations as made.

The County’s pre-65 retirees with over fifteen (15) years of service and permanent employees are eligible to enroll in one of three
health insurance plans and a dental plan. All three health insurance plans include comprehensive medical, preventive care, vision, and
prescription drug coverage. Three of the health insurance plans are self-insured with a $225 specific individual stop loss limit. The
dental plan is also self-insured. The basis for estimating incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims at year-end is an annual analysis
performed by the plan’s administrator. The County also offers fully insured HMO and vision options to employees. The County
expended $50,191 for claims and administration in fiscal year 2021.

All the County’s Self-Insurance plans also have excess reinsurance administered by a commercial insurance carrier. This is to prevent
settlements from exceeding our insurance coverage at any time. In fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019, settlements did not exceed our
insurance coverage in each of our Self-Insurance plans in each fiscal year.

All of the County’s Self-Insurance plans also have excess reinsurance administered by a commercial insurance carrier. This is to
prevent settlements from exceeding our insurance coverage at any time. In fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019, settlements did not
exceed our insurance coverage in each of our Self-Insurance plans in each fiscal year.

Illustration 15-1 presents a reconciliation of the changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the current and prior fiscal years.

These claims liabilities are included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying statement of fund net position (Exhibit 7 and Schedule
24).
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lllustration 15-1
Prince William County Self-Insurance
Other Self Insurance, Casualty Pool, Workers’ Compensation Association and Health Insurance
Changes in the Aggregate Liabilities for Claims

Workers'
Other Self- Compensation Health
Insurance  Casualty Pool Association Insurance*
Unpaid claims June 30, 2019 268 747 15,260 4,419
Total claims incurred, fiscal year 2020 - 659 4,015 46,033
Total claims paid, fiscal year 2020 (47) (568) (2,962) (46,245)
Unpaid claims June 30, 2020 221 838 16,313 4,207
Total claims incurred, fiscal year 2021 - 452 3,761 45,945
Total claims paid, fiscal year 2021 (19) (377) (3,209) (45,639)
Unpaid claims June 30, 2021 S 202 913 16,865 4,513

*Health Insurance column excludes certain fully insured HMO, vision premiums, flexible spending benefits and retiree insurance credit expenses.

The County has entered into a contractual agreement with Fairfax County for the purpose of exchanging solid waste. The agreement
allows for the sharing of solid waste facilities between counties. Revenues and expenses generated by this agreement are recorded in
the Landfill enterprise fund with billing for any balances to occur during the second half of the fiscal year or reconciliation at the end
the fiscal year. Neither party is obligated to make payment unless the funds have been appropriated. The agreement is cancelable by
giving 120 days written notice. The amounts due from and due to Fairfax County are $173 and $0 respectively on June 30, 2021.

A. Industrial Development Authority of the County of Prince William, Virginia

The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Prince William, Virginia (IDA) was established by the Board pursuant to Title
15.2, Chapter 49 of the Code of Virginia, commonly known as the Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act of 1950, and later
amended, and pursuant to Chapter 2, Article VI in the Code of the County of Prince William. The IDA is a separate and distinct legal
entity from the County and considered a political subdivision of the Commonwealth governed by seven directors, who are appointed
by the Board. The IDA is empowered, among other things, to acquire, construct, improve, maintain, equip, own, lease and dispose of
parking and other facilities in the Commonwealth by encouraging other enterprises including institutions of higher education to
relocate to the County and further the use of local agricultural products and natural resources.

The IDA does not have taxing authority to help finance such activities to facilitate the County’s economic development initiatives.
However, they can issue tax-exempt conduit debt with the approval of the County’s Board, otherwise known as industrial development
bonds, which is an alternative financing arrangement for outside enterprises. This type of bond is advantageous to outside enterprises
because the bonds have lower issuance costs than other debt arrangements and extend to their buyers the federal and State tax-
exempt status on interest earned. These bonds do not constitute indebtedness of the County or the Commonwealth and are secured
solely by revenues received from the enterprises. The County has no financial responsibility for the day-to-day financial transactions
for the IDA. More information about the IDA can be found at https://www.pwcida.org/.

B.  Service Authority

The Prince William County Service Authority (Service Authority) was established under Title 15.1, Chapter 28 of the Code of Virginia,
commonly known as the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act, and pursuant to an adopted resolution by the Board on January 11,
1983. It was chartered by the State Corporation Commission and is an independent public body responsible for providing a
comprehensive county-wide water and sewer system. The daily management of the Service Authority is the responsibility of the General
Manager, who is appointed by the Service Authority’s eight-member Board, who are appointed by the County Board. The eight-members
of the Service Authority’s Board are appointed by the County Board. The Service Authority’s Board is charged with carrying out the
Service Authority’s fiscal and management functions. Funds to finance operations and capital improvements are principally financed by
user charges set by the Service Authority’s Board and by issuing their own bonds. The Service Authority is an independent public body,
who is solely responsible for all its outstanding debt.
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Upon creation, the Service Authority assumed and manages the County’s interest in the Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority (UOSA), a
regional joint venture, to supplement the County’s water and sewage capacity needs, especially as the County grows. In 1992, the
County entered into a Service Agreement with the Service Authority for the Service Authority to assume and pay the County’s
remaining debt service balance due to UOSA for an annual contribution that declined over a period of years until paid off in 2021. On
December 11, 2012, the County and the Service Authority amended their agreement whereby the Service Authority assumed the
County’s remaining debt service balance due to UOSA and established a non-cash credit for the benefit of the County of $13,782, equal
to the County’s previous payments to UOSA. The County may use this credit to purchase water and sewer availability, or any Service
Authority asset offered for sale and will be reduced accordingly. The balance of the County’s unused portion of the credit on June 30,
2021, is $11,119. More information about the Service Authority can be found at https://www.pwcsa.org/.

C.  Northern Virginia Criminal Justice Training Academy-Emergency Vehicle Operations Center

The Northern Virginia Criminal Justice Training Academy (NVCITA) was re-chartered by the Commonwealth of Virginia in 1997. It was
originally established in 1965 as the Northern Virginia Police Academy. NVCJTA serves 17 participating law enforcement agencies in the
Metropolitan DC area and partners with Fairfax County and Prince William County Criminal Justice Academies for operating and
maintaining its Emergency Vehicle Operations Center (EVOC). In 2006, the County and some surrounding jurisdictions agreed to issue
bonds to finance the construction and equip the EVOC. The County, specifically, agreed to pay up to 30% of the total debt service
payments as well as a pro rata portion of operating and maintenance expenses as was approved by the Board of County Supervisors on
September 6, 2005 via Resolution Number 05-770. The County has no role in managing the EVOC’s day-to-day operations. The EVOC
was completed in 2012.

On September 24, 2015, NVCJTA issued by means of Loudoun County’s Industrial Development Authority the 2015 Private Placement
Bonds in the amount of $9,613 to advance refund the 2006 Series Revenue Bonds outstanding balance of $11,990, with maturity date
of June 1, 2026. In exchange for using the Center and taking advantage of the savings from refunding debt, the County agreed to pay
$3,800, a portion of the total debt service. The County Board commits funds during the general fund’s annual budget adoption process.
The County paid its portion of the 2015 Series Bonds debt service payments of $344 and $153 for the County’s portion of operating
expenses as of June 30, 2021. See lllustration 17-1 for future long-term obligations regarding County payments to cover the 2015
Series Bonds debt service.

lllustration 17-1
County’s Share of NVCITA Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal year Ending June 30:

2022 S 337
2023 330
2024 323
2025 316
2026 292
Total S 1,598

More information about NVCJTA can be found at https://www.nvcja.org/.

D. Northern Virginia Transportation Authority

The Northern Virginia Transportation Authority (NVTA) was established under Title 33.2, Chapter 25 of the Code of Virginia, commonly
known as the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority Act. NVTA embraces the Counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Loudoun and Prince
William, and the Cities of Alexandria, Fairfax, Falls Church, Manassas and Manassas Park and is governed by a Board of seventeen
members from the participating jurisdictions serving 1-year terms. It is a regional body that is focused on delivering real transportation
solutions and value for Northern Virginia’s transportation dollars by bringing Northern Virginia jurisdictions and agencies together to
prioritize projects and implement solutions. NVTA has a technical advisory committee to provide recommendations on the development
of transportation projects, funding strategies and other matters.

Effective July 1, 2013 authorized by House Bill 2313 passed by the Virginia General Assembly on April 3, 2013, the State retail sales and
use tax increased from 5.0% to 6.0% in the Northern Virginia region. 0.3% of the 1.0% increase are earmarked revenues to be deposited
in the State Highway Maintenance Operating Fund. However, the remaining 0.7% increase, the 2.0% transient occupancy tax, and fee
on grantors of real property equal to $0.15 per $100 of real property sold by such persons in the Northern Virginia area are deposited
with NVTA and used for transportation projects within Northern Virginia. The bill and Memorandum of Understanding with the
jurisdictions, further states that 30% of these revenues are to be distributed to the participating jurisdictions on a pro rata basis for local
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transportation projects and 70% to be used for regional transportation projects after making debt service payments to be used at NVTA’s
discretion. NVTA is a separate legal entity from the County and is solely responsible for its own operations and debt. More information
about NVTA can be found at https://thenovaauthority.org/.

A. Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission

The Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission (PRTC), was created in fiscal year 1987 to levy a 2% Motor Fuel Tax
authorized by the Commonwealth. The PRTC is a joint venture of the contiguous jurisdictions of Prince William and Stafford Counties
and the Cities of Manassas, Manassas Park, and Fredericksburg and was established to improve transportation systems, composed of
transit facilities, public highways and other modes of transport. While each jurisdiction effectively controls PRTC’s use of Motor Fuel
Tax proceeds from that jurisdiction, they do not have an explicit, measurable equity interest in PRTC. More information about PRTC
can be found at https://www.omninde.com.

The PRTC’s governing structure consists of a seventeen-member board of commissioners that includes thirteen locally elected officials
from the six-member jurisdictions, three appointed commissioners from the General Assembly and one ex-officio representative
representing from the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT).

On December 16, 1997, the PRTC issued $7,445 in Transportation Facilities Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1997. The 1997
Bonds were issued to refinance certain of PRTC’s outstanding indebtedness, originally incurred to finance the costs of the acquisition,
design and construction of transportation facilities. The 1997 Bonds are limited obligations of PRTC payable solely from and secured by
a pledge of (1) prior to March 1, 2000, a refunding escrow account, and (2) on and after March 1, 2000, (a) the County’s portion of fuel
tax revenues, (b) payments by the County to PRTC pursuant to the lease, subject to appropriation, and (c) certain funds and accounts
established by indenture, including a debt service reserve fund. More information about PRTC can be found at:
https://www.omninde.com.

Copies of PRTC'’s financial statements may be obtained by writing to PRTC Finance Division, 14700 Potomac Mills Road, Woodbridge,
Virginia 22192.

Legal Matters

The County is liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims that arise in the ordinary course of business and in most cases, the
outcome of these matters is not currently estimable. However, it is the opinion of the County that these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the County’s financial position.

Virginia Railway Express

In May 2005, NVTC and PRTC entered a capitalized lease obligation on behalf of VRE in the amount of $25,100 for the acquisition of
11 cab cars. As of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance on the capitalized lease was approximately $6,985.

In fiscal year 2008, VRE entered into an agreement with the Federal Railroad Administration for a loan of up to $72.5 million to
purchase 50 Gallery railcars. In fiscal year 2009, the terms were amended to include ten additional Gallery railcars. A series of sixteen
promissory notes were originally authorized and during fiscal year 2012 the balance on the individual notes were combined into a
consolidated note. The note was secured by the revenues of VRE and the railcars. In fiscal year 2018, VRE entered into a financing
agreement with the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) for the purposes of refunding the FRA consolidated promissory note and
reducing VRE’s debt service costs. As required by the authorizing resolutions of the Commissions and jurisdictions, the VRA refunding
loan did not extend the term of the original borrowing and achieved net present value debt service savings of not less than three
percent. The FRA note was refunded in full from the proceeds from the VRA financing, and VRE has pledged its revenues to the
repayment of the principal, premium, and interest on the local bond purchased by VRA. The VRA Bond payable amount on June 30,
2021, was $39,770.

The County, through its membership in the PRTC, has joined with other jurisdictions through a Master Agreement to bear certain costs
associated with operating and ensuring the rail service as well as servicing the debt issued by NVTC. The Master Agreement requires
that the County's governmental officers charged with preparing its annual budget include an amount equal to its share of the costs of
the VRE. Each jurisdiction’s share is determined by a formula set out in the Master Agreement. It is estimated the County's share of
this cost will be approximately $5,931 annually and will be provided by a direct transfer of funding in the Northern Virginia
Transportation Authority (NVTA) 30% funds to the VRE. More information about VRE can be found at https://www.vre.org.
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Other Matters

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak as a global pandemic, and new
variants of COVID-19 continue to spread throughout the United States and world today. The continued adverse impacts on the
national and global economies, supply chain disruptions, economic downturn, disruption of many industries, and continued
volatility and decline in national and global financial markets still hinder the economic recovery and community outreach still
needed to respond to the pandemic. Local governments, like the County, are continuing to respond to the pandemic and longest
lasting emergency in new ways to support our communities and residents during continued challenging times through the use of
the remaining Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funds and the beginning of the American Rescue Plan
Act of 2021 (ARPA) funds. The pandemic still potentially could have a material, adverse impact on economic and market conditions.
Although it is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of the pandemic or the financial impact to the County now and
in the future, the County is navigating the emergency by utilizing existing County policies and processes as well as adhering to its
Principles of Sound Financial Management and leveraging our past experience with laws and regulations around the use of federal
funds.

Land Donation:

On September 7, 2021, the Board of County Supervisors approved Resolution No. 21-476 accepting and authorizing the execution of
a deed of dedication and gift from The Villages at Rippon Landing Homeowner’s Association, Inc. for the conveyance of 56.442 acres
of land on two parcels at 15601 and 15535 Blackburn Road for inclusion into Neabsco Regional Park.

Land Purchases:

On November 9, 2021, the Board of County Supervisors approved Resolution No. 21-613 authorizing the purchase of approximately 2
acres of land at 16117 John Marshall Highway for $300,000. Settlement occurred in November 2021.

On December 7, 2021, the Board of County Supervisors approved Resolution No. 21-658 authorizing the purchase of 2.24 acres of land
at 16205, 16141, 16151, and 16133 John Marshall Highway for $1,825,000. Settlement occurred in January 2022.

On December 14, 2021, the Board of County Supervisors approved Resolution No. 21-683 authorizing the purchase of approximately
54.6 acres of land at 14202 Van Doren Road for $2,900,000. The County anticipates settlement by December 2021.

Land Sales:

On July 13, 2021, the Board of County Supervisors approved Resolution No. 21-405 authorizing the sale of approximately 10 acres of
County-owned property located at 13600 Carriage Ford Road for a sales price of $901,000. Settlement occurred in November 2021.

Bonds:

On October 21, 2021, the County sold the VPSA Special Obligation School Financing Bonds, Series 2021A, in the par amount of $58,855
with a true interest cost of 1.67%. The sale of the bonds was approved by the Board on October 12, 2021, by Resolution No. 21-549.
The proceeds of the bonds provided funds for construction and cost of issuance for various capital school improvement projects.

Policy Updates:

On February 15, 2022, the Board of County Supervisors approved the amendment of the County’s Procurement Regulations to be
consistent with section 2.2-4303 of the Code of Virginia, Virginia Public Procurement Act, as amended under Resolution No. 22-098.

Changes in Executive Leadership:

On December 31, 2021, Mr. Christopher E. Martino, the previous County Executive, retired after 26 years of service with the County.
On January 1, 2022, the Board appointed Mr. Elijah T. Johnson, one of the County’s Deputy County Executives, as Acting County
Executive. The Board also commenced a nationwide search for a permanent County Executive. Under Mr. Johnson’s leadership, the
County will continue to adhere to existing County policies and procedures and follow the Board’s Principles of Sound Financial
Management to support its daily operations.
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

GENERAL FUND Schedule 1
Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Page 1of5
(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Original Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
BUDGETARY REVENUES:
FROM LOCAL SOURCES:
GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES:
Real property taxes S 699,108 699,108 706,310 7,202
Real and personal property taxes ot
public service corporations 21,454 21,454 21,002 (452)
Personal property taxes 218,206 163,918 167,878 3,960
Penalties and interest 8,191 8,191 7,846 (345)
Total general property taxes 946,959 892,671 903,036 10,365
OTHER LOCAL TAXES:
Short term rental taxes 519 519 885 366
Local sales taxes 65,130 65,130 80,140 15,010
Consumer's utility taxes 14,700 14,700 13,266 (1,434)
Bank stock taxes 2,300 2,300 2,571 271
Motor vehicle license taxes 12,840 12,840 12,550 (290)
Recordation taxes 9,930 9,930 20,067 10,137
Business, professional and occupational license taxes 24,375 24,375 29,882 5,507
Public utility gross receipts taxes 1,515 1,515 1,757 242
Transient occupancy taxes 2,800 2,800 2,926 126
Total other local taxes 134,109 134,109 164,044 29,935
PERMITS, PRIVILEGE FEES AND REGULATORY LICENSES:
Animal licenses 141 246 212 (34)
Fire protection permits 1,296 141 142 1
Health protection permits 176 176 175 (1)
Cable franchise fees 1,296 1,296 1,117 (179)
Permits and other licenses 71 71 114 43
Total permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses 2,980 1,930 1,760 (170)
FINES AND FORFEITURES: 3,421 3,421 1,788 (1,633)
FROM USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY:
Use of money 7,942 7,477 8,782 1,305
Use of property 982 982 1,083 101
Total revenues from use of money and property 8,924 8,459 9,865 1,406
CHARGES FOR SERVICES:
Court costs 1,969 1,969 2,116 147
Correction and detention 1,101 1,101 316 (785)
Commonwealth's Attorney - - 17 17
Parks and recreation 8,548 8,548 2,598 (5,950)
Mental health and developmental disabilities 740 740 882 142
Welfare and social services 193 193 24 (169)
Library 589 589 118 (471)
Public safety 1,022 1,022 598 (424)
Facilities and fleet management 179 179 75 (104)
Other charges 299 299 413 114
Total charges for services 14,640 14,640 7,157 (7,483)
Total revenues from local sources 1,111,033 1,055,230 1,087,650 32,420
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

GENERAL FUND Schedule 1
Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Page 2 of 5
(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Original Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT:
Payments in lieu of taxes 75 75 68 (7)
Categorical aid grants:
Aging programs 1,333 1,845 1,176 (669)
United States Department of Agriculture 110 110 41 (69)
Welfare programs 14,922 18,328 17,393 (935)
Mental health, developmental disabilities and substance
abuse programs 2,891 3,336 2,229 (1,107)
Homeland Security grants 262 4,629 1,311 (3,318)
Other 49 597 2,442 1,845
Total revenues from the federal government 19,642 28,920 24,660 (4,260)
THE COMMONWEALTH:
NONCATEGORICAL AID:
Personal property tax relief act - 54,288 54,288 -
Communications sales and use taxes 15,780 15,780 14,672 (1,108)
Anti-Annexation public safety 9,835 9,835 10,661 826
Mobile home taxes a4 44 28 (16)
Rental car taxes 985 985 1,204 219
Rolling stock taxes 93 93 93 -
Total noncategorical aid 26,737 81,025 80,946 (79)
SHARED EXPENDITURES:
Commonwealth's Attorney 1,744 1,744 1,999 255
Sheriff 1,889 1,889 1,902 13
Director of Finance 736 736 721 (15)
Registrar 92 92 92 -
Clerk of the Court 1,788 1,902 1,925 23
Total shared expenditures 6,249 6,363 6,639 276
CATEGORICAL AID:
Public safety 1,715 2,067 2,134 67
Fire programs 1,635 1,698 1,955 257
Library 498 522 278 (244)
Public assistance and welfare administration 25,439 25,888 18,250 (7,638)
Public health 303 303 515 212
Total categorical aid 29,590 30,478 23,132 (7,346)
OTHER CATEGORICAL AID:
Aging program 461 479 453 (26)
Community services 19,953 20,234 18,332 (1,902)
Juvenile detention 2,328 2,368 2,305 (63)
Criminal justice services 1,029 1,029 1,083 54
Police extraditions 30 30 11 (19)
Sheriff extraditions 25 25 6 (19)
Victim / witness program - - 95 95
Other 217 243 451 208
Total other categorical aid 24,043 24,408 22,736 (1,672)
Total revenues from the Commonwealth 86,619 142,274 133,453 (8,821)
LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:
City of Manassas 5,321 5,321 5,624 303
City of Manassas Park 1,710 1,710 1,604 (106)
Total revenues from local governments 7,031 7,031 7,228 197
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

GENERAL FUND Schedule 1
Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Page 3 of 5
(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Original Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
MISCELLANEOUS:
Expenditure refunds 831 831 685 (146)
Donations - Proffers 915 24,100 26,677 2,577
Donations - Other 180 1,010 445 (565)
Other 330 526 1,308 782
Total miscellaneous revenues 2,256 26,467 29,115 2,648
Total budgetary revenues 1,226,581 1,259,922 1,282,106 22,184
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL ADMINISTRATION:
Board of County Supervisors 4,009 4,094 3,559 535
County Attorney 4,069 3,899 3,855 44
Executive Management 12,501 9,434 9,434 -
Finance 22,706 23,697 23,124 573
Audit Services 815 800 800 -
Human Rights 842 851 790 61
Board of Registration / Elections 3,570 3,811 3,317 494
Mailroom and Print Shop 31 32 4 28
Facility and Fleet Management 29,501 30,206 29,863 343
Contingency reserve 3,100 49 - 49
Total general governmental administration 81,144 76,873 74,746 2,127
JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION:
Commonwealth's Attorney 6,664 6,816 6,816 -
Sheriff 12,967 13,821 13,857 (36)
Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court 250 257 249 8
Clerk of Court / Judges Chambers 5,475 5,918 5,725 193
General District Court 763 738 526 212
Magistrates 114 118 117 1
Total judicial administration 26,233 27,668 27,290 378
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Public Works - Development 2,423 2,482 2,475 7
Police 112,934 117,153 117,153 -
Juvenile Court Services Unit 1,080 1,069 997 72
Adult Detention Center 31,818 32,562 32,038 524
Correction and detention of youth 7,940 7,925 7,069 856
Criminal Justice Services 5,068 5,336 5,036 300
Public Safety Communications 13,007 12,934 12,563 371
Fire and Rescue 103,421 111,728 106,876 4,852
Northern Virginia Criminal Justice Training Academy 345 345 345 -
Total public safety 278,036 291,534 284,552 6,982
PUBLIC WORKS:
Public Works 2,319 2,748 2,748 -
Transportation 3,027 3,317 3,336 (19)
Property and Miscellaneous Insurance 7,627 1,281 907 374
Total public works 12,973 7,346 6,991 355
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

GENERAL FUND Schedule 1
Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Page 4 of 5
(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Original Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
HEALTH AND WELFARE:
Social Services 64,120 66,817 59,798 7,019
Public Health 3,786 3,760 3,652 108
Community Services Board 52,890 53,167 49,131 4,036
Aging 7,528 8,503 7,507 996
Total health and welfare 128,324 132,247 120,088 12,159
EDUCATION:
Schools 629,310 538,931 538,926 5
PARKS, RECREATIONAL AND CULTURAL:
Parks and recreation 36,129 38,386 32,439 5,947
Library 19,261 19,251 17,946 1,305
Total parks, recreational and cultural 55,390 57,637 50,385 7,252
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:
Planning 4,040 4,611 4,544 67
Economic and community development 7,120 8,016 7,350 666
Extension and continuing education 1,019 1,161 1,132 29
Total community development 12,179 13,788 13,026 762
DEBT SERVICE:
Principal retirement 24,920 101,010 101,010 -
Interest and other debt costs 14,416 46,886 45,426 1,460
Total debt service 39,336 147,896 146,436 1,460
Total budgetary expenditures 1,262,925 1,293,920 1,262,440 31,480
Excess / (detficiency) ot budgetary revenues over /
(under) expenditures (36,344) (33,998) 19,666 53,664
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):
TRANSFERS IN FROM:
Fire & rescue levy fund 27,340 27,340 27,340 -
Special revenue funds 8,105 8,331 8,257 (74)
Capital projects funds 273 13,335 13,335 -
Enterprise funds 2,302 2,302 2,302 -
Internal service funds 2,000 2,000 2,000 -
Total transfers in 40,020 53,308 53,234 (74)
TRANSFERS OUT TO:
Special revenue funds (5,113) (5,425) (5,425) -
Capital projects funds (58) (21,253) (21,253) -
Enterprise funds (1,717) (1,717) (1,717) -
Internal service funds - (80) (80) -
Total transfers out (6,888) (28,475) (28,475) -
NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS:
Insurance claims and recoveries - - 18 18
Sale of surplus property 320 320 247 (73)
Total non-revenue receipts 320 320 265 (55)
Total other financing sources 33,452 25,153 25,024 (129)
Net change in budgetary fund balance (2,892) (8,845) 44,690 53,535
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 225,262 225,262 225,262 -
Restatement of fund balance (Footnote 1R) - - 594 594
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, end of year s 222,370 216,417 270,546 54,129
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

GENERAL FUND Schedule 1
Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Page 5 of 5
(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Original Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:
From use of money and property (Schedule 1) S 8,924 8,459 9,865 1,406
Current year fair value adjustment - - (9,850) (9,850)
From use of money and property (Exhibit 5) 8,924 8,459 15 (8,444)
Cumulative fair value adjustments of prior periods - - 3,770 3,770
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, end of year 222,370 216,417 270,546 54,129
Total adjustments - - (6,080) (6,080)
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 222,370 216,417 264,466 48,049
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA Schedule 2
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - Fire & Rescue Levy

Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance With

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Original Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
BUDGETARY REVENUES:
General property taxes S 51,675 51,675 52,448 773
From use of money and property 381 381 532 151
Miscellaneous 381 - 227 227
Total budgetary revenues 52,437 52,056 53,207 1,151
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety - Fire & Rescue 29,658 30,690 25,478 5,212
Total budgetary expenditures 29,658 30,690 25,478 5,212
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out to:
General fund (27,340) (27,340) (27,340) -
Internal service funds (98) (98) (98) -
Sales of surplus property - - 1,648 1,648
Total other financing sources / (uses) (27,438) (27,438) (25,790) 1,648
Net change in budgetary fund balance (4,659) (6,072) 1,939 8,011
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 40,420 40,420 40,420 -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, end of year S 35,761 34,348 42,359 8,011
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:
From use of money and property (Schedule 2) S 381 381 532 151
Current year fair value adjustment - - (656) (656)
From use of money and property (Exhibit 5) 381 381 (124) (505)
Cumulative fair value adjustments of prior periods - - (521) (521)
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, end of year 35,761 34,348 42,359 8,011
Total adjustments - - (1,177) (1,177)
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 35,761 34,348 41,182 6,834
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - COVID-19 Response

Schedule of Budgetary Revenues, Budgetary Expenditures and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(UNAUDITED - BUDGET PREPARED ON A NON-GAAP BASIS)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Schedule 3

BUDGETARY REVENUES:
From use of money and property
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal
Total budgetary revenues

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
General government administration
Public safety
Health and welfare
Education
Parks, Recreation and cultural
Community development

Total budgetary expenditures

Net change in budgetary fund balance
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, beginning of year
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, end of year

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:
From use of money and property (Schedule 3)
Current year fair value adjustment

From use of money and property (Exhibit 5)

Cumulative fair value adjustments of prior periods

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, end of year
Total adjustments
FUND BALANCE, end of year

Variance With

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts 2021 Favorable
Final Actuals (Unfavorable)
- 340 340
43,759 75,111 31,352
43,759 75,451 31,692
3,463 3,463 .
24,282 18,058 6,224
11,165 10,641 524
28,240 28,240 -
- 150 (150)
15,573 14,591 982
82,723 75,143 7,580
(38,964) 308 39,272
1 1 -
(38,963) 309 39,272
- 340 340
- (194) (194)
- 146 146
- 1 1
(38,963) 309 39,272
- (193) (193)
(38,963) 116 39,079
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COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Post-Employment Benefit Plans (UNAUDITED)

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands, except percentages and years)

Schedule 4A

Virginia Retirement System - All Plans
Changes in the County's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Information for FY 2013 and earlier is not available.

Total pension liability
Service cost $ 39,422 35,162 33,491 30,983 29,376 28,708 28,205
Interest 92,310 88,053 84,034 78,978 75,010 71,222 67,389
Changes of benefit terms - - - 21,630 - - -
Differences between expected and actual

experience 33,766 7,503 (2,509) 2,494 1,128 (757) -
Changes of assumptions - 40,798 - (8,860) - - -
Benefit payments including refunds of

member contributions (63,844)  (59,907)  (55,297)  (50,666)  (47,001)  (43,108)  (38,578)
Net change in total pension liability 101,654 111,609 59,719 74,559 58,513 56,065 57,016
Total pension liability - beginning 1,399,469 1,287,860 1,228,141 1,153,582 1,095,069 1,039,004 981,988
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 1,501,123 1,399,469 1,287,860 1,228,141 1,153,582 1,095,069 1,039,004
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 38,018 35,323 32,552 30,826 32,010 30,571 30,488
Contributions - member 15,122 13,922 13,721 12,645 12,336 11,628 11,385
Net investment income 22,732 75,210 78,483 116,130 16,623 41,324 122,481
Benefit payments, including refunds of

member contributions (63,844)  (59,907)  (55,297)  (50,666)  (47,001)  (43,108)  (38,578)
Administrative expense (770) (736) (671) (665) (579) (558) (651)
Other (28) (47) (72) (104) (8) (8) 7
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 11,230 63,765 68,716 108,166 13,381 39,849 125,132
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,191,921 1,128,156 1,059,440 951,274 937,893 898,044 772,912
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 1,203,151 1,191,921 1,128,156 1,059,440 951,274 937,893 898,044
County's net pension liability - ending  (a)-(b) S 297,972 207,548 159,704 168,701 202,308 157,176 140,960
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability (b)/(a) 80.15% 85.17% 87.60% 86.26% 82.46% 85.65% 86.43%
Covered payroll $ 306,566 280,007 271,552 255547 242,735 242,757 230,499
County's net pension liability as a percentage of

covered payroll 97.20% 74.12% 58.81% 66.02% 83.35% 64.75% 61.15%
Expected average remaining service years

of all participants N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
See Note 13 Illustration 13-7 for expected

arithmetic nominal rate of return 7.14% 7.63% 7.63% 12.21% 1.77% 4.60% 15.85%

Notes to Schedule:

Projected benefit payments. Calculations assume that the County will continue to make all required actuarially determined contributions.
Based on that assumption, the plan's fiduciary net position is expected to make all future benefit payments of current plan members.

Changes of benefit terms. There have been no actuarially material changes to the Plan's benefit provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions. The following changes in actuarial assumptions were made effective June 30, 2016 based on the most recent experience study of the Plan for

the four-year period ending June 30, 2016:

General Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement
healthy, and disabled)

Update to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to be